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CORPORATE PROFILE
AR

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (“CMIC" or the “Company”,
formerly known as TSC Group Holdings Limited) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company and its global
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are primarily engaged in asset investment and
operation management of offshore engineering platforms, the design,
manufacturing and service of related equipment and packages in the
land and offshore oil and gas exploration and development, the offshore
wind power installation and other industries, and other clean energy and
technology investments.

The Group’s core offshore engineering equipment and packages
businesses have reached world leading standard after many years of
development. Its principal businesses include the design, manufacturing,
installation and commissioning of onshore and offshore drilling rig
equipment and packages etc.. Specific equipment products include
cranes, machine rack pipes, jacking systems, power control and
transmission systems, tension adjustment and compensation devices and
systems, etc., as well as drilling rigs maintenance, repair and operation
(MRO) products and services, including oilfield expendables, accessories
and parts manufacturing, sale and repair services. Since the Group
successfully ventured into the high-power deep-water offshore wind
power installation market in 2021, it has successively provided high-end
core equipment for several domestic wind power installation platforms
in 2022; at the same time, the deployment of the hydrogen energy
market is also being continuously improved. We gain insight into new
opportunities for dual-carbon development, explore the path for energy
transformation, and expand opportunities for new products and new
business models in the new energy industries such as offshore wind
power operation and maintenance, floating wind power and hydrogen
energy.

In addition, the Company operates four jack-up drilling rigs, among which
the disposal of two JU2000 rigs were successfully completed in 2022.
The other two rigs provide drilling rig service for the national oil company
of Mexico in the Gulf of Mexico and were well received by the owners,
and their contracts have been successfully renewed this year. Currently,
the Company is also operating and managing two diving support
vessels, both of which are currently under charter in Southeast Asia. The
Company'’s energy asset management business is gradually maturing and
growing steadily.
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The Group pays close attention to the development of clean energy
and intelligent technology-related industries, proactively looks for
opportunities for investment in and consolidation of marine energy
science and technology-related industries to achieve synergistic effects
of each of the Group’s business segments. Through investing in the
undervalued opportunities along the industrial supply chain, the Group is
committed to enhancing the overall performance of the Company and to
maximising the interest of the shareholders and investors.

In the medium to long term, we will continue to focus on the
development of the clean energy and marine energy-related technology
industries. The market shares of fossil energy underpinned by oil and
gas have been gradually declining amid the global upsurge of carbon
neutrality and carbon peak. Governments all over the world have clear
carbon reduction goals, and reducing carbon emissions and developing
green new energy sources will become the general direction of the
global energy industry in the future. Global oil companies, oilfield service
companies and engineering companies are all actively deploying for the
new energy industry. In the medium term, leveraging on the extensive
industry resources of the old and new teams, in line with the momentum
of green energy such as hydrogen energy and offshore wind power
development, and joining forces with the substantial shareholders, we
will take the layout of the green energy technology equipment market
as an opportunity to exploit our traditional strengths in equipment
manufacturing, asset management and supply chain services, continue
to build and enhance the quality and efficiency of utilisation and brand
influence of green energy equipment manufacturing, services and
management, and use capital operation methods such as listing, funds
and finance leases to obtain stable capital support. In the long term,
we will continue to develop our business in the green energy sector in
line with the global energy revolution, and will rely on our technological
expertise in conventional energy and our experience in hydrogen energy
and offshore wind power to achieve comprehensive development, thus
making new and greater contributions to the strategic goals of carbon
reduction and green energy.
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1995

04

Emer International started
business in Houston, Texas,
U.S.A. and introduced a multiple
advanced equipment and
technologies to China’s oil and
gas industry
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2002

2001

HHCT, Emer International’s
1st manufacturing facility, was
founded in Xi'an, China and
manufactured power control
and driving systems for onshore
drilling
RERRNE - EELMERE
Hi(HHCT)R P EIPT 2P SL » B
R 3th S B8 NI RN BR E) 54T

Emer International’s 2nd
manufacturing facility,
a manufacturing plant
for hydraulic ends and
accessories of mud
pumps, was founded in
Qingdao, China
REFRBERFTHE SR
VB HEAM - RR
IR 73 AN B 1 R R

2005

Emer International
was listed on
GEM of the Stock

Exchange
BRER B PR B 22 BT
GEM ETh

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. * Annual Report 2022

2007

2008

Emer International obtained solid
control production line and lifting
system product line through
the acquisition of Zhengzhou
Highlight and Zhengzhou GEAR
and became the only company in
China that can provide research
and development, design and
manufacture of lifting device for
jack-up rigs
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RRERAR - KA EME—BER
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Emer International acquired
GME (London AIM), and was
rebranded as TSC Offshore,
expanded the product line of
offshore drilling equipment
and acquired the full capability
of whole package of offshore
drilling rigs. It became one of
the few companies in the world
that could provide the whole
package of offshore drilling rigs
in parallel with NOV and MH

BB UWEGME (London
AIMIT R Z ATSCEE  EXT
BLEHTaREEMG  AE
g EERE R - ENOV -
MHIZ PR B2 Bk ERaE IR )G
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2009

TSC Offshore transferred
its listing to the Main
Board of the Stock
Exchange
TSCOBFBEMIAER
il

2011

TSC Offshore rebranded
as TSC Group
TSCEFERRTSCER
In the same year, China
International Marine
Containers became a
strategic shareholder of
TSC Group

AFE FEEEKA
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The Company constructed high-spec
R-550D jack-up drilling rigs with
Zentech and CSSC

A7 EZentech R P M EERIER
FIER-550D B FHIEHF &

In the same year, the Company
established the Qingdao equipment
manufacturing base

R - RABEY 5 BREREEN

2019
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Minsheng Trust became a strategic
shareholder of the Company in February
2019
“E-NEF-AREEFERARFEB
ARER

In the same year, TSC Group Holdings
Limited was officially renamed as CMIC
Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd.

FEFTSCEEEZERBERAREXNESL R
EE BRI RRBHRIER B R DR

In May 2019, the sale of two units of
CJ46 rigs to Shelf was completed. The
overseas team won the contract for the
offshore rig service project of Pemex
in relation to provision of two units of
JU2000E rigs to the other party

RFERA - WL ELHAShelffyCI46F &
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China Merchants & Great Wall Ocean
Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) became
the controlling shareholder of TSC Group in
February 2018

—Z— )\ Z ABE BRSNS TR %
REFESKATSCEEMIZERARR

The Hong Kong Strategic Headquarters was
established in July 2018

T N\FABTBER AR

In December 2018, two CJ46 drilling rigs
were bareboat-chartered to SMS to provide
services to Abu Dhabi National Oil Company,

marking a breakthrough in strategic
transformation

FIF+— A HEM A CIA6HEIF S 4SMS
PRFS AP AR ZE L, AN R - BRRSEEE) ZR K

In the first half of 2020, Zhengzhou
Company successfully secured

ATEN | B

In 2021, TSC China and CM Industry Group actively
promoted the development of strategic cooperation
in offshore wind power installation

Latest improvements gained in 2021:

e CMIC Hydrogen Energy Segment Company (2
7 @ 86 R B2 7)) was established, and CMIC
Green Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. GER @45
Fin(& &)A R A 7)) was established

CMIC Green Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd.
entered into an agreement with Tan Kah Kee
Laboratory of Xiamen University to establish a
joint venture “CMIC Xia Kah Green Hydrogen
Technology Co., Ltd. (27 E R QAR MT(EFT)
BRG]

In 2021, the Company participated in the CMHI-
27201 wind power installation vessels project of
CM Industry Group, the first deep-water high-
power wind power installation platform with
independent intellectual property rights in China,
to provide core complete sets of equipment and
technology integration
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1. Two joint ventures in the hydrogen energy
segment were established:

orders for two sets of lifting systems * CMIC Yiho Hydrogen Energy (Shenzhen)
8 for offshore wind power ingstgllation (cd Co, Ltd. (%ﬁ’\‘éﬁﬁﬁé(;ﬁ%ll)ﬂ%ﬁﬁFSF(’A‘
© vessels, and has accumulated orders © ) GG 0f [ERTe ) E[P () WS (STl

) . R compressor manufacturer, was established,
QN for four sets of similar products N and the first set of 500KG diaphragm

—E-TE FME . GMNATRY hydrogen compressor assembling was

BERES L AERENTE RS successfully delivered

B BMARE R RENER e Shenzhen Intelligent Hydrogen Industry

Mo RERREER Co., Ltd.* (R BMELERA ),

AREERRE an unmanned hydrogen heavy truck

In August 2020, the Compan operation company, was established

9 y

signed a global settlement deed MR E LIRS B A BT ¢

with Huangpu Shipbulilding for the 5 ’iﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%@?ﬁﬁ— B3

H6001 and H6006 projects, through faREEFINDBHERAAKY - BE

which Huangpu Shipbuilding 500KGFs R RUBR B RIERN 22 E

became a strategic shareholder of s EARRGRERELLE - FNEEAE

the Company FBERRAIKL

BFENR - SEMEEREAQT ; :

o = \ 2. We won the tender for the offshore floating wind

3EHE001 FIH6006.% 5 5 & 2 3k A1 power project of Marine Power System (MPS) in

BRI AR R BRE AR R Europe

In October 2020, the land sale ¢T%EZ?¢‘\‘\Marine Power System (MPS)A &1/

contract of Qingdao offshore base LEARBHA

was Olﬁ!C'a”{] S'%Ted' effectflvehly 3. We partnered with KenzFigee, a leading Dutch

revitalizing the idle assets ot the offshore wind power heavy equipment company, to

Company enter the core equipment business of offshore wind

AE+H  S88TEM+ it e power operation and maintenance

BREREE  BRBEAQRH SETRE LA B ER R ERESE M ¥KenzFigee

BEE DRASIEEES LABER RO REER
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GLOBAL SOLUTIONS
RERBRTT R
Deep distribution of global hotspots of il and gas and

new energy, boosting the value integration of the

offshore engineering and new energy business chains
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFUBME

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes below.

AT RAKERE T XM EMBEERRNEAE
B BERABEBEBE-

08

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS P
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B Z%=-— —TZTF ZE-NEF  ZZ-)N\F
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FER TEn TEn FET TEn
Revenue WA 113,040 57,027 65,882 70,246 58,839
Cost of sales HERA (85,:294) (36,363) (54,265) (46,210) (48,792)
Gross profit E7 27,746 20,664 11,617 24,036 10,047
Other revenue and net income (including  E b 4tas RFKA
reversal of impairment losses/ (BEREER
provisions) |/ BE) 6,770 19,548 27,980 14,404 934
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHAX (2,693) (3,914) (4,818) (4,981) (5,635)
General and administrative expenses —RRITRAX (21,934) (19,775) (21,705) (23,960) (27,693)
Other operating expenses (including HinS2RZ (RERE
impairment losses/provisions) B8/ #E) (2,571) (1,919) (3,767) (1,239) (6,609)
Finance costs B (161) (489) (660) (1,727) (2,450)
Share of profit less losses of associates 2 EHE & 1 Al FIRlE 12 (47) 255 18 36 1
Share of profit of joint venture AMEEERE R 19,345 1,370 1,216 3,728 =
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBATER/ (B518) 26,455 15,740 9,881 10,297 (31,405)
Income tax (expenses)/credit iR (Ax%) Ee (565) (6,396) 949 (979) (10,381)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to X2 AIRRAERRER1G
equity shareholders of the Company &7,/ (£518) 25,879 9,220 10,916 9,701 (41,358)

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. * Annual Report 2022



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

December 2022 are as set out on pages 157 to 158 of the audited financial

statements.

hERBHE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAR

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—BC-f R ZEZZF  ZE-NF  ZEN\F
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TER TEn SEIE TEx TEn
Non-current assets FRBEE 38,7% 76,680 72,634 97,587 52,774
Current assets mEEE 239,878 153,217 157,296 258,591 228,008
Current liabilities mEEE (108,116) (79,159) (93,422) (228,789) (245,183)
Net current assets/(liabilities) mEEE /(AR FE 131,762 74,058 63,874 29,802 (17,175)
Non-current liabilities FnBas (1,532) (2,160) (1,224) (6,975) (7,201)
Total assets BEE 278,674 229,897 229,930 356,178 280,782
Total liabilities maE (109,648) (81,319) (94,646) (235,764) (252,384)
Net assets BEFE 169,026 148,578 135,284 120,414 28,398

Notes: MoaE -

1. The summary of consolidated results of the Group includes the results of the 1. AEEMNLGAEERELRARTLEWBATME
Company and its subsidiaries as if the current Group structure had been in BB AMNEEEBRBRAMIEZEARAE
existence throughout the financial periods, or from the respective dates of BRI EBRRAREEARE) —EHFE - A5H
the incorporation where this is a shorter period. The consolidated results of BHE_Z-_—_F+-_RA=1+—HILFENGEEESR
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are as set out on pages RSB ISHRK L 155HF 1568 ©
155 to 156 of the audited financial statements.

2. The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 2. AEER-T-—F+_-A=+—HHOHEAHHEKR

RN EERMBHRERNEI157TEZE158E °

TEC_FFR - FHERSERRANEERERAT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®ME

P

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2022

The global economic environment became increasingly complex in 2022, with greater instability and uncertainty,
against the backdrop of complex and changeable international situation and the spread of pandemic in China. In
spite of this, the world is undergoing unprecedented once-in-a-century transformations, with the new technological
revolution and industrial transformation advanced and accelerating structural adjustment in the global energy industry.
The industry market environment in 2022 has shown improvement compared to what's expected two years ago;
however, due to a combination of factors such as the Russo-Ukrainian War and the global pandemic, uncertainty
remained the keynote of the global market.

2022 was a year of in-depth development for business transformation and business structure adjustment of the Group
in response to the changes in the external environment. Leveraging on its existing strengths in the oil and gas industry
and the advantages of its international operations, the Group firmly pursues a “two-wheel drive” development
initiative for its traditional energy business and new energy business.

In terms of business expansion, with the progress of global energy transformation, deep-sea crude oil exploitation and
offshore new energy development have become two hot investment routes. The offshore engineering has recovered
strongly after several years of hovering at a low level, which has provided opportunity for the Group to sell its two
offshore engineering assets. Through the efforts of the team, it has successfully completed the “cyclical” investment
task of the offshore engineering assets with consideration higher than the market price, bringing considerable
investment income to the Group. On the other hand, the Group has continued to deepen its efforts in the Mexican
market, and has made remarkable progress in the onshore drilling renovation project and platform lease renewal
project, laying a solid foundation for the Group to continue to complete its business transformation and development
in the new year.

In terms of new energy business development, offshore wind power has gradually entered the peak development
period in 2022, and the next-generation high-spec offshore wind power installation vessels have become subjects of
the orders that many domestic shipyards are vying for. Since the end of 2021, in addition to the construction of the
new generation of 1600-ton offshore wind power installation platform signed and jointly designed and manufactured
with China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd (BB T X £EHBR A 5], “CM Industry”), the Group continued to
sign a number of orders for the supply of core equipment for LIFTBOAT and high-spec jack-up wind power installation
platform in 2022, effectively consolidating the Group’s brand and position in the core equipment market of offshore
wind power installation platforms. Besides, the Group has steadfastly pursued the national “dual carbon” strategy
and continued to invest more in the hydrogen energy field and deepen the layout of the industrial chain. After a
year of effort, the team has basically completed the design and assembly of 1,000-scf electrolytic cell products and
successfully completed the delivery of the first set of 500KG assembled hydrogen compressors. The Group and its
strategic partners have integrated the strengths of multiple industries and financing resources to jointly build a new
business model combining the operation and leasing of hydrogen vehicles to provide customers with low-carbon and
green transportation solutions in specific scenarios such as ports, parks, and municipal sanitation.




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFRE

In the past year, CMIC achieved record revenue, net profit attributable to the parent company and operating profit.
The Group has maintained profitable growth for four consecutive years despite “headwinds” and this report card has
not come easily without the support and assistance of our strategic shareholders and partners.

The year of 2023 marks the beginning of the full implementation of the spirit of the 20th Party Congress. “Insisting on
development, innovating on the basis of scientific principles, and pulling through the highly uncertain cycle with high-
quality development” is the core element of CMIC for in-depth transformation and development. | believe that CMIC
will turn up with more changes and surprises in the new year. Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders and friends from all walks of life for your unremitting and long-standing support, and you are assured to
witness our brand-new development.

Sincerely,

Yu Zhiliang
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023

—To—FER . ERERStERNEEzRERAT 11



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFEHRE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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CEO’S STATEMENT
HEHTERS

2022 turned out to be an extremely tough year. This year, the world came into a new phase of turmoil and change
while the spread of COVID-19 was still ongoing, with the Russian-Ukrainian war simmering and lasting from the
beginning of the year, the global food crisis and energy crisis continuing throughout the year, the industrial and
supply chains being severely impacted, and the global inflation disrupting constantly economies of all countries. In
contrast to the global macroeconomic environment, global natural gas and crude oil prices unexpectedly reversed
their multi-year downward trend and rose sharply in the wake of the Russian-Ukrainian war at the beginning of the
year. Under the influence of high oil prices in the middle of the year, deepwater oil exploration and offshore new
energy development became two hot investment threads, and the offshore engineering equipment manufacturing
industry had opportunities. Meanwhile, energy shortages and environmental degradation continued to drive the rapid
development of the new energy revolution, with the development of the offshore wind power and hydrogen energy
industries speeding up. Despite the challenging macroeconomic environment, CMIC achieved remarkable results in
2022. The Group has been profitable for four consecutive years, paying full taxes to the government and salaries to its
employees. This year, the Group's revenue and net profit indicators have reached record highs since China Merchants
Group Limited* (FAE BERE AR A F], “CM Group”) took control of CMIC. By the end of December 2022, CMIC had
achieved an annual revenue of US$113 million and a per capita production value of approximately US$300,000. These
results were not easy to achieve under the economic and market circumstances of 2022.

In 2022, the Company delivered outstanding results in the area of core equipment for offshore wind power installation
platforms. In 2022, the Company secured orders for the jacking systems, cranes and electronic control systems of six
LIFTBOATs and three large jack-up wind power installation platforms, and the new generation of 1,600-tone offshore
wind power installation platforms signed and jointly designed and manufactured with CM Industry had also been
progressing steadily, effectively consolidating the brand and position of CMIC in the market of core equipment for
offshore wind power installation platforms. The successful tender for the design and manufacture of the tensioner
deployment system for the offshore floating wind power projects of Marine Power System (MPS) in Europe has
provided CMIC the foundation for its further entry into the deep-sea wind power market.

For the energy equipment supporting business, CMIC secured stable revenue through its oil and gas equipment
business and asset management business. The Company capitalised on its strengths to develop the oil and gas market
by taking advantage of the high oil prices. For instance, the Company secured a three-year contract renewal for the
two platforms under its management, namely “Gulf Drill No. 6 (#§65%)” and “Gulf Drill No. 8 (Z§#8%%)", and
completed the delivery of four upgraded land drilling rigs for PEMEX. WME, a joint venture of CMIC, contributed a
cumulative net profit of over US$4.4 million to the Group through the bareboat charterparty with SMS. The Company
has also successfully assisted CM Industry in the sale of two jack-up drilling rigs to ADNOC, and the disposal of the
platform assets would bring a net gain of over US$36 million to the joint venture.

In 2022, the Company also achieved a lot in its business layout in the field of hydrogen energy. In respect of the
exploration and development of hydrogen energy business, CMIC focused on the three key areas of hydrogen
resources, hydrogen storage, transportation and processing, and application scenarios for deployment and
development. In terms of hydrogen resources, the design and assembly of the 1,000-scf large alkaline electrolytic cells
have been basically completed and are expected to be launched to the market in the first quarter of 2023 after testing.
In terms of hydrogen storage, transportation and processing, in July 2022, the first set of 500KG assembled membrane
hydrogen compressors of CMIC was successfully delivered in Qingdao; in November 2022, the design of the 500KG
assembled membrane compressors of GHT successfully passed the assessment of the external expert committee,
and GHT is actively preparing for the compressor assembly production line, with a view to promoting the domestic
production of compressors units and capturing the domestic hydrogen compressor market. The domestic R&D and
manufacture of the hydrogen compressor head is also in progress and the prototype is expected to be available in mid-
2023. In terms of application scenarios, in June 2022, CMIC funded, together with its partners, the establishment of
Shenzhen Intelligent Hydrogen Industry Co., Ltd.* (RIIIE @ E B A 7)) to integrate the advantages of multiple
industries and finance, jointly create a new business model combining hydrogen energy vehicle operation and leasing,
and provide customers with low-carbon and green shipping solutions in specific scenarios such as ports, parks, and
municipal sanitation.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2022
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In 2022, CMIC and its strategic shareholders further deepened their collaboration and cooperation. The Company
planed and developed its businesses in line with the development strategies and priorities of CM Group and CM
Industry and its subsidiaries, other than the Group (“CM Industry Group”), actively cooperating on green offshore
engineering products such as wind power installation platforms and new energy vessel projects, sharing technical
resources in design and delivering qualified and high-quality products in production. Notably, in mid-2022, CMIC
entered into a comprehensive strategic cooperation agreement on offshore wind power core equipment with
KenzFigee, a leading Dutch offshore wind power heavy equipment company. As a result, the prototype 3D Active
Motion Compensated (“AMC") gangway system developed, manufactured and produced by CMIC and the team of
CM Industry is expected to be available in the second half of 2023, which would break the gap in this technology
and product field in China. Furthermore, CMIC has adopted the creed of CM Group in its corporate governance and
regarded it as a core corporate culture. In November 2022, CMIC won the “Best ESG Practice Award” from CLS;
again in December, the Company won the “Golden Phoenix Tree” Award for Listed Company with the Best Internal
Governance from TMTpost. Organisational structure of the Group was further optimised and restructured to comprise
one headquarters, three major segments and six functional departments.

The Company had many achievements in 2022. Looking forward, the Company will insist on a multi-wheel drive to
expand its business advantages in the traditional energy sector, while grasping the opportunities in green energy
development. On the one hand, the Company will trade time for space, cultivate its existing wind power and oil and
gas equipment businesses to ensure the basic conditions for its survival, and actively develop and carry out research
and development and trial production of offshore wind power operation and maintenance equipment and other
emerging vessels, such as premium vehicle ro-ro ship equipment. On the other hand, the Company will capitalise on its
unique advantages in international resources and shareholder resources to accelerate the implementation of hydrogen
energy business and the realisation of results.

Lastly, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and friends from all walks of life for your

unremitting and long-standing support, as well as to our directors, management team and staff for your dedication,
trust and commitment on us, and you are assured to witness our robust growth and development.

Sincerely,

Yu Zhiliang
Executive Director & CEO

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWmR DN

CMIC IS AN INDUSTRIAL CHAIN VALUE
INTEGRATION OPERATOR IN MARINE ENERGY
TECHNOLOGY SECTOR

OVERVIEW

In 2022, the global COVID-19 pandemic was still with us. Yet, major
economies around the world gradually reopened and extensively launched
their growth packages, and there was a slow economic recovery, an
accelerated inflation, and a decline in the growth rate of unemployment
globally. The global crude oil market experienced significant volatility and
continued to rise in the first half of the year due to factors such as the
Russia-Ukraine conflict, before falling continuously in the second half of
the year due to the impact of US monetary policies. The average spot
price of Brent crude oil for the whole year was approximately US$100
per barrel, representing an increase of approximately 41% compared to
2021. As a result, the Company maintained steady growth in orders for
supply chain management, spare part sales and technical services from
the oil and gas business throughout the year.

As for energy equipment supporting — offshore engineering equipment
manufacturing, the Company continued to take high-end equipment
manufacturing as the entry point, and repeatedly applied the traditional
advantages of cranes, lifting piles and electrical control system in the
offshore engineering industry to large offshore wind power installation
vessels. In 2022, the Company successively won large orders for core
equipment of wind power installation platforms, and has recently signed
sales contracts with China Merchants Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.
(FBrEET(CI&)BR2AR]), a subsidiary of CM Industry Group, Yantai
CIMC Raffles Offshore Engineering Co., Ltd. and China Merchants Marine
Equipment Research Institute Co., Ltd. respectively for jacking systems
of large offshore wind power installation platforms. In the future, CMIC
will continue to give full play to its strengths in specialization, refinement,
unigueness and innovation, hold high CM Group’s banner for green new
energy, and head towards the “double carbon” strategic objective of our
country. To this end, it will actively collaborate with CM Group’s internal
quality resources to provide customers with better products and services.

In respect of energy equipment supporting — the wind power business,
the Company has actively pursued business transformation and new
product investment, and signed a technological cooperation agreement
on core offshore wind power operation and maintenance equipment
with KenzFigee, a leading Dutch offshore wind power heavy equipment
company. By virtue of this cooperation, the Company will be able to
provide core equipment and technology services for 3D AMC to be
applied in offshore wind power installation & replacement and on
service operation vessels (SOVs), thereby satisfying the rapidly growing
offshore wind power installation and operation & maintenance market
in China and across the world, and contributing to the development of
shipbuilding business and the breakthrough in domestic R&D of key &
core technologies. Meanwhile, the Company accelerated its business
expansion to cover the whole industry chain of offshore and deepwater
green wind power business, and successfully won the tender for the
key systems of an European deepwater floating wind power project,
strengthening its leading position in the offshore wind power key
equipment sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The green energy technology development business segment continued
to improve its business layout. In 2022, the Company successively
invested in companies engaged in the manufacture of core equipment for
hydrogen refueling stations and the operation and leasing of hydrogen
energy vehicles, in order to expand its presence alongside the upstream
and downstream of the hydrogen industry chain, with a view of tapping
into the manufacture of core equipment for hydrogen refueling stations
and the operation and leasing of hydrogen energy vehicles, thus taking
shape of its business layout along the hydrogen industry chain. In 2022,
the Company successfully delivered the 500KG assembled membrane
hydrogen compressor, marking CMIC Yiho Hydrogen Energy (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. GEEEmEAREEECRINIR!D AR A F])'s formal entry into the
hydrogen refueling station equipment business.

In 2022, the Company’s operating results still maintained a profitable
trend with a number of important order contracts achieving
breakthroughs or expecting to continue to grow. Both units of rigs
built for PEMEX, the national oil company of Mexico, have been highly
appreciated by the customers, for which the contracts were successfully
renewed by the customers and the delivery of spare parts for the rigs
drew to a close. In response to the strong demand from the Mexican
market, the international region team set up a new operation and
maintenance service center and put it into operation, with orders keeping
pouring in.

With technology innovation as the principal axis for its driving force
enhancement, the Company has newly set up functional departments
at the headquarters level for the Institute of Science and Technology
Innovation and convened the Group’s first science and technology
working meeting, marking the beginning of a new strategic phase of
technology innovation. We insist on mindset innovation and innovative
team building, give full play to the Company’s advantage in technology
accumulation in the field of high-end equipment manufacturing, and
integrate the advantage of the century-old enterprise culture of CM
Group. Leveraging on the financing platform of the listed company,
we focus on core competitiveness building in four directions, namely
expansion and extension of existing businesses, practicing the “double
carbon” strategy of our country, and new trends and tracks for future
industrial development, so as to enhance our technological innovation
capabilities to provide a driving force for CMIC’s enhancement in global
competitiveness and sustainable development.

EEENWE DN

RERMAERBRRFBEZSEZBEME  —F=
ZFEARAEBE2RNSUEROEEROEERE
SHEQR BRAEXBLETHGOR  EXHEM
REMAUEEORBREAN TR ERELEE
REXBOHRULNR - —TZ_FEKRAKY
RAF500KGRERA A REREEARE - RwEERA
ARERECRIDBHERAREREANBIEREE
% o

SE- - EARREERBEALRE AL
SEAEBTEARNERRWAALHERR - AR
FHER A FIPEMENRE N RET & - 925
EEMEERBYKYESTESAN  TohH
ENTHELERARE - BREEKHHBETH
BERMTES - RUIER BB OLRALRA -
EES

RRABABKRIFESERAAAB AN T - K
REFARILB B b A BB I AR A
SEEAMRIFEER S ZRBERRAFNE
B B B o 3RAPTER 5 B A AR S BI T A0 B R I B
R ADBEARRESHRGBREREOHRIMIE
REY BRABFHRNREELEXLEDR  EH
EHRBIREFEBE BEREXEHETHRE
JEf - BITER SR EREE - ARRREXESE
RABEHNBEEHESTARETERORSE S
MARHXBIFTENER - RBBERBERNZIRE
ENMAFFEEREHES N -

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA

ity



20

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In parallel with its business transformation, the Company has actively
restructured its management team and personnel structure to achieve
a rejuvenated management team and a specialised technical team.
The Company is solidly building up a younger management team that
matches the age structure and ability structure to adapt to development
needs under the new market environment and new businesses.

In 2022, under the leadership of the Company’s core management team,
the annual sales revenue and the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company amounted to approximately US$113.0 million and
US$25.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 98.2% and
180.7%, respectively.

ARREBBINRE @ BIRETEEBRMAER
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ZTEZZF EARRABRLEREBEBEMNEET - &
NEZFHEWARBRERREG 2 EFEA113.0
BEETK25988% ' Ao HIEM8.2% Kk
180.7% °

FINANCIAL REVIEW B % [E1 B
2022 2021 Increase/(decrease)
—Z-= —E-—F o, O )
US$°000 US$'000 US$'000 %
FEx FExT FET %
Revenue 1 ON 113,040 57,027 56,013 98.2
Gross profit E A 27,746 20,664 7,082 343
Gross profit margin EF = 24.5% 36.2%
Profit from operations bl 7,318 14,604 (7,286) (49.9)
Net profit attributable to RR A AR 2R B A 2 7%
equity shareholders 25,879 9,220 16,659 180.7
Profit for the year F A 25,890 9,344 16,546 1771
Net profit margin F g ) 3R 22.9% 16.4%
Earnings per share BRAM(EAREE)  US0.82cent  US0.29 cent  US0.53 cent
(Basic and diluted) 0.82% Al 0.29311l 0.533A11 182.8

Segment Information by Business Segments

2022 2021 Increase/(decrease)
=—g== —E—F g, Osd)

US$'000 %  US$'000 %  US$'000 %

e % TERT %  FERT %
Capital equipment and BRFRBREB

packages 61,026 54.0 27,622 48.4 33,404 120.9
Oilfield expendables and JH EFEM Rk

supplies 40,699 36.0 21,034 36.9 19,665 93.5
Management and BB R TERG

engineering services 11,315 10.0 8,371 14.7 2,944 35.2

Total revenue WA&E 113,040 100.0 57,027 100.0 56,013 98.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue arising from the sale of capital equipment, expendables and
supplies related to renewable energy business was around US$49.3
million (representing 44% of the total revenue) where US$63.7 million
from traditional energy sector for the year 2022. Compared with last
year, there is only US$3.2 million (representing 6% of the total revenue)
revenue arising from renewable energy business.

2022 Income
“—ECFRA
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2021 Income
—E-—FQA

—_—

56%
44%

Renewable Energy Business

A BARRER

Capital Equipment and Packages

Revenue recognised in capital equipment and packages projects increased
by 120.9% from US$27.6 million in 2021 to US$61.0 million in 2022
mainly because some orders for wind power renewable energy of larger
contract amounts were completed and delivered in 2022, resulting in an
overall amount higher than last year.

Oilfield Expendables and Supplies

The increase of 93.5% from US$21.0 million in 2021 to US$40.7 million
in 2022 for oilfield expendables and supplies was mainly due to the year-
on-year increase in orders for oilfield consumables and materials from the
Mexico and Mainland China markets in the wake of the continuous rise
in oil prices.

Management and Engineering Services

Management and engineering services revenue increased from US$8.4
million in 2021 to US$11.3 million in 2022. It was mainly due to the
increased demands for upgrading of land drilling rigs and relevant
supporting services from the Mexico market.

94%

6%

—_—

—

Traditional Oil and Gas Business
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Segment Information by Geographical Regions

RuBEE D 22 HEHR

2022 2021 Increase/(decrease)
—E_C —E-—F o, Cr )
US$’000 %  US$'000 %  US$'000 %
FEx % FET % FET %
Hong Kong Special ERFRITHER
Administrative Region 2 - 26 - (24) (92.3)
Mainland China R B A 79,067 70.0 31,049 54.4 48,018 154.7
North America b3 5,774 5.1 3,422 6.0 2,352 68.7
South America EES 20,637 18.3 18,287 32.1 2,350 12.9
Europe M 934 0.8 178 0.3 756 424.7
Singapore N 923 0.8 736 1.3 187 25.4
Indonesia ENEfEfhan 102 0.1 47 0.1 55 117.0
Middle East R 2,734 2.4 1,469 2.6 1,265 86.1
Others Hith 2,867 2.5 1,813 3.2 1,054 58.1
Total revenue WA&ET 113,040 100.0 57,027 100.0 56,013 98.2
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin ENRERER

The gross profit of US$27.7 million for the year of 2022 increased by
US$7.0 million from US$20.7 million in the previous year. Gross profit
margin decreased from 36.2% in 2021 to 24.5% in 2022. It was mainly
because the revenue increased significantly over last year, resulting in a
higher gross profit for the year compared to last year; however, projects
with lower gross profit margin accounted for a larger proportion of the
Group's total revenue, which resulted in a lower gross profit margin
compared to last year.

Other Revenue and Net Income

Other revenue and net income decreased from US$4.7 million in 2021
to US$3.6 million in 2022. Such income includes interest income, rental
income, financial income from lease receivables and local government
subsidies.

Selling and Distribution, General and Administrative
Expenses

Selling and distribution, general and administrative expenses increased
by approximately 4% from US$23.7 million in 2021 to US$24.6 million
in 2022. This increase was mainly due to the growth in the size of the
business which led to an increase in business activities.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses increased from US$1.9 million in 2021 to
US$2.6 million in 2022. The increase was mainly due to the growth in the
size of the business which led to an increase in miscellaneous expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs
Finance costs, being interest on bank loans and interest on lease liabilities,
decreased from US$0.5 million in 2021 to US$0.2 million in 2022.

Share of Profit of Joint Venture

Share of profit of joint venture increased by US$17.9 million from US$1.4
million in 2021 to US$19.3 million in 2022. It is mainly due to the
investment income brought to the Group after the joint venture company
disposed of the rigs.

Group’s Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group carried tangible assets of
approximately US$22.5 million (2021: US$26.0 million) being property,
plant and equipment and investment properties.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s intangible assets were
approximately US$1.1 million (2021: US$0.2 million). As at 31 December
2022, the Group's interest in associates was approximately US$6.8 million
(2021: US$1.2 million), interest in joint venture was approximately US$4.2
million (2021: US$43.1 million) and deferred tax assets was approximately
US$1.6 million (2021: US$1.0 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current assets amounted to
approximately US$239.9 million (2021: US$153.2 million). Current
assets mainly comprised inventories of approximately US$36.2 million
(2021: US$33.4 million), trade and other receivables of approximately
US$164.7 million (2021: US$64.7 million) and lease receivables (current)
of approximately US$12.8 million (2021: US$19.6 million).

As at 31 December 2022, pledged bank deposits amounted to
approximately US$1.1 million (2021: US$1.9 million) and cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately US$24.9 million (2021: US$33.5
million).

As at 31 December 2022, current liabilities amounted to approximately
US$108.1 million (2021: US$79.2 million), mainly comprised trade and
other payables of approximately US$59.6 million (2021: US$42.3 million),
and tax payable of approximately US$4.1 million (2021: US$3.3 million).
Contract liabilities amounted to US$29.8 million (2021: US$15.0 million)
and current lease liabilities amounted to approximately US$14.7 million
(2021: US$18.5 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had non-current liabilities of
approximately US$1.5 million (2021: US$2.2 million), representing non-
current portion of lease liabilities. The Group monitors capital with
reference to its debt position. The Group’s strategy is to maintain the
gearing ratio, being the Group’s total liabilities to total assets, under
100%. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 was 39.3% (2021:
35.4%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Significant Investment and Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group set up three
associates in Mainland China for considerations of RMB60,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$8,946,000) in total with the purpose
of manufacturing equipment of hydrogen refuelling station and leasing
of hydrogen energy vehicles. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
paid RMB41,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US$6,113,000)
and committed to contribute cash of RMB19,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately USS$2,868,000) as capital.

Plans for Future Material Investments, Assets and
Capital Integration

Except as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any future plans
for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2022.

Capital Structure

At 31 December 2022, there were 3,243,433,914 shares issued and the
Company carried a share capital of approximately US$41,418,000. There
was no issue of shares during the year.

Foreign Currency Exchange Exposures

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The Group has foreign
exchange exposure resulting from most of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC carrying out production locally using Renminbi while approximately
20% of the Group's revenue was denominated in United States dollars.
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no related hedges
were made by the Group.

In order to mitigate foreign exchange exposure, the Company may utilise
foreign currency forward contracts to better match the currency of its
revenues and associated costs of the Company in the future. However,
the Company does not use foreign currency forward contracts for trading
or speculative purposes. The Group will actively explore ways to hedge or
reduce currency exchange risk in future.

Charge on Group’s Assets
As at 31 December 2022, except for the pledged deposits, there was no
charge on the other assets of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2022, there was no significant contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 442 full-time staff
in the United States, the United Kingdom, Brazil, Mexico, Singapore,
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group’s remuneration policy is
determined by the salary levels in different regions, employee rank and
performance and the market conditions. The Group also provides other
benefits to all of its employees, including medical schemes, pension
contribution schemes, share award incentive schemes, etc.

The directors’ remuneration shall be determined by the board of the
directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company (the “Board”) with the
recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) with reference to the prevailing market
rate, experience, qualifications, contribution and commitments of
Directors to the Company, and is reviewed from time to time.

MARKET REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Market Analysis of the Industry

Looking back on 2022, “global inflation” was the main issue of the world
economy, three major causes to which are the Ukraine crisis, the impact
of the pandemic and the games among great powers. The outbreak of
Russia-Ukraine conflict early this year has strained the global supply chain
and escalated energy and food prices, pushing up global inflation. This
year also saw a boom in the oil and gas industry. Energy demand has
soared as countries lifted quarantine restriction measures and opened
their economies to the outside world early this year. This trend was
exacerbated by the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine conflict, which pushed
the price of crude oil to US$130 per barrel. Although in the second half
of the year, we saw a fall in oil price growth as major central banks
tightened monetary policies, oil prices remained largely above US$80
per barrel throughout 2022, much higher than the average of the last
five years. Meanwhile, the price of European natural gas also reached a
record €339/MWh in August due to the Russia-Ukraine conflict, more
than 10 times the price of the same period last year.

Since higher inflation and rising interest rates take hold, we are cautious
about the prospects of global economic recovery in 2023. QOil prices will
come under pressure in 2023 as the increasingly gloomy global economic
prospect continues to weigh on crude oil consumption to some extent.
However, with low global upstream oil and gas exploration capital
expenditure dictating a low crude oil supply base as well as uncertainty
over OPEC+ production policy and Russian oil supply, most analysts say
oil demand is expected to grow significantly in the second half of 2023 if
China relaxes COVID-19 restrictions and global central banks adopt less
aggressive interest rate policies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Based on forecasts from different institutions, we believe that the global
crude oil market will remain tightly balanced and oil prices will remain at
a medium-high range, with average prices fluctuating between US$80-
100 per barrel. If the oil price is at medium-high level, the offshore
engineering equipment market is expected to continue its positive
trend, taking into account the digestion of previous inventory and the
continuous expansion of offshore engineering industry scope. However, it
shall not be overlooked that there is still a certain degree of uncertainty as
to whether the end-use demand for crude oil will recover smoothly and
whether the investment and tender enthusiasm of crude oil companies
will continue.

In 2023, the offshore engineering equipment market is likely to continue
its positive trend. The utilisation rate of various offshore engineering
equipment is rising steadily, with drilling rigs, floating production rigs and
various offshore engineering support vessels becoming increasingly active,
and given that the previous inventory has largely been absorbed, the basis
for a continued upturn in the offshore engineering industry is in place.
The demand for drilling rigs will improve dramatically and the drilling rig
market will continue to recover. As drilling rig supply has remained tight
since 2014, the supply and demand of the drilling rig market became
tense with daily rent rising to the highest level since 2015. In addition,
major oil and gas companies conducted several rounds of bidding
activities in 2022, which will promote further demand growth in the
future. The outlook for the drilling rig market is expected to be positive in
2023. Global demand for jack-up rigs is expected to reach 418 by the end
of 2023, an increase of 18% over the level in early 2022, and demand for
floating rigs is also expected to grow by 19% in 2023, reaching 162 by
the end of 2023.

Against the backdrop of low carbon and environmental protection, a clear
goal is set for the long-term development of clean energy. Characterized
by huge resource potential and relatively mature technology, offshore
wind power will definitely be a main line of long-term development in
the future. Global shipowners have increased their investment in large
wind power installation vessels, with a new wave of orders for wind
power installation vessels starting from 2020. In 2022, 96% of the new
orders for wind power installation vessels were received for large wind
power installation vessels with a lifting weight of over 1,200 tonnes. All
the wind power installation vessels signed in this wave of orders will be
delivered between 2023 and 2026. The offshore wind power operation
and maintenance business will gradually increase in the future, and the
demand for offshore wind power operation and maintenance facilities
will also increase accordingly. The development of new operation and
maintenance business will usher in a window period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2022, issues such as energy shortage and environmental degradation
continued to push the pace of new energy revolution, leading to a
global synergy and accelerating the implementation of hydrogen energy
projects in some countries. As hydrogen energy has become a core
element for major economies in their carbon neutrality layout, they have
been preparing a large number of new energy hydrogen production
projects. According to a report of the Hydrogen Council, 131 large-scale
hydrogen energy development projects have been initiated worldwide
since February 2022. The total global investment in the field of hydrogen
energy is expected to reach US$500 billion by 2030. The World Energy
Council estimates that hydrogen energy may account for up to 25% of
the global end-use energy consumption by 2050, and that hydrogen
energy will account for more than 10% of China’s end-use energy system
by 2050. According to Bloomberg’s forecast, as the price of carbon
keeps rising, it will force steel, cement, petrochemicals and non-ferrous
industries with high carbon emissions to convert to hydrogen energy. In
addition, according to the forecast of State Grid, replacement by electric
power is only suitable for low-level thermal carbon emissions, which
account for approximately 20% in the whole industry, and it is more
appropriate for 80% of thermal energy above 400Tin the industrial
sector to be replaced by hydrogen energy. According to estimates by the
Hydrogen Energy Industry Alliance, the production value of hydrogen
energy industry will reach RMB1 trillion by 2025, in which a large number
of companies with technological innovation will develop and grow. By
2050, hydrogen energy will account for more than 10% of China’s end-
use energy system and the annual production value of the industry chain
will amount to RMB12 trillion, becoming a new growth pole for economic
development.

Corporate Development Strategy

In 2023, the Company’s development strategy will adhere to the
development of both energy equipment supporting and energy asset
management service business and green energy technology development
business. In terms of energy equipment supporting and energy asset
management service business, we will focus on the high-end equipment
manufacturing and digitisation services for shipbuilding and offshore
supporting equipment, and onshore and offshore oil and gas, asset
management services for the pan-energy sector, life-cycle engineering
operation and maintenance and solutions for oil fields, and global supply
chain services. In terms of green energy technology development, we
will focus on integrated construction and engineering services for core
equipment for offshore wind power installation and operation and
maintenance, green energy service facilities, research and development of
green hydrogen production technology and electrolysis tank equipment,
and development of hydrogen energy application scenarios and
technology promotion cooperation, etc.
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BEENWE DN

Our business development strategy for energy equipment supporting
business will continue to focus on high-end energy and shipbuilding
and offshore supporting equipment manufacturing and build a whole
chain of technical services for “design + manufacturing”. We will
provide our customers with core equipment manufacturing and overall
solutions covering onshore and offshore oil, which have assured quality,
independent intellectual property rights and high localization rate. In the
offshore wind power field, we will continue to seize order opportunities
at the close of current wave of offshore wind power boom, and actively
deploy and conduct the research and development and trial production
of offshore wind power operation and maintenance equipment as well
as equipment for other emerging vessels, such as high-end vehicle ro-ro
ships. The Company will maintain its focus on oil and gas hotspots such
as the Mexican market, as well as sales opportunities in the domestic
onshore oil and gas market in terms of rig upgrades and drilling spares.

Our development strategy for energy asset management service is
committed to resuming growth in the traditional business and actively
exploring a new landscape in the renewable energy business. In the
traditional oil and gas sector, we will leverage the strategic opportunity
period of the industry upturn to provide our customers with professional
asset management services, engineering technology services and high-
standard global supply chain management services. In the renewable
energy sector, we will focus on carbon emission reduction technologies,
offshore wind power and hydrogen energy. We will work with our
strategic partners to actively research and reserve the carbon capture,
utilization and storage (CCUS) and offshore floating wind power
technology capabilities, and continue to follow up on offshore wind
power hydrogen production and floating wind power hydrogen
production demonstration projects, so as to lay a solid foundation for
subsequent expansion of deep-sea hydrogen production application
scenarios. We will introduce advanced new energy technologies from
Europe and the United States, and export our new energy equipment
overseas after localization, thereby extending our global supply chain to
the new energy industry.

In the green energy technology development business segment, the
overall business strategy of CMIC Green Hydrogen Technology Co.,
Ltd. CERSRERM(FE)ER A F) ("GHT”) in 2023 will focus on
vigorously promoting marketing and sales, with a view to achieving sales
performance of hydrogen production from electrolytic water system,
hydrogen refueling station compressor heads and assemblies, and
hydrogen refueling station equipment packages as soon as possible, and
giving full play to the unique advantages of international resources and
shareholders’ resources to accelerate the conversion of hydrogen energy
performance. At present, the joint venture between GHT and Tan Kah
Kee Innovation Laboratory will focus on the supply side of the large-
capacity, high-current-density, high-efficiency alkaline electrolytic cells,
striving to produce a demonstration model for application in projects
this year. GHT will also continue to advance projects such as hydrogen
compressors and EPC for hydrogen refueling stations to diversify business
operations. Next, the Company will also strengthen the expansion of
downstream application scenarios. On the one hand, it shall strengthen
exchanges and cooperation with Europe and the United States on new
hydrogen technologies, and on the other hand, through tying in with the
scenario development of China Merchants’ resources, it shall have the
upstream hydrogen production and downstream application scenarios
closely connected to realize an overall layout of the upstream and
downstream industrial chain.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Advantages in Resources of CMIC

1.

CMIC's own advantages in resources

With years of engagement in the oil and gas and offshore industries,
CMIC has addressed many technology and equipment “bottlenecks”
in the industry. It has accumulated experiences in product design,
manufacturing, engineering management and technical support,
leading the industry in the aspects of deck cranes, lifting devices
and electronic control systems, and receiving the long-term trust of
customers thanks to its reliable and efficient quality. CMIC owns a
comprehensive system for production base, production organization
and quality control, which allows rapid commercial production
of new high-end equipment and products. In terms of operation
and maintenance services, CMIC has the capability and experience
in product operation and maintenance in various onshore and
offshore scenarios at home and abroad, which is conducive to the
establishment and improvement of new product operation and
maintenance service system as well as the provision of product
operation and maintenance service support. In terms of marketing,
as CMIC has been operating in Europe, North America, Southeast
Asia, the Middle East and Latin America and other hotspots for
hydrogen energy for years, it has extensive market resources and
customer pipelines to quickly launch international sales of its
products.

Advantages in resources of major shareholder

CM Group, the Company’s major shareholder, is a large integrated
state-owned conglomerate which is principally engaged in three
core industries, namely transportation, finance, and comprehensive
development and operation of cities and parks. In terms of
transportation, the enterprises under China Merchants are involved
in industry, port, shipping, transportation and logistics industries,
which provide diversified application scenarios for the development
of CMIC’s energy equipment supporting, energy asset management
service and green energy technology development businesses. In
the future, CMIC will join hands with its associates to develop and
create more application scenarios to support China Merchants’
transformation to green and low-carbon production mode. In
terms of industry, CMIC will cooperate with CM Industry Group to
vigorously develop shipbuilding and offshore supporting business,
energy asset management service and green energy technology
development businesses, and create continuous order income. In
terms of finance, CM Group has an integrated financial services
platform comprising China Merchants Bank, China Merchants
Leasing, China Merchants Capital and other companies. After
pioneering the innovative model of “industry + finance” jointly
with China Merchants Leasing in the wind power installation vessel
project, CMIC will continue to deepen its cooperation with financial
companies within China Merchants to extend this model to more
projects and further explore more business models. In terms of
comprehensive development and operation of cities and parks, as
a leading land developer in China, CM Group provides integrated
solutions for urban development and industrial upgrading, as well
as diversified products and services covering the entire life cycle of
customers.
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STRATEGY AND PROSPECTS

Market Review

Looking back on 2022, we saw a boom in the oil and gas industry. Energy
demand has soared as countries lifted quarantine restriction measures
and opened their economies to the outside world early this year. This
trend was exacerbated by the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine conflict,
which pushed the price of crude oil to US$130 per barrel. Although in the
second half of the year, we saw a fall in oil prices growth as major central
banks tightened monetary policies, oil prices remained largely above
US$80 per barrel throughout 2022, much higher than the average of the
last five years. Meanwhile, the price of European natural gas also reached
a record €339/MWh in August due to the Russia-Ukraine conflict, more
than 10 times the price of the same period last year.

In 2022, certain macro, geopolitical, supply and demand factors in the
crude oil market exerted a tremendous influence on oil prices, which
significantly fluctuated by up to 60% during the year. In the first half of
the year, oil prices were generally on the rise, from a gradual climb to an
accelerated upward trend, followed by a second peak after a fall; in the
second half of the year, oil prices leaped high then declined for times,
and mainly fluctuated within a wide range. Specifically, in the second
quarter, with the gradual escalation of sanctions against Russia by Europe
and the United States, the EU discussed and determined the embargo
on Russian oil, and geopolitical factors once again drove oil prices up. In
the third quarter, the expected reduction in Russian oil production failed,
and Russian oil shifted its crude oil export target from the Western to
the Eastern countries through discounted sales and a change in exported
countries. At the same time, due to a confluence of macro factors and
under high inflation caused by oil price hiking, central banks in Europe
and the United States entered a tightening cycle and began to raise
interest rates sharply, leading to a fallback of overseas economies,
sluggish demand and cooled supply-side concerns. As higher oil prices
dampened consumption, major institutions have been lowering their
demand forecasts for 2022 since July. In the end, the recovery of crude
oil market demand in 2022 was generally around 1 million barrels per day
lower than expected at the beginning of the year, and the crack spread
of refined oil products began to fall from its high level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overall, oil and gas prices continued to run high in 2022, triggering a
rapid recovery in the drilling industry. According to Clarkson, global
drilling rig demand increased by 12% to 528 rigs from January to
November 2022, well ahead of pre-pandemic levels. The utilisation rate of
drilling rigs rose to 87%, representing an increase of 7 percentage points
throughout the year, back to the level in April 2015. The two traditional
hotspots in the offshore rig market made further progress. The Middle
East saw a record 45 tenders for drilling rig leases this year, while South
America saw a 43% increase in the average day rate for floating drilling
rigs to US$350,000 per day at the end of the year due to robust drilling
demand. Such recovery was not the only story in the offshore drilling rig
market, as the onshore drilling rig market also saw a rapid recovery in
2022. As of 23 December, the number of active onshore oil drilling rigs in
the United States reached 622, representing a cumulative increase of 141
rigs during the year, back to the average level of the past five years.

2022 was another year in which the offshore wind power market
recorded a strong growth, with orders for new wind power vessels hitting
a record high. According to Clarkson’s latest report, 2022 marked a
record year for investment in newly-built dedicated wind power vessels
(wind turbine installation vessels, operation and maintenance vessels and
personnel transfer vessels). Among them, a record 25 new wind turbine
installation vessels (WTIVs) were ordered, an increase of 9% year-on-year,
with total investment estimated at US$4.1 billion, an increase of 32%
year-on-year. With the increase in wind turbine size, all WTIVs ordered
in 2022 will be equipped with cranes of no less than or equal to 1,200
tonnes SWL.

According to Clarkson, Chinese shipowners accounted for the majority
of WTIVs orders last year, with 21 vessels ordered, and the demand is
expected to increase further by the end of 2025. And certain European
shipowners, including Cadeler, were also ordering new vessels.
In addition, the sector continued to attract new companies, with
Maersk Supply Service placing its first order for WTIVs last year. In the
Commissioning Service Operation Vessel (CSOV) field, on the other hand,
a record 24 new vessels were ordered last year as well, an increase of
60% year-on-year. Order activities for CSOVs were particularly strong,
with 20 new vessels ordered for the year. It is worth noting that all CSOVs
ordered last year will be battery-equipped, and Windcat also ordered two
hydrogen-powered dual-fuel CSOVs. Meanwhile, the wind power vessels
market was further improved in 2022. The global average WTIV fleet
utilisation rate of 69% in 2022, down by 14 percentage points year-on-
year due to slower activities in China. Despite this, the average WTIV fleet
utilisation rate in Europe increased by 11 percentage points to 84% and
even reached 93% throughout the summer. As a result, the daily rent for
the third generation WTIV for the third quarter of 2022 was assessed at
€172,500, an increase of 6% year-on-year.
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Looking ahead, Clarkson expects more than US$26 billion to be invested
globally in building new offshore wind power vessels from now until the
end of 2028, including US$21 billion for 70 WTIVs and a further US$5
billion for 90 CSOVs and transshipment vessels. In particular, China is
expected to remain the dominant standalone market though Clarkson
believes that other hotspots will be drivers of investment as well. Western
and Northern Europe will continue to be major areas of demand for
WTIVs, with over 7,000 wind power generating units expected to be
installed across Europe by the end of 2030. Emerging industry markets
such as the United States will also require a large number of vessels.

In terms of vessel supply, among the new WTIVs and floating wind
turbine base installation vessels (FIVs) and barges currently active in
China, only 36 vessels are capable of installing 8=10MW wind turbine
infrastructures, of which five are capable of installing 15-16MW wind
turbines but not 18MW wind turbines. Analysts predict that the Chinese
offshore wind power market will require around ten large wind turbine
and base installation vessels over the next decade, which means that at
least five to ten more large vessels will be needed.

The “Global Hydrogen Energy Review 2022" released by the International
Energy Agency (IEA) reports that the development of hydrogen energy
industry has been further accelerated by net-zero emission commitments
by various countries and the global energy crisis. Currently, hydrogen
energy has been widely regarded as an important option to achieve
the goal of addressing climate changes. According to the data, global
demand for hydrogen energy grew further to 94 million tonnes in 2021
(with an annual average of more than 1.6% increase over the last two
years), accounting for around 2.5% of the total global end-use energy
consumption. Based on the proactive policies and measures in place by
governments, the IEA estimates that global demand for hydrogen energy
could reach 115 million tonnes per year by 2030. In reality, however, to
meet the climate commitments made by governments to date, the world
will need approximately 130 million tonnes of hydrogen per year by 2030.
To achieve net-zero emissions by 2050, the world would need nearly 200
million tonnes of hydrogen per year by 2030.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Green hydrogen is the ultimate ideal in terms of the hydrogen production
market. Hydrogen production is a prerequisite for the utilisation of
hydrogen energy, which can be classified as grey, blue or green hydrogen
according to its carbon footprint. China is the world’s largest hydrogen
production country, with an annual production of approximately 33
million tonnes of hydrogen, of which approximately 12 million tonnes
meet industrial hydrogen quality standards. In terms of hydrogen
production, fossil-based hydrogen production and industrial by-product
hydrogen are the main sources of hydrogen production in China, while
solar energy and biomass-based hydrogen production are at the research
and demonstration stage. The use of renewable energy for electrolytic
hydrogen production is currently the only way to produce green hydrogen
on a large scale. At present, the green hydrogen market only accounts
for approximately 1% of hydrogen production market. With enhanced
carbon emission constraints, increased technology maturity and improved
infrastructures, the green hydrogen market is expected to account for 7%
of hydrogen production market and exceed 2 million tonnes by 2025.

Hydrogen production from electrolytic water technology using hydrogen
as energy storage carrier is an important development direction for the
future energy storage industry. According to the “Hydrogen Production
from Electrolytic Water Project Database in the PRC" (/R B & fi# 7K
HIEIER 84EE)) of Gao Gong Industry Research Institute (GGlI),
the total hydrogen capacity of hydrogen production from electrolytic
water projects under construction and as planned publicly in the PRC
has reached 12.1GW since 2022, with 98.5% being renewable energy
hydrogen production projects in terms of the source of electricity.
Specifically, installed capacity of 1,327MW and 4,716MW are planned
to be completed by 2023 and 2024 respectively, bringing the domestic
hydrogen production from electrolytic water equipment market into a
blowout development.

To seize the market opportunity, domestic companies with hydrogen
production from electrolytic water equipment, including veteran players
and new forces, have been expanding their production capacity. As of
December 2022, there were more than 40 manufacturers with hydrogen
production from electrolytic water equipment with real production
capacity in the PRC, with a total nominal capacity of 12GW, according to
GGll. Players in the industry continue to expand their production capacity
in view of positive outlook for the future market.
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In terms of the hydrogen refueling stations market, China has the world’s
largest number of hydrogen refueling stations and is experiencing rapid
development. Although some hydrogen energy construction projects
in the PRC were behind schedule in 2022 due to the epidemic, the
number of new hydrogen refueling stations grew rapidly. By the end
of 2022, more than 340 hydrogen refueling stations have been built in
China, an increase of 46% year-on-year, including 106 stations built
in 2022, an increase of 8% year-on-year. Based on the “Roadmap 2.0
for the Technology of Energy Conservation and New Energy Vehicles”,
China aims to have 1,000 hydrogen refueling stations by 2025 and over
5,000 between 2030 and 2035. According to statistics and the relevant
hydrogen energy policies issued by 28 provinces and cities in the PRC,
there will be a total of more than 1,960 planned hydrogen refueling
stations by 2025, which far exceeds the target of 1,000 hydrogen
refueling stations set by the roadmap 2.0 above.

Strategy and Prospects

In 2023, the Company will be positioned as a “technology-based
international company engaged in oil and gas energy and green energy
industries”, aiming to realise the dual-driven development of fossil energy
business and new energy business.

By virtue of the steady development of its energy equipment supporting
and energy asset management service business, the Company will take
full advantages on the offshore technology, market and talents by
integrating upstream and downstream resources, actively participate
in the investment in new energy, such as global wind power, wave
power, hydrogen energy, smart electrical automation control, etc. and
manufacturing technology industries, focus on new energy businesses
such as shipbuilding and offshore supporting, offshore wind power and
hydrogen energy, and proactively explore and deploy new businesses.
The Company will implement its development strategies in the following
aspects:

In respect of energy asset management service business, the Company’s
business developed smoothly in 2022. The leases of the 2 drilling rigs
under the management of the Company were successfully fulfilled, and
the services were highly praised by customers. In 2023, the Company
will continue to seek opportunities to integrate the performing assets
of offshore engineering and further expand and develop the offshore
light asset management business. For global hot markets, the Company
will continue to adapt to the market situation by integrating internal
resources and market-oriented means, create more updated cooperation
models, and strengthen asset management business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of energy equipment supporting, while continuing to strengthen
the sales of drilling rigs in China, the Company will also expand the
application and model innovation of high-end equipment in the offshore
deep-water wind power field. The Company will keep a close eye on
opportunities from hot markets, especially the Mexican market, as well as
the domestic onshore oil and gas market, and seize project opportunities
such as rig reconstruction, sales of drilling equipment and spare parts.
The Company will continue to conduct surveys on market and product
demand, increase investment in research and development, and seek
actively to cooperate with large state-owned enterprises with good credit
by adopting flexible business models such as “lease and sale” or “financial
leasing”, so as to improve profits and generate continuous cash inflows.
In the field of wind power, the Company will start from the 1,600 tonnes
wind power installation vessels project, closely seize market opportunities,
build leading crane, lifting equipment and ship-wide power control
products in China as well as the world, and cooperate with CM Industry
to build branded marine products of China Merchants with independent
intellectual property right, so as to enhance the core competitiveness of
the overall market.

From 2016 to the end of 2022, the policies related to hydrogen energy
and hydrogen fuel cells issued at the national level will be promoted
by about 40 highly relevant documents, which will orderly progress
the trillion-dollar hydrogen energy market. Based on CMIC's high-end
equipment manufacturing capabilities and experience, the Company
will give priority to the upstream green hydrogen production, identify
all issues under the overall layout of the industrial chain, leverage on its
own advantages and resources, integrate external technologies with the
Company’s existing production capacity and management experience,
and shine a brighter spotlight on the strategic cooperation with social
capital. Meanwhile, by leveraging the advantages of major shareholders
and related resources in respect of application scenarios, the Company
will able to explore the core parts of the industry and solve industry pain
points. Subsequently, the Company will also strengthen the expansion of
downstream application scenarios, and form an internal resource synergy
with numerous ports, industrial parks, logistics parks and highways of CM
Group. At the same time, by serving the hydrogen refueling station as
a hub, the upstream hydrogen production and downstream application
scenarios are closely connected to realize the overall layout of the
upstream and downstream industrial chain.

In 2023, the Company will continue to strengthen collaboration with
strategic shareholders and business partners including CM Group, China
International Machine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. (“CIMC"), China
State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited (“CSSC"), etc., not only to
"leverage” resources to open channels, but also to “assist” the common
development of the industry. The Company will also seek collaborative
development opportunities in terms of rig asset disposal, rig asset leasing
lease and sales, business development in wind power market, equipment
sales, project financing, expansion in the application scenarios of
hydrogen energy etc.
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In 2023, the Company will continue to strengthen works in terms
of brand building and investor relations, improve the Company’s
Internet external window channels, update and strengthen the brand
positioning of “green energy technology”. The Company will enhance
the maintenance of investor relations and market value management,
strengthen the connection between the Company and investors through
regular strategy presentations, video conferences, roadshows, etc., and
strive to achieve positive interaction and development.

PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ASSETS AND
CAPITAL INTEGRATION

In terms of future investment direction, the Company will focus on
opportunities of investment in high-tech and digital applications including
design, manufacturing, and research and development of high-end
energy equipment. Based on the existing energy asset service business,
the Company will also seek potential opportunities to expand energy
asset service business projects, proactively deploy and carry out R&D and
trial production of operation and maintenance equipment for offshore
wind power and other emerging ships, such as shipbuilding and offshore
supporting equipment including high-end car ro-ro equipment. The
Company will continue to expand its investment in the whole industry
chain of hydrogen energy industry, seeking opportunities for investment
and integration in high-value key segments such as green hydrogen
production, fuel cells, hydrogen compressors and offshore hydrogen
production.

In assessing the potential investment or acquisition targets, the Company
will consider a combination of factors such as alignment with the Group's
strategic plans, synergies, market position and strengths, management
team capability, valuation, track record, financial performance and
potential growth. The Company will gradually improve its financial
performance by expanding its business direction and creating a new
profit model, so as to provide a firm basis for future growth in results.

SHARE AWARD PLANS

2015 Share Award Plan
The Company adopted a share award plan (the “2015 Share Award
Plan”) on 16 January 2015 (the “2015 Plan Adoption Date”).

Purpose
The purpose of the 2015 Share Award Plan is to recognise and award the
contributions of the 2015 Plan Eligible Persons (as defined below).

Participants

The remuneration committee of the Company may, in its absolute
discretion, make an award to any employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Group (excluding any directors and any core connected
persons of the Company) (the “2015 Plan Eligible Persons”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Scheme Mandate

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) that may be
purchased and held by the trustee of the 2015 Share Award Plan in order
to satisfy the outstanding awards from time to time made under the
2015 Share Award Plan should not exceed 3% of the total issued Shares
at the 2015 Plan Adoption Date (i.e. 21,147,456 Shares) (the “2015 Plan
Limit”). The 2015 Plan Limit represents approximately 0.65% of the total
issued Shares as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
No maximum entitlement of each 2015 Plan Eligible Person is specified
under the 2015 Share Award Plan.

Exercise period

As the 2015 Share Award Plan is a share award plan of the Company
instead of a share option scheme, the awards granted under the 2015
Share Award Plan are not subject to any exercise period nor are the 2015
Plan Eligible Persons entitled to any exercise rights.

Vesting period

The awards to be made under the 2015 Share Award Plan shall be
subject to such vesting conditions and periods as may be determined by
the Company.

Subscription/purchase price

No subscription/purchase price is payable by the 2015 Plan Eligible
Persons upon acceptance of awards granted under the 2015 Share Award
Plan.

Term
Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the 2015 Share
Award Plan, the 2015 Share Award Plan will remain in force for a period
commencing on the 2015 Plan Adoption Date and ending on 15 January
2025.

Movement and position

There was no unvested award granted to the 2015 Plan Eligible Persons
under the 2015 Share Award Plan as at 1 January 2022. No award
was granted under the 2015 Share Award Plan for the year ended 31
December 2022. Accordingly, there was (i) no unvested award granted to
the 2015 Plan Eligible Persons under the 2015 Share Award Plan as at 31
December 2022; and (ii) no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the
2015 Share Award Plan during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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2019 Share Award Plan
The Company adopted a share award plan (the “2019 Share Award
Plan”) on 31 October 2019 (the “2019 Plan Adoption Date”).

Purpose
The purpose of the 2019 Share Award Plan is to recognise and reward
the contribution of the 2019 Plan Eligible Persons (as defined below)
towards the growth and development of the Group through the award
of Shares.

Participants

The administration committee (which is delegated with the power and
authority by the Board to administer the 2019 Share Award Plan) may,
in its absolute discretion, make an award to any employee (whether full
time or part time) of the Group, including directors, senior management
and any other connected persons of the Company and any consultant of
the Group (the “2019 Plan Eligible Persons”).

Scheme Mandate

The total number of Shares that may be purchased and held by the
trustee of the 2019 Share Award Plan in order to satisfy the outstanding
awards from time to time made under the 2019 Share Award Plan should
not exceed 3% of the total issued Shares at the 2019 Plan Adoption Date
(i.e. 88,389,372 Shares) (the “2019 Plan Limit”). The 2019 Plan Limit
represents approximately 2.73% of the total issued Shares as at the date
of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
No maximum entitlement of each 2019 Plan Eligible Person is specified
under the 2019 Share Award Plan.

Exercise period

As the 2019 Share Award Plan is a share award plan of the Company
instead of a share option scheme, the awards granted under the 2019
Share Award Plan are not subject to any exercise period nor are the 2019
Plan Eligible Persons entitled to any exercise rights.

Vesting period

The awards to be made under the 2019 Share Award Plan shall be
subject to such vesting conditions and periods as may be determined by
the Company.

Subscription/purchase price

No subscription/purchase price is payable by the 2019 Plan Eligible
Persons upon acceptance of awards granted under the 2019 Share Award
Plan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Term

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the 2019 Share
Award Plan, the 2019 Share Award Plan will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on the 2019 Plan Adoption Date and ending on
30 October 2029.

Movement and position

There was no unvested award granted to the 2019 Plan Eligible Persons
under the 2019 Share Award Plan as at 1 January 2022. No award
was granted under the 2019 Share Award Plan for the year ended 31
December 2022. Accordingly, there was (i) no unvested award granted to
the 2019 Plan Eligible Persons under the 2019 Share Award Plan as at 31
December 2022; and (ii) no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the
2019 Share Award Plan during the year ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE AWARD INCENTIVE SCHEME

A share award incentive scheme (the “Share Award Incentive Scheme")
of the Company was adopted by way of ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2016 (the “Incentive
Scheme Adoption Date”).

Purpose

The purposes of the Share Award Incentive Scheme are (i) to align the
interests of the Incentive Scheme Eligible Persons (as defined below) with
those of the Group through ownership of Shares, dividends and other
distributions paid on Shares and/or the increase in value of the Shares;
and (i) to encourage and retain Incentive Scheme Eligible Persons (as
defined below) to make contributions to the long-term growth and
profits of the Group.

Participants

The persons eligible to participate in the Share Award Incentive Scheme
are any individual, being any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any affiliate (who is not a
connected person of the Company), officer, consultant or advisor of any
member of the Group or any affiliate (who is not a connected person of
the Company) who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Incentive Scheme
Eligible Persons”).

Scheme Mandate

The total number of new Shares underlying all grants made pursuant
to the Share Award Incentive Scheme shall not exceed 3% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the Incentive Scheme Adoption Date (i.e.
21,213,606 Shares) (the “Incentive Scheme Limit”). The Incentive Scheme
Limit was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2016. The Incentive
Scheme Limit represents approximately 0.65% of the total issued Shares
as at the date of this report.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant
No maximum entitlement of each Incentive Scheme Eligible Person is
specified under the Share Award Incentive Scheme.

Exercise period

As the Share Award Incentive Scheme is a share award plan of the
Company instead of a share option scheme, the awards granted under
the Share Award Incentive Scheme are not subject to any exercise period
nor are the Incentive Scheme Eligible Persons entitled to any exercise
rights.

Vesting period

The Board shall determine from time to time such vesting criteria and
conditions or periods for the award to be vested under the Share Award
Incentive Scheme.

Subscription/purchase price

No subscription/purchase price is payable by the Incentive Scheme Eligible
Persons upon acceptance of awards granted under the Share Award
Incentive Scheme.

Term

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the Share
Award Incentive Scheme, the Share Award Incentive Scheme shall be
valid and effective for 10 years from the Incentive Scheme Adoption Date
and ending on 26 May 2026.

Movement and position

No award was granted made under the Share Award Incentive Scheme
since its adoption and hence no Shares may be issued under the Share
Award Incentive Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Accordingly, (i) there was no unvested award granted to the Incentive
Scheme Eligible Persons under the Share Award Incentive Scheme as at 1
January 2022; (ii) no award was granted under the Share Award Incentive
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2022; and (iii) there was (a) no
unvested award granted to the Incentive Scheme Eligible Persons under
the Share Award Incentive Scheme as at 31 December 2022; and (b)
no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Award Incentive
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022.

21,213,606 awards and 21,213,606 awards were available for grant
under the Incentive Scheme Limit as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December
2022, respectively.

Amendments to Listing Rules relating to share scheme of listed issuers
became effective on 1 January 2023. As provided under the transitional
arrangements, the Company can continue to make grants to participants
eligible under the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules under existing
schemes until refreshment or expiry of the existing scheme mandates.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Director

BITES

EEREREERE

Mr. YU Zhiliang, aged 54, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Board with effect from 9 December
2022, and re-designated as an executive Director and appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company (“CEO") on 24 March 2023.
He is the deputy general manager (with general manager ranking) of
China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd, a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Yu served as the staff member and deputy principal
staff member of Guangdong Province Electric Engineering Industry
Department (EERA = T4 T 3E2) from July 1991 to May 1997; the
deputy principal staff member and principal staff member of the Science
and Technology Department of the Economy and Trade Committee of
Guangdong Province (FEER & & & Z) and the principal staff member and
deputy director of the Technological Progress and Equipment Department
of the Economy and Trade Committee of Guangdong Province (fE5
EIEEZ) successively from May 1997 to June 2004; a deputy director
and director of the Planning and Development Division of the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Guangdong
Province from June 2004 to August 2008; a deputy general manager
of Guangdong Steel Group Company Limited (EBHRHEHEEHR A7)
from August 2008 to December 2010; a director and general manager
of Guangdong Guangye Assets Management Co., Ltd. (ER & EXEE
KEAETR A A]) from December 2010 to September 2016; the president
of Guangdong Guangye Assets Management Co., Ltd. (BER& EXEE
L EHBRAR]) from September 2016 to March 2017; the president of
Guangdong Guangye Group Co., Ltd. from March 2017 to January 2019;
and the head of the Environmental Industry Preparatory Division of CM
Group from January 2019 to December 2020. Mr. Yu obtained a degree
of Master of Business Administration from South China University of
Technology in 2001 and a doctorate degree in management specialising
in Management Science and Engineering from South China University of
Technology in 2004.

REREE 5458  CEREZTRAFERNTEETRES
xR A_ZT-_—_F+_ANBEEKR TR=
- At UBRATANTEEREREA
RKRREEATE(EENTE]D - BEEARQF]
ERREBEBIEEB AR QA ALE (BK
BR) RAEER—NAN—FtRAE—AAtFRA
EEERAESTHEMIX¥ERE  3EZFRE8 : —
AMNEtFRAZ_ZTNFENARTERELER
MEERETIRE TARE  BERELEZRE
EXREFEEFARE  BER: ZTTHEFAA
EEEN\FNATEEREBREZREBRREEEER
R B ZZEZNFNAZ_ZE—ZF+-AF
ERMBEEFSRAFBRKE : —_T—FF+=
REZZ—XR"ENATEREELXEAELEEARD
AEERAKE T —RFLAE-_T—tF=
AAEREEXEELERBRARESER : —Z8—
+tF=REZE-NF-ATEREEXEBRMD
ERRAAEER  —E—NWF—AZ-_FT_FTF+
“TARBERSERREXEHRERERA - REAE
R FHESEFEIAEZTIHEREELTHE
By —ETNFESEREIASEENBHET
PREEEEEBEL B -

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA

41



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSREEE

Non-executive Directors

FHITES
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Mr. MEI Xianzhi, aged 43, is a senior engineer. He has been appointed
as a non-executive Director with effect from 6 June 2022. He is also
the deputy general manager of China Merchants Industry Holdings Co.,
Ltd., the controlling shareholder of the Company. From July 2002 to
November 2011, Mr. Mei served as a technician, supervisor, ship repairing
manager and deputy manager of the engineering department of Yiu
Lian Dockyards (Shekou) Limited; he successively served as the project
manager, manager of production management department and assistant
to the general manager of China Merchants Heavy Industry (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. from November 2011 to February 2015; he served as the deputy
general manager of China Merchants Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.
from February 2015 to May 2018; the leader of the cruise construction
preparatory team of China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd. from
May to October 2018; the general manager of China Merchants Cruise
Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. from October 2018 to October 2019; the general
manager of China Merchants Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. and
China Merchants Cruise Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. from October 2019 to
February 2020; the assistant to the general manager of China Merchants
Industry Holdings Co., Ltd., and the general manager of both China
Merchants Heavy Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. and China Merchants Cruise
Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. from February 2020 to December 2021. Mr. Mei
has been the assistant to the general manager of China Merchants
Industry Holdings Co., Ltd. since January 2022 to date. Mr. Mei has many
years of experience in the manufacturing and management of super-
large vessels and core equipment for green environmental protection,
which will help the Company in its transformation and development of
expanding green energy technology businesses such as offshore wind
power and hydrogen energy. Mr. Mei obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in marine power plant from the School of Thermal Energy and Power
Engineering of Wuhan University of Technology in 2002 and a master’s
degree in management science and engineering from Zhejiang University
in 2012.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGREEE

Mr. LIU Jiancheng, aged 47, a senior engineer. He has been appointed
as a non-executive Director with effect from 23 September 2021. He is
currently serves as the general manager of the science and technology
development department of China Merchants Industry Holdings Co.,
Ltd.. He served as a technician of Guangzhou Shipyard International
Co., Ltd. from 2000 to 2001 and an engineer of Singapore Keppel FELS
from 2001 to 2006. He successively served as the technical supervisor,
design manager and deputy chief engineer of China Merchants Heavy
Industry (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2013, and the deputy chief
engineer and chief engineer of China Merchants Heavy Industry (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to 2017. Mr. LIU served as the deputy general
manager of China Merchants Heavy Industry (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and
Yiu Lian Dockyards (Shekou) Limited from 2018 to 2019 and the general
manager of China Merchants Offshore Technology Research Center from
2019 to 2021. Mr. LIU obtained a master’s degree in ships and offshore
engineering from Jiangsu University of Science and Technology in 2018
and a bachelor’s degree in shipbuilding engineering from East China
Shipbuilding Institute in 2000.
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Mr. ZHAN Huafeng, aged 38, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and the Vice President of the Company with effect from 24
March 2023. Mr. Zhan is currently the deputy general manager of Youlian
Shipyard Co., Ltd.* (REGEMEBBR A A]). He served at China Merchants
Industry Holdings Co., Ltd. successively from 2018 to 2022 with last
position as office directors. Mr. Zhan worked at China Merchants Heavy
Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.* (FBEBEL(CLE)BR A A and China
Merchants Cruise Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.* (BB BEiREEER A F)
successively from 2013 to 2019 with last position as director of human
resources department; and at Youlian Shipyard (Shekou) Co., Ltd.* (/=B
AR (82 1) BPRAE]) successively from 2008 to 2018 with last position
as assistant to the manager of the human resources department.
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Ms. FU Rui, aged 41, is an intermediate economist. She was appointed
as a non-executive Director with effect from 1 June 2019. Since June
2016, she has been the deputy general manager of the asset operations
department of the shipping investment management headquarters of
China Minsheng Trust Co., Ltd. From April 2007 to June 2016, She
worked in the president office of China Classification Society. Ms. Fu
obtained a bachelor’s and master’s degree in Maritime Law from the Law
School of Dalian Maritime University, in 2004 and 2007, respectively.
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EENRSREEE

Mr. WANG lJianzhong, aged 49, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director with effect from 4 July 2016. He graduated from Beijing Normal
University in China with a master’s degree in Management and Business
Administration in 1998. He started working in 1998 and he is currently
the president of CIMC Raffles Offshore (Singapore) Limited (“CIMC
Raffles”). From 1998 to 2006, he was a senior manager of capital
operation department of China Ocean Shipping (Group) Corporation
("COSCO"). From 2006 to 2007, he was a deputy general manager
of Taicang CIMC Container Co., Ltd. From 2007 to 2014, he was the
general manager of the enterprise management department of CIMC,
where he notably created and promoted the CIMC “LEAN ONE”
management model based on the LEAN concept which significantly
improved the group’s annual revenue. The LEAN ONE Concept attracted
favourable reviews from the “Harvard Business Review” and “Tsinghua
Business Review"”. From 2010 to 2014, he acted as the secretary general
of group leadership council of CIMC (FEEEBEFARBEEZER) to
promote upgraded changes for CIMC. From June 2014 to December
2015, he was the vice president of CIMC Raffles. From December 2015
to date, he has been the president of CIMC Raffles. From January 2019
to date, he has been the president of CIMC Offshore Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan, aged 64, is a co-founder of the
Company and has been appointed as an executive Director since
18 March 2005, and re-designated as a non-executive Director and
appointed as President of Overseas Affairs of the Company on 24 March
2023. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He obtained his bachelor’s degree majoring in drilling engineering from
China University of Petroleum in 1982 and acquired his master’s degree
in petroleum engineering from University of Alaska-Fairbanks in the
U.S.A. in 1989 and he received an executive master’'s degree in business
administration from China Europe International Business School in 2012.
He has over 40 years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Prior to
founding the Company, he worked for a subsidiary of China National
Petroleum Corporation in China and for Cook Inlet Region Inc. in
Alaska. He is currently a member of several oil industry associations and
professional organizations including the Society of Petroleum Engineers
and the American Drilling Engineers.
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EENRGREEE

Mr. JIANG Bing Hua, aged 72, is a co-founder of the Company and
has been appointed as an executive Director since 18 March 2005 and
re-designated as a non-executive Director and appointed as a senior
consultant of the Company on 24 March 2023. He was once the Co-
Chairman and the CEO of the Company. He was responsible for the
Company’s overall strategy planning and business development. He is
also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained
his bachelor’s degree in offshore structure engineering from Tianjin
University (K32 K2 in the PRC in 1980 and acquired his master's
degree in business administration from University of Dallas in the U.S.A.
in 1993. He has over 50 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
Prior to founding the Company, he worked for the Sinopec Group, the
China National Petroleum Corporation and China National Offshore Oil
Corporation in various positions such as driller, drilling superintendent,
drilling manager, operation manager and company representative.

Independent Non-executive Directors
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Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny, aged 58, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since October 2005. He is a partner
and founder of Kenny Chan & Co., a firm of certified public accountants.
He has over 30 years' experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and
corporate finance and has been involved in several mergers, acquisitions
and initial public offering projects. He holds a bachelor of commerce
degree from the University of New South Wales and is a member of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand, the Association of
International Accountants, CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He served as president of the Hong Kong Branch of the Association of
International Accountants in the years 2012-2015. He is an independent
non-executive director of Zhongyuan Bank Co., Ltd., Minsheng Education
Group Company Limited, Pak Tak International Limited, and Hebei
Construction Group Corporation Limited, all listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. ZOU Zhendong, aged 53, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since May 2018. He also serves as an independent
director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd., an A share company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, a senior partner of Sinowing Law LLP, a
senior consultant of Sinowing (Beijing) AMC Co., Ltd., and further and
concurrently as a member of the High-tech and E-Commerce Committee
& International Business Committee of All China Lawyers Association.
Mr. Zou served as a staff member of the Chinese People’s Association
for Friendship with Foreign Countries, as a staff member of China Native
Produce & Animal By-Products Import & Export Corp., as the director of
the 4th Department for China Commercial Foreign Trade Corporation,
and as the partner in charge of international business department and
intellectual property department for Beijing Dacheng Law Firm (also
known as Dentons). Mr. Zou was awarded a bachelor’s degree by the
Renmin University of China in 1992, with major in international politics
and minor in international economics. Mr. Zou was jointly elected by the
Ministry of Justice of the People’s Republic of China and Lord Chancellor’s
Office of the United Kingdom to work and train in London.

MIRMELE 530 BT \ERAREZIEA
BYUFRITES - WEMNTEER LEISFSM
EmeARARBIIERROERAGNEIESE
IEEmAEEMEEANSREZ A © Sinowing
(Beijing) AMC Co., Ltd. A= AR BERS - oM R RIRF - 18
EATELBEEMBeER R REFEKEEES
(High-tech and E-Commerce Committee) X Bl BX %75
Z B € (International Business Committee)& & o Zf 5k
GFEEERPREARINREBEEERE PR
EEEEHOBLRRET FEIINEERAAINE
F B UA Sedb R K £ B 5 765 T B B S5 7S 0 e AN
EBHEBEAEBA - PEER—NNZFERPEH
ARRBELTZM - TBRERBUGE - BEBERL
BEE o BREREARENMBE AL REEXEE
MAEHEHER - PRELGRRATERT -

46

Mr. CHEN Weidong, aged 67, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from June 2018. Mr. Chen has over
30 years of experience in the offshore oil and gas industry. He supervised
and organised the publication of four books on petroleum economics
and geopolitics. Mr. Chen is now serving as guest professor at Renmin
University of China, invited researcher at Energy Security Center of
Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, dean of Minde
Institute and chair of DFS Energy Consultant (Beijing) Ltd. Mr. Chen used
to work as chief energy researcher of CNOOC Energy Economics Institute,
executive vice president, secretary of board of directors, and chief
strategy officer of China Qilfield Services Limited (a H-share company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from 2002, stock code:
2883). Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in geophysical exploration
studies from Ocean University of China (formerly as Shandong College of
Oceanology) in the People’s Republic of China in 1982 and an MBA from
Peking University in July 2001. He graduated from China University of
Political Science and Law with a master diploma in July 2005.
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Mr. SUN Dongchang, aged 69, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 12 November 2019. He is currently a
professor-level senior engineer of Shengli Petroleum Administration
Bureau (B5FI/AHEE D), oil field senior expert, expert on government
special allowance of the State Council, senior expert of the Drilling
Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (57l
FIMEIE B T EA7ER), and consultant of State Oil Drilling and
Exploitation Equipment and Tool Standardization Committee (% &/
B ET T AZ%R({Z B ). He was the deputy secretary general
of Chinese Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers during
the period from 2003 to 2013. During the period from 2001 to 2013,
he served as a professor-level senior engineer, the chief engineer, the
vice president and an oil field senior expert at the Drilling Technology
Institute, Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (/i & 12 /= #
T ##35Ft). During the period from 1996 to 2001, he served as a senior
engineer and the chief engineer at the Drilling Technology Institute,
Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (5% /A hE 12 /2 #& H T & 47
7£F%). During the period from 1987 to 1996, he worked as an engineer,
senior engineer and the director at the Marine Research Branch of Drilling
Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (B 745
B2 HE I TEM I8 FFT). During the period from 1975 to 1987,
he worked as a technician, assistant engineer and the deputy director at
the Shallow Sea Office of Drilling Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum
Administration Bureau (B A BEEREH TEMARZEE). Mr
Sun holds a degree majoring in oil field equipment from Department of
Mechanics, China University of Petroleum and a master’s degree in naval
architecture and ocean engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
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Senior Management
BREEE

Mr. YU Zhiliang, aged 54, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Board with effect from 9 December
2022, and then re-designated to an executive Director and appointed
as the CEO with effect from 24 March 2023. He is the deputy general
manager (with general manager ranking) of China Merchants Industry
Holdings Co., Ltd, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Yu served as the staff member and deputy principal staff member of
Guangdong Province Electric Engineering Industry Department (&5
BB FHN T %EE) from July 1991 to May 1997; the deputy principal
staff member and principal staff member of the Science and Technology
Department of the Economy and Trade Committee of Guangdong
Province (BHR A & Z X) and the principal staff member and deputy
director of the Technological Progress and Equipment Department of
the Economy and Trade Committee of Guangdong Province (&R & &
B %) successively from May 1997 to June 2004; a deputy director and
director of the Planning and Development Division of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Guangdong
Province from June 2004 to August 2008; a deputy general manager
of Guangdong Steel Group Company Limited (&R &% E AR A7)
from August 2008 to December 2010; a director and general manager
of Guangdong Guangye Assets Management Co., Ltd. (BR&EEEEE
LB B R /AF]) from December 2010 to September 2016; the president
of Guangdong Guangye Assets Management Co., Ltd. (ER&EEEE
ELEHBRAT]) from September 2016 to March 2017; the president
of Guangdong Guangye Group Co., Ltd. from March 2017 to January
2019; and the head of the Environmental Industry Preparatory Division of
China Merchants Group from January 2019 to December 2020. Mr. Yu
obtained a degree of Master of Business Administration from South China
University of Technology in 2001 and a doctorate degree in management
specialising in Management Science and Engineering from South China
University of Technology in 2004.
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Mr. ZHAN Huafeng, aged 38, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and the Vice President of the Company with effect from 24
March 2023. Mr. Zhan is currently the deputy general manager of Youlian
Shipyard Co., Ltd.* (REGEMEEBBR A A]). He served at China Merchants
Industry Holdings Co., Ltd. successively from 2018 to 2022 with last
position as office directors. Mr. Zhan worked at China Merchants Heavy
Industry (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.* (FBEBEILCLE)BR A A and China
Merchants Cruise Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.* (BB BEHREER L F)
successively from 2013 to 2019 with last position as director of human
resources department; and at Youlian Shipyard (Shekou) Co., Ltd.* (/B
WE (e 0) B R A F]) successively from 2008 to 2018 with last position
as assistant to the manager of the human resources department.
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Mr. WANG Yong, aged 59, has been the President of the Company
with effect from 28 April 2016 and has been re-designated as the
Vice President of the Company on 24 March 2023. He is responsible
for the daily operations and business activities of the Company. He is
also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He joined
the Company in April 2012 as the senior Company Vice President and
Company Chief Operation Officer. Prior to joining the Company, he
was the general manager for Weatherford International China. In his 17
years with Weatherford International, he held several managerial roles
including global business alignment manager and business development
manager. He started his career in the oil industry as a drilling engineer
for China National Petroleum Corporation after graduating from the
China Petroleum University in 1982. He also spent five years in the
China Petroleum University teaching drilling engineering courses before
completing his first master’s degree in petroleum engineering from the
Louisiana State University in 1993. He also holds an EMBA from the China
Europe International Business School.
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Mr. XIE Shaohua, aged 51, has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company with effect from 1 July 2018. Mr. Xie graduated from
Central University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree
in Economics and received a bachelor’s degree in Economics at the
University of International Business and Economics and a master’s degree
in Business and Administration at the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Xie is a Chinese senior accountant and a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. From November 2002 to May 2007,
he served as the deputy general manager of the finance department of
Sinotrans Limited (H shares stock code: 00598). From September 2007
to June 2018, he was appointed as deputy general manager and chief
financial officer of Sinotrans Shipping limited (stock code: 00368, delisted
in January 2019).
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Mr. CHEN Yungiang, aged 56, has served as the chief executive officer
of TSC (China) since 2005 and has been appointed as the Vice President
of the Company with effect from 15 February 2020. Mr. Chen is also
fully in charge of the Group’s operations in the PRC and is responsible
for the sales and promotion of the Group’s products in the PRC market.
Mr. Chen studied industrial enterprise management at the Hangzhou
University of Electronic Science and Technology ({1 & FRIFLAZ). Mr.
Chen joined the Group in August 2001 as a general manager of HHCT,
a subsidiary of the Group, in Xi‘an, China till 2005. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chen worked at Xi‘an Petroleum Exploration Instrument
Complex (FAZR AR ZE S EH) for 14 years in various positions,
including assistant factory head, supervisor of electric driven production
lines and manager of its sales branch for drilling rigs.
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Mr. HUAI Zengmin, aged 50, has been appointed as the Vice President
of the Company with effect from 26 January 2022. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer of a subsidiary of the Company, CMIC Green Hydrogen
Technology Co., Ltd., and is in full charge of hydrogen business of the
Company. Mr. HUAI graduated from Tiangong University with a master’s
degree in management in 2000. Mr. HUAI is a fellowship member (FCCA)
of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. HUAI joined the
Company in December 2009 and has successively served as CEO Assistant
of the Group, Deputy General Manager of China Region, and General
Manager of Operation Management Department of the Group. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. HUAI served in the oil and gas and offshore
engineering industry for over 20 years, and successively held various
positions in technology and sales in CSSC Tianjin Xingang Shipbuilding
Industry Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Tecway and Converteam.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board hereby presents its report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the Year. It will expand to the
offshore asset management and operation business continuously.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Company's results for the Year is set out in the financial statements
on pages 155 to 158. The Board is not aware of any shareholders who
have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK$0.01 per Share for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy is adopted by the Company which sets out the
principles to be followed for paying dividends to the shareholders of the
Company. When considering to make dividend payments, the Board shall
take into account factors including but not limited to the Company’s
financial results, general business conditions and strategies, and statutory
and regulatory restrictions. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or distributed in any particular amount or in any form for each
year or in any year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five financial years ended 31 December 2022, are extracted from
the audited financial statements of the relevant annual reports of the
Company, and are set out on pages 8 to 9. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements of the Group for the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

CMIC considers a high degree of social responsibility, environmental
protection, safety and sustainable economy as key factors in ensuring
business continuity and success. The Company has introduced effective
tools to ensure full implementation of social, safety and environmental
policies within the Company to ensure compliance with the relevant
legal and regulatory requirements as described in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”).

Details of the Company’s environmental, social and governance (“"ESG")
performance for the Year can be found in “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” as set out on pages 93 to 144 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE AWARDS

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share capital
during the Year are set out in note 27(b) to the financial statements.
Details of the Company’s Share Award Schemes are set out in note 26 to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, pursuant to the terms of the rules
and trust deed of the 2015 and 2019 Share Award Plans, the trustee of
the 2015 and 2019 Share Award Plans did not purchase any Shares on
the Stock Exchange. As at the date of this report, the trustee held a total
70,499,000 Shares (representing approximately 2.17% of the issued
share capital of the Company) under the 2015 and 2019 Share Award
Plans.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 161, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company as at 31 December 2022, as computed in accordance
with the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
US$95,567,000 (2021: US$86,719,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year, sales to the Company’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 81.2% of the Company’s total sales for the Year and sales
to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately
23.7% of the Company'’s total sales.

Purchases from the Company’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 30.0% of the Company’s total purchases for the Year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 10.7% of the Company’s total purchases.

Expect for CM Group, none of the Directors, or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), had any beneficial
interest in the Company's five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Company did not make any donations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. YU Zhiliang (appointed as a non-executive Director and the chairman
of the Board on 9 December 2022, re-designated as an executive
Director and appointed as the CEO on 24 March 2023)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. MEI Xianzhi (appointed on 6 June 2022)

Mr. LIU Jiancheng

Mr. Zhan Huafeng (appointed on 24 March 2023)

Ms. FU Rui

Mr. WANG lJianzhong

Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan (re-designated to a non-executive Director
on 24 March 2023)

Mr. JIANG Bing Hua (ceased to act as Co-Chairman and appointed as
Chief Executive Officer on 26 January 2022, re-designated as
a non-executive Director and resigned as the CEO
on 24 March 2023)

Mr. LOU Dongyang (resigned as a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board on 9 December 2022)

Mr. HUANG lJin (resigned on 24 March 2023)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny
Mr. ZOU Zhendong

Mr. CHEN Weidong

Mr. SUN Dongchang

Mr. Lou Dongyang resigned as a non-executive Director and the chairman
of the Board due to his other work commitments. Mr. Huang Jin resigned
as a non-executive Director due to his other business commitments.

In accordance with Article 86 and Article 87 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Yu Zhiliang, Mr. Zhan Huafeng, Mr. Mei Xianzhi,
Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, Mr. Sun Dongchang, Mr. Zou Zhendong,
and Mr. Chen Weidong will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Yu Zhiliang has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 24 March 2023, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless
terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Yu has waived entitlement to annual
remuneration.

Mr. Mei Xianzhi has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 6 June 2022,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Mei has waived entitlement to annual
remuneration.

Mr. Liu Jiancheng has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 September
2021 and expiring on 22 September 2024 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Liu Jiancheng has waived entitlement to
annual remuneration.

Mr. Zhan Huafeng has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 24 March 2023,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Zhan has waived entitlement to annual
remuneration.

Ms. Fu Rui has entered into an appointment contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 1 June 2019 and expiring
on 31 May 2022, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving
either party to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.
Ms. Fu Rui has waived entitlement to annual remuneration.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr. Wang Jianzhong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 4 July 2016 and
expiring on 3 July 2019, renewable automatically for successive terms
of three years from 4 July 2019 and 4 July 2022 respectively, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association, unless terminated by giving either party to the other not less
than three months’ prior written notice. Mr. Wang is entitled to receive
emoluments of HK$120,000 per annum.

Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan has entered into an appointment contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 22 June
2020, followed by a supplemental appointment contract for a term
commencing from 24 March 2023 and expiring on 4 July 2025, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association. Mr. Zhang is entitled to an annual remuneration of
US$313,000 for all his positions in the Company. Mr. Zhang is entitled
to variable remuneration comprising of ex-gratia annual bonus, which is
subject to his performance and the performance of the Company and the
approval of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Jiang Bing Hua has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28 November 2005
and expiring on 27 November 2008, renewable for successive terms of
three years from 28 November 2008, 28 November 2011, 28 November
2014, 28 November 2017 and 28 November 2020 respectively, followed
by a supplemental appointment contract for a term commencing from
24 March 2023 and expiring on 4 July 2025, and subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.
Mr. Jiang is entitled to an annual remuneration of US$313,000 for all his
positions in the Company. Mr. Jiang is entitled to variable remuneration
comprising of ex-gratia annual bonus, which is subject to his performance
and the performance of the Company and the approval of the
Remuneration Committee.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EZEREE

EENREEN @
FRAPEEBEARNAGYEZAEGR B 2% —
NELtANBEE - ZT—AFLtA=ZBILAH=
FRAMNBEE-—NFLtANEE =T ==
tANBRATESHEH =-F TAEAREBAHE
BEHAGESRREZEET KRIEEF—FR
S—FBELETLR=ZEANSELEEEBEAN T
Wik TEERBEWERMNESE4120,0008 7T °

REHEALLAEEHRAQRRVYEZAEGR B2 =%
FRNAZFT-—BEAABH=ZF  REIVBERZE
AR THE - E_=ZF=ZA -+ HmHEREE_Z—
AFEAMALE  WEARKEAZERMAGESR
REEET - REEEEBERARRRNMERE
R FFE£313,000E 7T » RILAEFEKREUZE FH
B - BESEFEELL  BRTFERBEREAATHN
REME @ WEARHFMWNZESHERT SEE -

BREXLACHAQRRNVYEZAEAGR A ZETH
F+—A-t+N\BEE-_ZZNE+—A=++tH
B BH=F HBEZTZENF+—A=+AN
B - —Z2—%+—A=-+N\B  —T—N0WFE+—
AZ+N\B - ZE—+tF+—A=-+N\HEZZE=
ZFE+—AZ+/\BRAUEH=F ' REFILFHT
ZAAR FHA S -_=F=-A -t WmARE=
T-AFHAMABL  WARBAKEEMAAHE
HRNEREM - BEEBERERARANME
BRI FE B £313,0003 7T © ¥4 AW
FERFEH  BESEFEELL  ERTERBRER
ARIMRBAME  WEASTFMEESIEERFT SE

=
g °

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA

55



56

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny has entered into an appointment contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
October 2005 and expiring on 19 October 2008, renewable for successive
terms of three years from 20 October 2008, 20 October 2011, 20
October 2014, 20 October 2017 and 20 October 2020 respectively,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving either party to the
other not less than three month’s prior written notice. Mr. Chan Ngai
Sang Kenny is entitled to receive annual emoluments of HK$120,000.

Mr. Zou Zhendong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 18 May 2018 and
expiring on 17 May 2021, renewable for successive terms of three years
from 18 May 2021, subject to retirement by rotation and re- election in
accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving
either party to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.
Mr. Zou Zhendong is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$120,000.

Mr. Chen Weidong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 5 June 2018 and
expiring on 4 June 2021, renewable for successive terms of three years
from 5 June 2021, subject to retirement by rotation and re- election in
accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.
Mr. Chen Weidong is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$120,000.

Mr. Sun Dongchang has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 12 November
2019 and expiring on 11 November 2022, renewable for successive
terms of three years from 12 November 2022, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Sun Dongchang is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$120,000.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Except for Mr. Jiang Bing Hua and Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, no other
Directors are entitled to any variable remuneration.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory obligations.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party or were parties and in
which a Director or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year under
review or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer of the
Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all costs, charges, expenses, losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto. A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is in place to
protect the Directors and officers of the Company against any potential
liability arising from the Company’s activities which such directors and
officers may be held liable.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Performance and Key Financial Indicators
Details of business performance and key financial indicators are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise
profitability growth, return on equity and gearing ratio. Details of the
profitability analysis are shown in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report. The Company’s return on equity,
based on profit attributable to equity shareholders to total equity
attributable to equity shareholders, increased from 6.2% in previous year
to 15.3% in the Year, which was mainly due to a year-on-year increase
in the amount of gross profit and share of profit of joint venture due to
disposal of rigs. The Company’s gearing ratio, calculated based on total
liabilities to total assets, increased from 35.4% in 2021 to 39.3% in
the Year. The Company will continue to safeguard its capital adequacy
position, whilst maintaining a balance between business growth and risk
management.

A review of the business of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
Year is set out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and “CEQ’s
Statement”, “Market Review” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

Sustainability Initiatives

The Company is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a positive framework for motivating
staff and promoting sustainable relationships with customers, suppliers,
service vendors, regulators and shareholders, as well as contributing
to the community in which we conduct our businesses for creating
a sustainable return to the Company. During the Year, there was no
material dispute between the Group and its customers, suppliers and
employees. The Company has implemented energy saving practices in
offices and branch premises where applicable.

The Company has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence to and compliance
with applicable legal and regulatory requirements. These policies and
procedures are reviewed regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it had
complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group for
the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

Further discussion and analysis of the Company’s principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out in pages 18 to 40 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long Position in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company:
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EERERITHRAEREKSD - HERSD
RESFTHEZERAR
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BABRAQRSKEAAREZE(E&REHF LY
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i
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Number of issued ordinary Shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company
AABBREEICGETNERITEBREYA

Approximate

percentage

of the

Company’s

Personal Family Corporate Other issued share

Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total capital

(Note 1)

fEARAF

21T

IRAHE A

EEpnE BAEZE XKEfEzx LFER HEz e Bt

(BF=E1)

Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan 65,979,100 - - - 65,979,100 2.03%
SREREFE

Mr. JJANG Bing Hua 26,965,240 - - - 26,965,240 0.83%
BRELE

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.02%
PRER A4 Sk

Note: 5 -

1. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 3,243,433,914 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2022.

1. ZESWIBRER-_TE-_—_F+-A=+—HBE®T
23,243,433, 914 B D51 HE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long Position in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company: (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred
to in Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, the paragraphs headed “Share Award Plans”
and “Share Award Incentive Scheme” contained in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report and note 26 to the
financial statements, at no time during the Year, any rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company was granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which is
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and has been recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate

percentage
Capacity and nature Number of of the
Name of Shareholders of interest shares shareholding
(Note 4)
BFRES
BEgE/ 8 SR RERNEE RIPEE BOl
(HHzE4)
China Merchants Group Limited (Note 1) (“CM Group”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
REREEERAR (M) (HER/EE] NG|
China Merchants Steam Navigation Company Limited (Note 1) (“CM Steam Navigation”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
B RatRN AR R KH:E) (BBt NG
China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd (Note 1) (“CM Industry”) Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BERIEEEERAR (M) (AERIE]D AR
China Merchants GP Limited (Note 1) (“Fund GP") Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BEABABRAR(MF)(ELLBEBAD NS
China Merchants Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) (Note 1) (“Fund LP") Corporate 1,530,372,000 47.18
BEREFRREREREXES(BRAR) TN (E2BREEAD NG|
Prime Force Investment Corporation (Note 1) (“Prime Force”) Beneficial Owner 1,530,372,000 47.18
Prime Force Investment Corporation(¥iz+ 1) ([Prime Force]) ExnBAA
Minyun Limited Beneficial Owner 284,751,000 8.78
Minyun Limited EnfiAA
China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. (Note 2) (“CIMC Group”) Corporate 185,600,000 5.72
REEREEREA(GRROERRA (M) (FEKE]) NG
China International Marine Containers (Hong Kong) Ltd. (Note 2) (“CIMC HK") Beneficial Owner 185,600,000 5.72
HREEREES R (BB ARDA () ((R&EEE]) ERBEEA
China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited (Note 3) (“CSSC") Corporate 174,394,797 538
REMMEBARAA M) (FHEE) A
CSSC Huangpu Wenchong Shipbuilding Company Limited (Note 3) Corporate 174,394,797 5.38
("Huangpu Shipbuilding”)
R ER UM ER A A (5E3) ([E ) NG|
Wah Shun International Marine Limited (Note 3) (“Wah Shun") Beneficial Owner 174,394,797 5.38
E|REF A AR A 7 (FFE3) ([ZE)E)) EmfaA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1. Prime Force is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is
wholly-owned by Fund LP and Fund LP is therefore deemed to be interested
in the 1,530,372,000 Shares that Prime Force is interested in under Part XV
of the SFO.

Fund GP, formerly known as China Merchants Great Wall GP Limited, is the
general partner of Fund LP, formerly known as China Merchants & Great
Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.), and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the 1,530,372,000 Shares that Fund LP are interested in under
Part XV of the SFO.

CM Industry holds 99.96% of the equity interest in Fund LP, and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CM Steam Navigation which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CM Group. CM Steam Navigation and CM Group are
respectively deemed to be interested in the 1,530,372,000 Shares that Fund
GP is interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

2. CIMC Group holds the entire issued share capital of CIMC HK. Therefore,
CIMC Group is deemed to be interested in the 185,600,000 Shares held by
CIMC HK under Part XV of the SFO.

3. (CSSC holds 35.5% of equity interest of CSSC Offshore & Marine Engineering
(Group) Company Limited (a8 ¥ B 52 ERR D B R A7), which in
turn holds 54.54% of equity interest of Huangpu Shipbuilding. CSSC also
holds directly 14.48% of equity interest of Huangpu Shipbuilding, which
directly holds 99% of issued shares of Wah Shun. Therefore, CSSC and
Huangpu Shipbuilding are deemed to be interested in the 174,394,797
Shares held by Wah Shun under Part XV of the SFO.

4. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 3,243,433,914 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
December 2022, there was no person (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company whose interests are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules. Particulars of these transactions are also set out in
note 29(c) to the financial statements, with respect to which the Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those
transactions which are subject to the reporting requirements under Rule
14A.71 of the Listing Rules are summarised as follows:

Master Supply and Purchase Agreement

On 5 November 2020, the Company entered into a master supply and
purchase agreement (the “Master S&P Agreement”) with CM Industry,
pursuant to which the Group will purchase structural parts and other
components (“Structural Parts Procurement”) from and sell equipment
used on offshore platforms etc. (together with installation and ancillary
services) (“Products Sales”) to CM Industry Group, effective from the
commencement date to 31 December 2022.

As Fund LP is interested in 1,530,372,000 Shares (representing
approximately 47.18% of the issued share capital of the Company), it
is therefore a controlling shareholder of the Company. CM Industry is
ultimately wholly-owned by CM Group and Fund LP is indirectly controlled
by CM Group. Therefore, CM Industry is an associate of CM Group and
Fund LP and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
As a result, the transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps under the Master S&P Agreement for each of the
periods/years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are US$40
million, US$100 million and US$100 million, respectively, for the Products
Sales and US$5 million, US$16 million and US$16 million, respectively,
for the Structural Parts Procurement. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the aggregate amount of the Products Sales and the Structural
Parts Procurement under the Master S&P Agreement were approximately
US$28.0 million and US$3.9 million, respectively.

The Directors expect that the transactions will promote cooperation
between both parties in the future and will expand the operational
revenue, increase liquidity, reduce transaction costs effectively and
increase net profit of the Group, thereby improving the performance of
the Company during the countercyclical period of oil and gas industry,
which is in line with the Company’s long-term strategy to become a
cost-competitive provider of integrated solutions for oil and gas drilling
industry.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Master Supply and Purchase Agreement (Continued)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of each of the Products Sales
(including the annual caps) and the Structural Parts Procurement (including
the annual caps) exceed 5% and HK$10 million, each of the Products
Sales (including the annual caps) and the Structural Parts Procurement
(including the annual caps), constitute a continuing connected transaction
for the Company and is subject to the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. At the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 31 December 2020, the above
transactions were approved by the independent shareholders.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 15 December 2020.

Master Lease Framework Agreement

On 18 May 2021, the Company entered into a master lease framework
agreement (the “Master Lease Framework Agreement”) with CM
Industry, pursuant to which CM Industry Group has agreed to lease
certain premises to the Group for a term commencing on 18 May 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023.

As Fund LP is interested in 1,530,372,000 Shares (representing
approximately 47.18% of the issued share capital of the Company), it
is therefore a controlling shareholder of the Company. CM Industry is
ultimately wholly-owned by CM Group and Fund LP is indirectly controlled
by CM Group. Therefore, CM Industry is an associate of CM Group and
Fund LP and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
As a result, the transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps, which represent the total value of right-of-use assets
relating to leases to be entered into by the Group in each year under
the Master Lease Framework Agreement for each of the period/year
ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are HK$10 million. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the actual transaction amounts were
approximately HK$6.6 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Master Lease Framework Agreement (Continued)

The Company is of the view that the leases under the Master Lease
Framework Agreement will benefit the Group by (i) saving rental payment
by the Company, such that both the Group and the CM Industry Group
can enjoy economies of scale and maximise cost efficiency; and (ii)
providing the Group with stable and successive premises based on fair
and reasonable terms for its operations and business.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the annual caps
under the Master Lease Framework Agreement for the coming period/
years ending 31 December 2023, exceed 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the Master Lease Framework Agreement
are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempt from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 May 2021.

Master Supply and Purchase Agreement, and Master
Vessels Chartering and Management Services
Agreement

On 18 October 2022, the Company entered into a master supply and
purchase agreement (the “Master S&P Agreement 2022") with CM
Industry, pursuant to which the Group will purchase structural parts and
other components (“Structural Parts Procurement 2022") from and sell
equipment used on offshore platforms etc. (together with installation
and ancillary services) (“Products Sales 2022") to CM Industry Group,
effective from the commencement date (i.e. 1 January 2023) to 31
December 2025. On 18 October 2022, the Company entered into a
master vessels chartering and management services agreement (the
“Master Vessels and Management Agreement 2022") with CM Industry,
pursuant to which the Group will charter vessels (“Vessels Chartering”)
from the CM Industry Group and provide vessels management services
("Vessels Management”) to the CM Industry Group, effective from the
commencement date (i.e. 1 January 2023) to 31 December 2025.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Master Supply and Purchase Agreement, and Master
Vessels Chartering and Management Services
Agreement (Continued)

The Master S&P Agreement 2022 was a renewal agreement of the Master
S&P Agreement, the annual caps under the Master S&P Agreement 2022
for each of the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are
US$200 million, US$150 million, and US$150 million, respectively, for
the Products Sales 2022; and US$35 million, US$30 million, and US$30
million, respectively, for the Structural Parts Procurement 2022.

The annual caps under the Master Vessels and Management Agreement
2022 for each of the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025
are US$19 million, US$26 million, and US$30 million, respectively, for the
Vessels Chartering; and US$40 million, US$23 million, and US$21 million,
respectively, for the Vessels Management.

The Directors expect that, in respect of the Products Sales 2022 and
Structural Parts Procurement 2022, on one hand, the high-end offshore
engineering equipment manufactured by the Company has the
proprietary intellectual property rights in the PRC, and it can continue
to cooperate with CM Industry to break through in the procurement of
key materials by reducing the reliance on imported equipment, targeting
the development of product markets in China that face technological
bottlenecks. On the other hand, by cooperating with CM Industry, the
Group will be able to deeply embed its products into the products of the
CM Industry Group, so as to apply on more fields, continue to enhance
its market share and influence and strengthen cooperation between
enterprises, achieving a win-win situation for both parties. At the same
time, supply and purchase will expand the operational revenue, increase
liquidity, reduce transaction costs effectively and increase net profit of the
Group, thereby improving the performance of the Company, which is in
line with the Company'’s long-term strategy to become a cost-competitive
provider of integrated solutions for the traditional oil and gas drilling
industry and the offshore wind power green energy sector. It is expected
that the Vessels Chartering can strengthen its asset management
capabilities and enable the Group to expand its international asset
management business opportunities, as well as utilizing the Group’s
extensive experience, in-depth understanding and insights in the offshore
engineering platform asset industry to further optimized the Group’s
business. Vessels Management services will provide the Company with
stable income, and in combination with Vessels Chartering services, will
provide certainty and stability for the asset management business of the
Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Master Supply and Purchase Agreement, and Master
Vessels Chartering and Management Services
Agreement (Continued)

CM Industry is a controlling shareholder of the Company and also
a connected person of the Company. As a result, the transactions
contemplated under the Master S&P Agreement 2022 and Master Vessels
and Management Agreement 2022 constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of each of
the annual caps for the Product Sales 2022, Structural Parts Procurement
2022, Vessels Chartering and Vessels Management exceed 5%, the
above transactions and annual caps are subject to the reporting,
announcement, independent shareholders’ approval and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. At the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 15 December 2022, the
above transactions and annual caps were approved by the independent
shareholders.

Details of the above transactions are set in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2022.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions (except for those under the Master S&P
Agreement 2022 and the Master Vessels and Management Agreement
2022, which came into effect from 1 January 2023) and confirmed that
the transactions have been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued their unmodified letter containing the auditor’s findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in note 29(c) to the financial statements of this annual
report in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Share Award Plans”
and “Share Award Incentive Scheme” contained in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report and note 26 to
the financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the Year are set out in note 29
to the financial statements. Save as disclosed herein, there were no other
transactions to be disclosed as related party transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, there were
no transaction falling under the definition of “connected transaction”
or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the related
party transactions which constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates was
interested in any business that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Company, or had any other conflict
of interests with the Company during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total
number of issued Shares (being the prescribed minimum percentage of
public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the
Listing Rules was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 70 to 92 of this annual report.
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NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

After the end of reporting period, the Directors proposed a final dividend
of HK$0.01 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2022.

On Behalf of the Board

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Yu Zhiliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERKRE

The Board is pleased to present the “Corporate Governance Report” for
the Year.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

A healthy culture lies at the heart of strong governance. The Company
recognises the importance of good corporate governance to the Group’s
healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying and
formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of
its business. The Board sets the tone and shapes the corporate culture
of the Company, which is underpinned by the core values of acting
lawfully and responsibly across all levels of the Group. The Board plays a
leading role in defining the purpose, values and strategic direction of the
Group, and ensure its culture are aligned. The Company has continued
to incorporate the essence of corporate governance into its management
structure and internal control procedures, with the aim to maintaining
the highest standard in integrity and ethics in all aspects of our business
activities, and to ensure the full compliance of our operations with
applicable laws and regulations. By achieving high standards of corporate
governance, the Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the rapid growth of the Company
and for safeguarding and maximising the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole, which is the principal objective of the
Company. In achieving this objective, the Company strives to insist in its
strategy in the development of both traditional energy and new energy
businesses. In the meantime, the Company is committed to maintain long
term value to its shareholders, other stakeholders and the community
at large, for example, the Company concerns its ESG impact to its
stakeholders. More details of the Company’s culture and Company’s
strategies could be found in different sections under the “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Report of the Directors” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company had complied with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors had complied with such code of conduct
and the required standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf
of shareholders. The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’
responsibilities to create value for shareholders and safeguard the best
interests of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its duties
in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the principle of good
faith. The Board is also responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Company’s business. Responsibilities
in relation to daily and execution of the strategic business plans are
delegated to each of the executive Directors and the management.

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors and senior
management are set out under the “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company. The current and former
executive Directors have sufficient experience to hold their positions so as
to carry out their duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board comprises twelve Directors as at the date of this annual report,
including one executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Zhiliang (Chairman and
CEO); seven non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mei Xianzhi, Mr. Liu
Jiancheng, Mr. Zhan Huafeng, Ms. Fu Rui, Mr. Wang Jianzhong, Mr.
Zhang Menggui, Morgan and Mr. Jiang Bing Hua; and four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Zou
Zhendong, Mr. Chen Weidong and Mr. Sun Dongchang. As over half
of the members of the Board are non-executive Directors and they have
not participated in the management of the Company, the Board is able
to exercise independent judgement on corporate affairs and provide
the management with a diverse and objective perspective on issues. The
Board believes that the current board size is appropriate based on the
Company’s present circumstances and will periodically evaluate the need
for increasing or decreasing its size.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had at all times
complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules of having at least
three independent non-executive Directors (more than one third of the
Board members) and at least one of them having appropriate professional
accounting or related financial management expertise. To the knowledge
of the Directors, there are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among the Board members.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Articles of Association clearly state the procedures for the
appointment of new directors, re-election and removal of directors.
Under the Articles of Association, the Board may from time to time
appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any such new director shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
same general meeting.

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) have entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years. They are
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years, and re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless and until terminated
by not less than three months’ prior notice in writing served by either
party on the other. Pursuant to Article 86 and Article 87, Mr. Yu Zhiliang,
Mr. Mei Xianzhi, Mr. Zhan Huafeng, Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, Mr.
Zou Zhendong and Mr. Sun Dongchang will retire, and being eligible
for election, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 19 May 2023.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent persons.

The primary functions of the Board include:

e deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and
financial performance and formulating appropriate policies to
manage risk exposure associated with realising the strategies and
goals of the Company;

e being held accountable for the internal control system of the
Company and responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

o being ultimately responsible for preparing financial statements and
discussing the performance, financial conditions and prospects of
the Company in a balanced, clear and comprehensible manner.
These responsibilities are applicable to interim and annual reports
of the Company, other price sensitive announcements published
according to the Listing Rules and disclosure of other financial
information, reports submitted to regulatory bodies and information
discloseable under statutory requirements;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

e executive Director(s) overseeing the overall business of the Company
and being responsible for the daily operations of the Company
and the Board being responsible for affairs involving the overall
policies, finances and shareholders of the Company, including,
among others, financial statements, dividend policy, significant
changes to accounting policies, annual operating budgets, material
contracts, major financing arrangements, principal investment and
risk management strategies. Implementation and execution of such
decisions being delegated to the management; and

o regularly reviewing its own functions and the powers conferred
upon executive Director(s) to ensure appropriate arrangements
are in place. The management is well informed of its power and
duties with clear guidelines and instructions, in particular regarding
situations under which reporting to the Board is necessary and
matters that require the approval of the Board before any decisions
or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company.

Members of the Board held a total of six meetings during the Year.
The Directors were given sufficient time and information relating to the
matters to be discussed in the Board meetings in advance, or except
in special circumstances, consent to short notice is sought at times of
urgency. In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for
the Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their duties to
the Company. Moreover, the Company Secretary prepares minutes and
keeps records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
meetings. The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are
open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Matters considered and approved by the Board during the Year mainly
related to (i) review of the Company’s business; (ii) approval of the 2021
annual results; (iii) approval of the 2022 interim results; (iv) appointment
of non-executive Directors and the chairman of the Board; (v) continuing
connected transactions.

The Directors have complied with the code provision of the CG Code
for the convening of Board meetings which requires Board meetings to
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
and held Board meetings for the purpose of reviewing the financial
performance, results of each relevant period, material investments and
other matters of the Company that require resolutions of the Board.
Simultaneous conference calls are used to improve attendance when
individual Directors cannot attend the meeting in person.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the chairman of the Company
held a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of the other Directors.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman of the Board and the
CEO are clearly divided to ensure a balance of power and authority and
to reinforce their independence and accountability. After the resignation
of Mr. Cong Yongjian on 19 July 2021, the other members of the Board
(except the chairman) then discharge the duties of the CEO until a
suitable person is found by the Company to fill the vacancy. Thereafter,
Mr. Jiang Bing Hua was appointed as the CEO with effect from 26
January 2022. Mr. Yu Zhiliang has been appointed as the chairman of the
Board with effect from 9 December 2022 due to the resignation of Mr.
Lou Dongyang. Mr. Jiang Bing Hua has resigned as the CEO with effect
from 24 March 2023, and Mr. Yu Zhiliang was appointed as the CEO on
the same date.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year. However,
since 24 March 2023, there is a deviation from code provision C.2.1 as
set out in the CG Code, which provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. From 24 March 2023 onwards, Mr. Yu Zhiliang,
in addition to his duties as the chairman, is also the CEO and responsible
for the corporate strategic planning and overall business development
of the Group. Mr. Yu Zhiliang has extensive knowledge on the business
of the Group and his duties for overseeing the Group’s operations are
considered to be beneficial to the Group. The Company considers having
Mr. Yu Zhiliang acting as both the chairman and the CEO will provide
strong and consistent leadership to the Group and facilitate the efficient
execution of our business strategies. Since the Directors would meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting operations of the Company,
the Directors and the management of the Company believe that this
structure will enable the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently. As a result, we currently do not propose to
separate the functions of chairman and chief executive officer. The Board
will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by
taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

The chairman of the Board, is responsible for leading the Board
and ensuring that the Board functions effectively and performs its
responsibilities, that Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information which is accurate, clear, complete and reliable and that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. The
chairman also encourages Directors to actively participate in, and to make
full contribution to, the Board’s affairs so that the Board can act in the
best interest of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The CEOQ is responsible for the daily operations of the Company, execution
of business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as formulated and
adopted by the Board and leading the management of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which are also included in the terms of
reference of the Board.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company'’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance with and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. The Company issue circulars or guidance notes to
Directors and senior management where appropriate to ensure awareness
of best corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors were committed to complying with the
code provision C.1.4 on Directors’ training. The Company provided
training by sending out reading materials with an appropriate emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company’s director, including
latest Listing Rules update, the Stock Exchange newsletter updates, and
Corporate Governance Guide for Boards and Directors published by the
Stock Exchange. Directors provided a record of training they received for
the Year to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BEE®H)

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development EECHEEIRBRE)
(Continued)

A summary of training received by the Directors during the Year is set out ~ EEWANEEEIBEEHFAT ¢
as follows:

Name of Director

BN

Training
=

Executive Director:

HITES

Mr. YU Zhiliang (appointed as non-executive Director on 9 December 2022 and re-designated as
executive Director on 24 March 2023)

RERAEMR - ZE-_—_F+ - ANBEZERIRTES IR T _=F=F_+WMH
AERRITEE)

Non-executive Directors:

FHITES :

Mr. MEI Xianzhi (appointed on 6 June 2022)

BEEEEMN - —FNANBESE)

Mr. LIU Jiancheng

B &

Mr. ZHAN Huafeng (appointed as non-executive Director on 24 March 2023)

EEREFENR S _=F=A-TNBEZERINITES)

Ms. FU Rui

Bt

Mr. WANG Jianzhong

FRPEE

Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan (re-designated as non-executive Director on 24 March 2023)

REFEEERZZ_=F=A-+HNBRERIENTES)

Mr. JIANG Bing Hua (re-designated as non-executive Director on 24 March 2023)

BREAA(RZ_=F=A=-THBAERIFNTESR)

Mr. HUANG Jin (resigned on 24 March 2023)

BEAERZZE=F=A = +HHEE)

Mr. LOU Dongyang (resigned on 9 December 2022)

EHBEER_SE=-_=F+= A NBEE)

Independent non-executive Directors:

BYFHTES :

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny

PBRER A SR

Mr. ZOU Zhendong

IR =

Mr. CHEN Weidong

PRETR L=

Mr. SUN Dongchang

BRRE%E

N/A
N
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Directors’ Attendance of Meetings

EEERRE

%%%(g)
EEHESZNER

Details of attendance of meetings of the Board, audit committee, E’\$¢J+ i%ﬁjf“$ AIFTRITHESS X
remuneration committee, nomination committee and compliance ZE® - ¥MLZE2 ERLEehNERLEeE
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held aab/{&ﬂxﬁﬁgﬁ’ﬂla/ﬂﬁﬂ—l— :
during the Year by the Directors are set out as follows:
Number of meeting(s) attended/held
HEBITERERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance General
Name of Director Board  Committee Committee = Committee Committee” Meeting
B 40| R’E Ex BRER
BEEns Ezg Z£ZE® ZEB%g £58 EEE AN
Executive Director:
BITES:
Mr. YU Zhiliang (appointed as non- N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
executive Director on 9 December
2022 and re-designated as executive
Director on 24 March 2023)
REREERZZE-Z NEA NiE A NiE A AN iE A NEA
TZANBEEERIERTES
WHR=ZEZ=F=A=+MARAFE
RITESR)
Non-executive Directors:
FHITES !
Mr. MEI Xianzhi (appointed on 2/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
6 June 2022)
WraEEERZZEZZF/XAH TiEA NiE A NEA N iE A
BEEE)
Mr. LIU Jiancheng 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A 172
IR E TEA NiE A ANiE A NEA
Mr. ZHAN Huafeng (appointed as N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
non-executive Director on
24 March 2023)
BEREENRZZE=F i A A i A NiE A NEA TiEA
ZAC TR ERERFFRITES)
Ms. FU Rui 1/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A 172
Bzt NiERA TE R TE R NiE A
Mr. WANG Jianzhong 5/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A 172
FTRPkE TiERA TiE R TiE R TiE A

* The compliance committee did not hold any meeting during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEgm®m
Directors’ Attendance of Meetings (Continued) EEHFEEIRNER®E)

Number of meeting(s) attended/held

HEBITERRY
Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance General
Name of Director Board  Committee Committee = Committee  Committee” Meeting
F i BE Bz ES
EEHR =g Z88g Z88g Z8E ZEE rE

Non-executive Directors: (Continued)

FHYITEE : (B)

Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan 5/6 N/A N/A 3/3 N/A 2/2
(re-designated as non-executive
Director on 24 March 2023)

REEEERZT=F TER TER i@
ZA-THBRERIENTES)
Mr. JJANG Bing Hua (re-designated as 5/6 N/A 3/3 N/A N/A 2/2

non-executive Director on
24 March 2023)

BRELRER_Z_=F TiE A iE A &M
ZAZ T MBEAERENTES)

Mr. HUANG Jin (resigned on 5/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/2
24 March 2023)

BEENAEMR-_BE-_=F=A_+mWH TERA NiE A ANiE A N3 A
BHE)

Mr. LOU Dongyang (resigned on 5/5 N/A 2/3 2/3 N/A 1/1
9 December 2022)

BRGEER B _F+-ANH TNE R TE A
BE(E)

Independent non-executive

Directors:

BYFHITESE:

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny 5/6 2/2 2/3 2/3 N/A 172
PBRER SR TEMA

Mr. ZOU Zhendong 6/6 2/2 3/3 2/3 N/A 2/2
IR & NE

Mr. CHEN Weidong 5/6 1/2 3/3 3/3 N/A 2/2
PRETER ST TNE

Mr. SUN Dongchang 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A 2/2
BRREKE TEA NiE A NiEA NiE A

*  The compliance committee did not hold any meeting during the Year. * ERZFEENAFEWEBITEMNGE -
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal actions against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ching Fan KOO has been engaged by the Company as its Company
Secretary. The primary contact person of the Company with Ms. Koo
is Mr. ZHAQ Yinan, the Secretary to the Board. Ms. Koo attended no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 20 October 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zou Zhendong
(chairman), Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny and Mr. Chen Weidong, and
one executive Director, namely, Mr. Yu Zhiliang, and one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhan Huafeng.

The role and function of the remuneration committee mainly include
making recommendation of the remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind, pension
rights and remuneration payments (including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment), and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
Directors. The remuneration of each Director is determined with
reference to the Director’'s experience, qualification, duties, responsibilities
and the prevailing market rate. The remuneration committee will consider
and give due regard to both the performance levels of, and a fair reward
for, the chairman, executive Director(s) and the senior management and
to the interest of all the shareholders of the Company in light of the
financial and commercial circumstances of the Company from time to
time. No Director shall be involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
The remuneration committee also made recommendations to the
Board on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy, and to review and/or approve matters
relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the remuneration committee held three meetings
and proposed to consider the remuneration packages of the executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors. The chairman
of the remuneration committee reported the findings and provided
recommendations to the Board after the meetings.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code provision
E.1.5, the annual remuneration of members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

FMEER @
EEMEFBEINNES T IEREMFET o tLoh -
BETFAEXEEISE BE-_T_—_F+_-_A=
+—HLEFE =SREEASFEMESRIHWM
T~

Number of
Remuneration band (US$) individuals
<5 & (Ex) AE
Less than 100,000 0
4>5100,000
100,000 to 200,000 4
100,000%200,000
200,001 to 300,000 2
200,001 %300,000
300,001 to 400,000 2
300,0012400,000
400,001 to 500,000 0

400,001%500,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established on 5 June 2009 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and comprises a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. Currently, the members
of the committee are Mr. Yu Zhiliang (chairman), an executive Director,
Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, a non-executive Director and, Mr. Chan
Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Zou Zhendong and Mr. Chen Weidong, each an
independent non-executive Director.

The Company has adopted a policy concerning the diversity of Board
members. In determining the Board composition and selecting candidates
for the Board, the Company considers a range of elements, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments of the
Board are made based on merit and objective standards while fully taking
account of the benefits of a diverse Board. No single-gender Board is
allowed. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
diversity policy, as appropriate, or at least on an annual basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The selection of candidate will be based on a range of diversity elements.
The final decision will be made according to the strengths of the
candidate and his/her contribution that would bring to the Board.

Measurable objective that the Board set for implementing the diversity
policy is that at least one Director is female. For the Year, this measurable
object has been fulfilled. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
twelve Directors, of which four are independent non-executive Directors
and seven are non-executive Directors, which enables critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterised by
significant diversity whether in terms of gender, nationality, professional
background or skills. The female representation is respectively about 8%
at Board level and about 17.6% at workforce level (including the senior
management). The Board is mindful of the objectives for the factors as
set out in the diversity policy for assessing the candidacy of the Board
members and will ensure that any successors to the Board shall follow
the diversity policy. Similar considerations will also be in place to assess
the candidacy of the senior management team from time to time. The
Group is determined to maintain gender diversity and equality in terms
of the whole workforce, and to procure the senior management team
to achieve gender equality in terms of the gender ratio. The Nomination
Committee will discuss periodically and when necessary, agree on further
measurable objectives and plans for achieving diversity, including gender
diversity, on the Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
The nomination committee will review annually the need for achieving
higher gender diversity in the Board and the workforce where necessary.

During the Year, the nomination committee held three meetings to
review and discuss the appointment of the CEO, non-executive Directors
and chairman of the Board, and made recommendations to the Board.
The chairman of the nomination committee reported the findings and
provided recommendations to the Board after the meetings.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The roles and functions of the nomination committee, mainly include
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors,
identifying suitably qualified candidates for appointment to the Board
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board in respect
of such candidates and/or the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and monitoring the implementation of the Board diversity policy and
the nomination policy. Before an appointment is made, the nomination
committee evaluates the candidates or existing Director’s skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board and prepares a description of the
role and capabilities required for a particular appointment based on its
evaluation. If deemed appropriate, external consultants may be engaged
to identify suitable candidates. After identifying a suitable candidate, the
recommendations of the nomination committee will then be submitted to
the Board for assessment.

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The compliance committee was established on 20 October 2005 with
written terms of reference. The constitution of the committee shall
comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules from time to time. It
comprises an executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Zhiliang (chairman), two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny
and Mr. Chen Weidong, and one other member, namely, Mr. Ma Yaohui.

The general responsibilities of the committee are to ensure compliance
of the Company with all relevant laws and regulations and the Listing
Rules (“Relevant Regulations”). It shall also fulfill other responsibilities as
required by the Relevant Regulations from time to time.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. The Directors must ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 145 to 154 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing non-audit functions
(if any) performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on
the Company. During the Year, the Company paid an aggregate of
approximately US$469,000 (2021: US$460,000) and US$10,000 (2021:
US$Nil) to the external auditor for its audit services and non-audit
services, respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. To ensure on-going
compliance with the CG Code, the audit committee’s terms of reference
takes into account the Board'’s responsibility to review the adequacy of
financial reporting staff and oversee the audit committee. According to
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee comprises a minimum
of three members with a majority of independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (chairman), Mr. Zou Zhendong
and Mr. Chen Weidong, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, with at least one member having the appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management expertise
pursuant to Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The main duties of the audit committee include the following:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for accounting and financial reporting, compliance
officer or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to
the work performed, fees and terms of engagement, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor; and

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the audit committee held two meetings to consider
and review the interim and annual results of the Company, discuss the
risk management and internal control system with the management,
discuss the audit plan and strategy, discuss compliance with applicable
accounting standards and requirements and ensure adequate disclosure.
The audit committee also met the external auditor twice to discuss the
audit plan and scope and identified significant risks and other areas of
focus to be addressed by the external auditor.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external

auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 has
been reviewed by the audit committee.
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INDEPENDENCE OF THE COMPANY FROM ITS
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF
BUSINESS, PERSONNEL, ASSET, ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND FINANCE

The Company has an independent and complete business system and
has the capacity for independent operation in the market. The Company
is independent from its substantial shareholders in respect of its
business, personnel, asset, organisational structure and finance, and they
independently proceed with audit and assume the responsibilities and

risks.

(1

Business: The production system, purchase system, auxiliary
production system and sale system of the Company are independent.
The Company owns the intangible assets such as industrial property,
trademark, non-patent technology independently.

Personnel: The labour, personnel and salary management
institutions of the Company are independent and the system is
complete. The Company and the substantial shareholders do not
share staff or senior management. All of the Company’s staff and
senior management are paid by the Company.

Assets: The property rights between the Company and the
substantial shareholders are clearly delineated, with complete
procedures. The property rights are managed by the Company
independently. The substantial shareholders do not occupy or
govern the assets of the Company nor interfere in its operation
management of the assets.

Organisational structure: The Board, the compliance committee and
other internal institutions of the Company are complete and operate
independently. The substantial shareholders perform their rights
according to the law and assume the corresponding obligations
without directly or indirectly interfering with the business activities
of the Company by overstepping the general meeting.

Finance: The finance department, financial accounting system,
financial management system and bank account of the Company
are independent and the Company pays taxes independently.

During the reporting period and as at date of this annual report, the
Company has not provided undisclosed information to the substantial
shareholders and the de facto controllers, and there were no other non-
compliance governance issues.

EEERRE

AAFHEERERBRERK - A8 -
BE MABRBRMBESIE2B IR
s
FAAEBYREZXHBRARANDTRAEL
B ARTHETERFZMERRT X5 -
AE MBRBREBHH  SEBIK
B AERAMAR -

ZIN/N
P
AB
&

(1) EBHmE: ARBZEERLS KBRS @
PEERGRHEERRTEEY - ARFEYL
BREIXER BR FENEWEETE
o

(20 ABFH:ARRSI AEFLRIEEEKE
WY - FIERE - ARREIERRZEIR
BREEBYBERREVESER - AQA
ERETIRSREREHEARRMAEHM -

() BEIME : ARFETBRREEBM - F&E
Er ERAARRBUER - TE2RRIE
HA - XEARFAEEXTRARRZEEL

BEm -

@) HEBRBIE: ARFREFE ERZEER
H N #ERE  BIEBY - TERRMRE
TTEEEAER - WAEREZ RS - WEBUK
RAGEEARMETRARR ZKEEH -

(5) WM : ARRYHEPT  BEEHER
MBERSEMRTRPEY - AARREYL
B o

RBEHARKERAY - ARALEREERR
REREFIARBERARAES  TEEMBIERZ

=8
EVRRIE

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA

85



86

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board and such mechanisms will be reviewed
annually by the Board:

o At least one-third of the Board are independent non-executive
Directors in compliance with the Listing Rules requirements, and the
Company will assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors on at least an annual basis.

e The nomination committee will assess the independence of a
candidate who is nominated to be a new independent non-executive
Director before appointment and the continued independence
of the current long-serving independent non-executive Directors
on an annual basis. All independent non-executive Directors are
required to submit a written confirmation to the Company annually
to confirm the independence of each of them and their immediate
family members, and their compliance with the requirements as set
out in the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

e All Directors and committees of the Board are entitled to retain
independent professional advisors as and when it is required.

o All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open and
candid manner during the Board/Board committee meetings.

e The chairman of the Board will meet with the independent non-
executive Directors at least annually without the presence of the
executive Directors.

. A Director (including independent non-executive Director) who has
material interest in any contract, transaction or arrangement shall
abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any
Board resolution approving the same.

o No equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements
has been granted to independent non-executive Directors.

The Board would review the implementation and effectiveness of the
above mechanisms on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal control of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness at least annually. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board, through the established internal audit function, conducts
annual reviews on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system, including risk management and internal control, as well as
the resources of the Company’s financial and accounting reporting
departments and ESG working group, in accordance with the applicable
legal requirements and other internal control regulatory requirements.
The reviews include evaluation methods of the Company’s qualifications
and experience, as well as staff training and management budget.

During the Year, the Company has implemented a series of internal
control system procedures and measures to strengthen internal control.
The Board believes that there are no material internal control deficiencies
that may affect the shareholders and an effective and adequate risk
management and internal control system is in place to safeguard the
assets of the Company. The Company will continue to enhance the
system to adapt to changes in the business environment.

With respect to internal control for the handling and dissemination of
inside information, the Company shall assess the circumstances under
which inside information may arise from time to time and disclose inside
information as soon as reasonably practicable in accordance with the
SFO and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its business affairs
with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission and imposes a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside information
by Directors, employees and other relevant persons (such as external
service providers and project working team members).

It is the Company’s development strategy to establish a risk management
system covering all the business segments to monitor, assess and manage
various risks in the Company’s activities. The management has identified
the following major risks and conducted regular review of industry,
policy, operational and currency risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Group developed a whistleblowing policy to encourage and provide
a well-defined and accessible channel to stakeholders (i.e. both internal
and external) of the Group, including those who deal with the Group, to
raise concerns over any unlawful conduct, financial malpractice and/or
other wrongdoings. During the reporting period, there was no reported
incident pertaining to whistleblowing. The Group has set up a complaint
and reporting column on the official website. Employees or any other
persons may report suspected matters of wrongdoing affecting the
Group to the executive Director via the following email: hr@emer.com.
hk. Other reporting channels including handphone and postal address are
also included within the whistleblowing policy.

Being a responsible enterprise, the Group has zero tolerance towards
corruptions. It has policies in place to prevent against violations of
business ethics such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
including “Code of Business Conduct” and “Employee Handbook”, which
contains the requirement for prohibition of bribery, illegal transactions,
misappropriation, corruption, fraud, etc. Open tendering policy has been
formulated and “comparison of quotations amongst at least 3 suppliers”
is required, whereby the supplier with competitive price will be selected.

Major Risk Identified

Industry risk: In a market environment with over supply, oil and gas
companies have been facing increasingly fierce competition, and lower
demand will have certain impact on the operating results of the Company.
In light of this, the Company will enhance operational efficiency, enrich
its product portfolio, improve its product quality, put emphasis on value
maximisation and increase its competitiveness. In addition, the Company
has diversified its business from oil and gas exploration and development
to plugging and abandonment and decommissioning.

Government policy risk: The oil and gas industry as well as the new
energy industry are among the industries of concern in the “14th Five-
Year Plan” of the PRC government. The development of the Company
will be affected by the direction of relevant policies.

Operational risk: As stated in this annual report, the Company is
dependent on a few customers. If the Company fails to secure new
contracts from such customers, the Company’s operating results will be
affected significantly. In light of the above, the Company has established
certain level of alliance with these customers to maintain long term
relationships and to enhance the Company’s future development.

Currency risk: The value of Renminbi is affected by the global economic
and political environment which has led to a recent significant
depreciation. As an international company, the Company usually signs
its sales contracts in US dollar while production costs are denominated
in Renminbi as its major production center is located in Mainland China.
Given the nature of our business, the Company will use more domestic
bank borrowings in order to mitigate its currency risk.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
all shareholders. The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors. The chairman of the
Board as well as the chairmen of the remuneration committee and audit
committee or, in their absence and where applicable other members of
the respective committees together with the external auditor are available
to answer questions at the general meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships
with its investors. Designated Directors or senior management maintain
regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains
a website www.cmicholding.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business development and operations,
financial information and other information are posted.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy on an annual basis. The Board
considers that such policy remains effective in enhancing timely,
transparent and open communication between the Company and the
shareholders and has been properly implemented given the multiple
channels of communication in place.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Annual reports and interim reports offer comprehensive information
to the shareholders on operational and financial performance whereas
annual general meetings provide a forum for the shareholders to
exchange views directly with the Board. The general meetings of the
Company provide an opportunity for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. The Chairman and board members of the
Company attended the general meeting held on 20 May 2022 to answer
questions.

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the
re-election of the retiring Directors.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted by show of hands. As
such, all the resolutions set out in the notices of the general meeting
will be voted by poll and the procedures for conducting a poll shall be
explained at the general meeting. Representatives of the share registrar
of the Company will be appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count
the poll votes cast at each general meeting. The results of poll will be
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.
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PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as “the requisitionist(s)”) shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS AND PUTTING
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Save for the following, shareholders do not generally have a right
to propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to propose a resolution may request the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting following the procedures set out
in the paragraph headed “Procedure for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting” above.

Where notice of a general meeting includes the election of directors of
the Company, any shareholder of the Company may propose the election
of any person as a director of the Company at the general meeting.
Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, if a shareholder
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for election
as a director of the Company at any general meeting (including the
annual general meeting), the shareholder should lodge a written notice
(the “Nomination Notice”) at the Hong Kong share registrar or the
head office of the Company and the minimum length of the period
during which such notice is given shall be at least seven (7) days. If the
Nomination Notice is submitted after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election, the period for lodgment of
the Nomination Notice shall commence on the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
The Nomination Notice must be accompanied by a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected as a director
of the Company and such notice must also state the proposed person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2022
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS AND PUTTING
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD (continued)

Shareholders who put forward proposals at general meetings or wish
to make inquiries to the Board about the Company may contact the
head office in Hong Kong and/or the Hong Kong share registrar of the
Company:

Head office in Hong Kong: Room A, 31/F, Tower 2
Kowloon Commerce Centre
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Hong Kong share registrar:

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established various communication channels with
investors to provide updates on the latest business development and
financial performance to maintain a high degree of transparency and to
ensure equal dissemination of information.

The Company has always adopted a positive attitude in communicating
with investors, the media and potential investors to increase the
Company’s brand recognition, strengthen investors’ understanding
and recognition of the Company, and ultimately realise the increase in
shareholders’ value.

The communication methods adopted by the Company include, but are
not limited to:

Annual and interim reports

Online annual report

Annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting
Investors’ Roadshow

Announcements, press releases and circulars
Voluntary announcements

Media Press Conference

Investors’ Conference
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

Industry analyst communication: The Company encourages analysts
to publish their analysis reports actively to help investors evaluate the
Company and its development opportunities and challenges.

Investor Relations Email: ir@cmicholding.com

The Company’s website: www.cmicholding.com, which is the Company’s
main medium of marketing promotion media, displays comprehensively
the information about the business and activities of CMIC.

Social Media: The Company also has a WeChat official account, on which
it publishes company news, industry news, short films, photos and major
events.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “ESG Report”), which
outlines our positive performance in terms of environmental, social and
governance, and our commitment to creating a long-term sustainable
and green development.

The Group is dedicated to becoming an outstanding corporate citizen
in each of the communities it operates in around the world. The Group
recognises a high degree of social responsibility and awareness in
environmental sustainability as key factors to the enterprise’s persistent
growth and success. Therefore, the Board of the Group’s assumes
the overall responsibility for sustainable development, build an ESG
governance structure to lead the Group to fulfil social responsibility for
which the Board assumes the ultimate responsibility and the professional
ESG working group (the “Working Group”) implements comprehensive
supervision.

To address the challenges arising from sustainable development and
climate change, the Group firmly commits to sustainable development,
and adheres to the values of tolerance, openness, reliability and
cooperation in the Group’s business development and social activities.
The Board of the Group has considered the sustainability topics and
determined the material ESG factors that are crucial to the Group,
and continued to focus on such issues, regularly monitored the
environmental, social and governance performance and approved the
corresponding targets. Through continuous communication on ESG-
related risk management, the Group has introduced effective measures
to ensure fulfilment of its social responsibility and implementation of its
environmental policies in full and that the Group’s development direction
meets expectations. The Board also regularly analyzes and reviews the
Group's ESG risks and opportunities, performance, progress, goals and
indicators. These areas of work involve the Group’s employees, business
associates, supply chain partners, and community groups related to the
Group's business.

RE  dERERKRE

EEgEH
AREBMAREHEE_ZE_—_F+-_A=+—81
FEZRE HekBTARmE(RE HLekEh

WE]D  EMa T HRMERSE L2 REARFELN
BIRKRE  AREMEERRAVTFESCEEN
G o

REEBNREELBENRRSEE AN A —EE
FMEEAR - AEERE  GEMTSE FKHE
REFEEESARBRLELEBFEILRMAK
NHEREER Bt SEEESEARRER
BHEBEEM FREFSHRKLAE BEESGIE
PR ITHEDED ZHEEMESGE AR - BEAR
EEEITHEET -

EHAFEER R RARECHROIE - AEFR
EHRAAFEZERTE  RASENEBRERR
HEEHET  F=TRD HAR - AIENMAENE
EBS - AKEESECERARERRTIE B
THAEBEZEHAEENERRE LB kERA
YRR EREE  EHERRE HER
SARBLHERENE R  BEFEBBMER
CHERERBERRER - #E LS| A
BEBENHEEERRRERRBALEZE @ i
RAEENERIANTEHE - EFSTEHAIMN
MBEEAEEMESGRARMEE - KR - £R - B
BANER - EETESRIAEBHNET -  BER
- HERAERME  URBREEXBHEBENLR
B 8L o

W TH O

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA

93



94

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR - HEREREKSE

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD (Continued)

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to adhering
to ethical standards and fulfils its corporate social responsibility through
the implementation of policies in several environmental, social and
governance areas such as environmental sustainability, human resource
management, occupational health and safety, supply chain management
and corporate governance which requires all of the Group’s employees
to actively participate and support. In particular, in terms of sustainable
development of the environment, the Group focused on developing
products and technologies for green energy services such as offshore
wind power and hydrogen energy, and gradually expanded the business
scale of the green energy sector through strategic transformation, so
as to facilitate the early realisation of global climate action of net-zero
emissions.

In view of the Group’s outstanding contributions in low-carbon economy
development, technological innovation, personnel training and social
welfare in 2022, the Group won the “ESG Best Practice Award” at the
“3rd Cailian PresseEBS Forum Summit”. Meanwhile, the Group won the
“ESG Pioneer Award” at the Cailian Press ESG “Transcendence Award of
2022" selection, which strongly affirmed the Group’s ESG practice.

The success of the Group's sustainability journey requires collaboration
and continued efforts from all stakeholders. We would like to express our
gratitude towards all the management and colleagues who support the
Group's sustainable development goals, as well as customers, suppliers,
investors, partners and all other stakeholders. Together, the Group will
work to create greater value for all our stakeholders.

Yu Zhiliang
Chairman

24 March 2023
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD (Continued) EESEH®
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

STANDARDS OF THE REPORT

This Environmental, Social, and Governance report (the “Report”)
provides an annual update on the various aspects of environmental,
social, and governance performance by CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding
Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) in the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Year").

The content of this Report was compiled in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as well as the actual conditions
of the Group, and has complied with “comply or explain” provision in
the Listing Rules. This Report is published annually in each financial year
together with the annual report of the Company for the year.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

The reporting period starts from 1 January 2022 and ends on 31
December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”), which fully elaborated on the
Group's relevant sustainable development initiatives.

Driven by the rapid growth of China’s offshore wind power market,
the Group’s offshore wind power equipment manufacturing business
has grown rapidly. Therefore, based on the actual situation and after
careful review, this report expands the scope of data collection and adds
two subsidiaries as compared with the previous reporting period — TSC-
HHCT (Xian) Control Technologies Limited and Zhengzhou TSC Offshore
Equipment Co., Ltd. The adjusted report covers the main operating
activities that the Group considers to be significant, and the scope of
disclosure is adjusted to the following operating locations:
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

SCOPE OF THE REPORT (Continued)
Unless otherwise specified, this Report covers the environmental, social
and governance progress and performance in the Year.

Looking ahead, the Group will review the scope of our report regularly
and gradually expand the scope of disclosure based on the principle of
materiality to provide more comprehensive information to stakeholders.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The content of this Report summarizes the Group’s performance in terms
of corporate social responsibility based on the reporting principles of
“materiality”, “quantification”, “balance” and “consistency”.
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Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment were conducted regularly to
identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that these issues are addressed in the report;
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The data presented in this report are carefully collected and used to calculate the
standards and methods of key performance indicators;
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Both positive and negative sides of the performance have been presented in a

transparent manner,;
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Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data collection and calculation methods have
remained consistent throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

REPORTING PRINCIPLES (Continued)

In order to optimize the reporting process and expand the scope of
disclosure of the report, the Group has been proactively formulating
effective ESG related policies, recording relevant data and implementing
and monitoring various measures. This Report illustrates the ESG
performance of the Group in achieving sustainable development in the
future.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

To manage various ESG aspects effectively and efficiently, we have built
a solid governance structure for the Group’s ESG management which
involves a ESG governance structure for which the Board assumes the
ultimate responsibility and the professional ESG working group (the
"Working Group”) implements comprehensive supervision.

The Board and the Working Group are fully responsible for the Group’s
ESG strategy and reporting, including the formulation of the Company’s
overall ESG strategy, identification and evaluation of ESG risks, review
of ESG management policies, review of ESG plans and goals, and
consideration of ESG performance assessment. The Working Group is
responsible for execution of daily operations and reporting major ESG
issues to the Board. With this ESG management framework and clear
governance procedures, the Board can effectively monitor ESG-related
opportunities and risks within the Group.

From time to time, we obtain regularly updated information on
environmental, social and governance trends and regulations and industry
practices. Based on the external social and economic macro-environment
and the Company’s development strategy, we have always given priority
to stakeholders’ views, opinions and suggestions on environmental, social
and governance management, and will conduct a materiality assessment
and discussion on the formulation of environmental, social and
governance strategies, determine the Company’s risks and opportunities
in respect of environment, society and corporate governance, and
take the management and improvement of key issues as sustainable
development strategy. Through the abovementioned efforts, we have
been able to better understand and manage our environmental, social
and governance risks, and achieve our goal of creating higher value for all
stakeholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (Continued)
The specific responsibilities of the ESG Working Group are as follows:
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Review, endorse and report to the Board on the Group’s ESG
standards, priorities and goals and to oversee group-level strategies,
policies and practices on ESG matters to attain those standards and
goals.

To review and report to the Board on:

(i)  Key international trends in legislation, regulation, litigation and
public debate with regards to social, environmental and ethical
standards of corporate behaviour;

(i) The standards set and the performance of the group in ESG
matters, relative to comparable utilities or other benchmarked
companies; and

(iii)  Sustainability risks and opportunities.

Oversee the Group’s community, charitable and environmental
partnerships, strategies and related group-level policies and
make recommendations to the Board on any changes to those
partnerships, strategies and policies.

Perform such further functions related or incidental to the foregoing
which the Working Group deems appropriate.

Report to the Board and management on decisions or
recommendations made.

Review and advise the Board on the Group's public reporting as
regards its performance on ESG matters.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The sustainable operation of the Group requires the joint efforts and
support of all stakeholders. The interests, expectations and concerns of
all parties are inseparable from the performance of the Group. Therefore,
the Group's goal is to create an environment for sustainable development
that is beneficial to enterprise development and the wellbeing for
stakeholders.

The Group has always strived to promote communication with its
stakeholders. The Group maintains open and continuous communication
with relevant stakeholders including stakeholders and investors,
employees, customers, community organisations, government and
regulatory authorities and suppliers through various means to achieve
transparency and develop mutual understanding of each other’s
aspirations for corporate social responsibility. Through communication
with stakeholders, the Group is committed to identifying, assessing and
managing environmental, social and governance-related risks, while
ensuring that there is an effective internal monitoring system in place to
deal with the risks identified, so that the Group can achieve sustainable
development.

Key stakeholders

ETEFHE FRRBRERE

FOENSRREEM

Kt ESH
AEEARECEFEMARODEARE HIMX
e &ENMHNE  BHRNEEANKENRRAEZD
Ay FHit ARENERERAE—EHEERR
REDERULE AW HERRRER -

AEE-ERNHPHEFNERR - AKEBEE
BETEREBEMBFENE  ERERRRKRESE
B8 TP HEAS BFEEEHE  HER
SRF|EABMFENER - UEBLRBEH  1LEH
MTHRAHCEHEEENNE - BBER ) E
BER AREBSIEN  FEREERERE €
REVEHEBRR - [ R AN EBEIEHIE N
RIZFER MR - REEEREMED D EARFE
BRERMERE -

Main communication channels

Visits and meetings
Rengm|

Telephone conferences

Customers ESEN

o/ EF
REEERHE
E-mails

BFHH

Employee newsletters

Employees 8T8
BT Group intranet
SEREAELL

Volunteer activities

BELEH
Community organisations Charitable activities
HEAS HELD

Customer questionnaires

Unscheduled meetings with each organisation

EEABTEREE
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

(Continued)
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Key stakeholders
TEFHE

BE - HERERERE

RFOENZHEREENE#E

BFHESHE®E)

Main communication channels

FRBERE

Shareholders and investors

BRRRREE

o, o
o o

Government and regulatory
authorities

BT R EEE S

Press release
FER

Business newsletter
E sl

Annual reports
FERS
Company website
NGIF b

Circulars
Conference and communications
S

Periodic reports and returns
EHARE M FR R
Compliance operation
R

Ongoing dialogues
EER

Building a responsible supply chain
BEe R T ER
Performance of contracts

BOERH)

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting
by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business
of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance indicators
("KPIs") are reported in the Report according to recommendations of the
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules) and the Global

Reporting Initiative Guidelines.

AEEBRETHEAAKRERGM S BERNRERR
B HEREREHE RERE HEREARHMET
RAERMRA - REBRE  HEREAWERES
(TEmRAMER27 ) k2R EEZABIESI HEZ
& AREIMERRBERESE HEREREENR
R AR ((FRAERIERDIELER -

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY FOENSEREEE®

(Continued)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) BERESHEHE)

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects ANEBEBEB NIF BT ERE  CEREARTE
through the following steps: ZERERERN

Identification — Industry Benchmarking

* Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of relevant ESG reports of the
local and international industry peers.

e The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the importance of each ESG
area to the Group through internal discussion of the management and the
recommendation of the ESG Reporting Guide.

wal — HETREE

. *HJE«%L&E% HERERGKDAREME M RERRE 2 MRS  HekE
Al

« BRG - HERERGB B2 HRBABERENNN R REFR - LEREARE
EEIRBECRRIR e REAHBHARBE  SENET -

g
i
=]
off
B

Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement
e The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas identified above to ensure all
the key aspects to be covered.

BERF-—HHESH
o REEET ERNHE LA ER 2 BRERE HEREQBIBETH® - ARRREMN

BERSE -
O
Step 3 Validation — Determining Material Issues
SE]3 e Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal discussion among the
management, the Group’s management ensured all the key and material ESG areas,
o which were important to the business development, were reported and in compliance

with the ESG Reporting Guide.

BE-ETEERE

o IRIFMF BRHME AR REEE 2H 2Nl - AEETIRERRE 2mME EKRE
EESEMABRRERNRE HahERHE  AFERE HakEamsik
5| o

As a result of this process carried out during the reporting period, those ~ HRZMIENHREBEETT HAEBBEZ 2%
important ESG areas to the Group were discussed in this Report. R HEREREBENAREANTR
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
(Continued)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In 2022, the Group conducted a comprehensive materiality assessment.
This involved conducting interviews and/or surveys with internal and
external stakeholders to identify which areas have the most significant
operating, environmental and social impacts towards their business. With
reference to the scopes as required under the ESG Reporting Guide and
taking into consideration of the corporate business characteristics, the
Group has identified and confirmed 25 issues, which cover environmental
protection, occupational health and safety, employee training and

BE - HERERERE

BFOENSHEEREENH®

EEMTME

“ECHE FAEBERREZENEEERNGH
T RE AN DEREITHAR, LBE - U#
MAESE REMMETEABEEXRBRARE

B R2ERE  HEREARERESIMRENR
B UREEECERHHHR AEECH KE
W25REE  RERERE BEREEZRE .
BTHIIRER SHTEA HEEEE 0XE
A BPAE  RESKEMHEZES -

development, labour standards, supply chain management, corporate
governance, customer privacy, anti-corruption and local community
engagement.

Operating issues
EEEH

o2

Combating climate change

. Local community engagement

FESR RS L it R

2. Environment and natural resources 12. Community investment
RERRAER HRRE

3. Greenhouse gas emissions 13. Occupational health and safety
REREHE BEEREL S

4. Energy consumption 14. Labour standards
BEIRIEFE & T =8|

5. Water consumption 15. Training and development
FEX e g R

6. Waste 16. Employee welfare
REZY) EEREA

7. Electricity consumption 17. Inclusion and equal opportunities
FE HEkTEHE

8. Saving energy measures 18. Talent attraction and retention
EfiBE Ws| R AA

9. Use of raw materials and packaging
materials
R E R B SR e B

10. Compliance with laws and

regulations relating to environmental

protection
P ARERENED ARG

19. Product responsibility
EmEE

20. Economic value generated
EENKEEE

21. Corporate governance
®BERER

22. Anti-Corruption
&S

23. Supply chain management
HEEER

24. Customer satisfaction

BEEmEE

25. Customer privacy

BEPREL

=%

T CFER - EREBRBTFRERANEZERARAA
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY BFHENSHEREEH @
(Continued)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued) EEMFLE)

ESG issues materiality matrix
BRiR HERERSEEEMEREE

sJap|oyaye}s 0} souepodu|
B b S ok S g S BE
@6
()
®

HRARANEEN

Importance to the Company

The materiality assessment results will provide the Group with guidance EZ M HERBIEBAEE S| ERFHEE B EZ
on formulating strategic objectives and plans to resolve the ESG issues ~ REERIRIE - B MREATEMGE - RRFEH
for the coming year, as well as on continuing to push forward its  #AJISEHRETR o

sustainability development.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

A

Environmental Protection

The Group's businesses are strictly operating under the regulations.
The Group has also been keeping abreast of any updates on the
regulations. During the reporting period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with the corresponding
local environmental laws or regulations, including but not limited
to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Protection, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Environmental
Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Promotion of Cleaner
Production, the Fire Prevention Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Meteorological Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, the Regulations of the People’s
Republic of China on Lightning Protection and Disaster Mitigation,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Emergency Response,
the Provisional Measures for the Management of Emergency Plans
for Environmental Accidents, the Sewage Permit Management
Ordinance and the Management of Occupational Disease Hazards
and Regular Inspection in Employers that would have a significant
impact on the Group.

During the reporting period, there was no incident that has material
impact on the environment and natural resources.

@

Target B &

R

A

BE - HERERERE

5 ek EaeE

RERE

AEBNERBBIGIZBEREE - XEE T —
HERERNEMERN - RREHE - A&H
WEZFRGEMNENRREMRFEZRESR
MER - BREMRRFEN(REARKM
BRRREE)  (PEARKMBEKZ LD
JaVE) ~ (PEARARBIARIG R AE) M
(FEARANBERREYSRRENQE) -
(FEARKMBERREZEFEZL  (FEA
REMBLZ2EER)  (PEARKNBEFZ
EEREE) - (PEARKMBDERZE) - (P
FEARKMBEREE) - (PEARKMBEBE
BEAE) ~ (hEARKXMBEG R AE E
B A(REARKMBIREZHREDE) - (R
BRIBEHESBREBEITINE) - (BH5F#
AEEEA)  (BABMBERBEERRTH
DA EIERE)  MUXEEELEAFEN

RBEHR - BEHREREABERELEX

For the financial year 2023, the Group's violations of relevant laws and regulations on waste treatment and

disposal will remain at zero.

RO CWMF AREERVEERRESANBRERERERAEEARBAT

1. Emissions
In response to the environmental risks faced by the country
and the national policies, the Group is committed to being a
responsible enterprise to implement policies for prevention of
environmental pollution, even though the industry in which
the Group operates does not cause significant pollution.

The Group’s environmental protection policy includes the 3R
principle, namely Reduce, Reuse and Recycle, as well as the
effective use of materials and energy.

The Group actively responds to employees’ opinions on
environmental issues, and recognises and rewards those
employees who have made continuous improvement or
contribution to environmental protection, thereby raising
the awareness and sense of responsibility of employees and
stakeholders towards the surrounding environment.

1. ¥R
PR 8 B 2% o T e ) BR 35 R\ B % R R IR
BEAEENTETSBEBHERTHR
BIER—RABENDELE  FAEEDGHS

T

EEARRSAMBUR

AREBRIRBRES S EFEIREFEL - A
S (Reduce) ~ B F F (Reuse) M & IR 5 it
(Recycle) © & BB {E MBI FIGER ©

AEEEBERS TRE BRTHEIER
MER  YHERBEERRRETHE
HFFENERERNE T - #FLIRET
MEFD & LSNEIRITH IR AR N BAER

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)

1.

ol

Reduction of Exhaust Gas Emissions
Environmentally-friendly materials were used when the
Group renovated its workplace, and indoor air quality
testing was performed before the use of the workplace.
Spray-painting and shot-blasting facilities were the
main sources of exhaust gas in the operation process.
To mitigate the pollution from the exhaust gas, spray-
painting and shot-blasting facilities are equipped with
ventilation, dust-removal, poison-removal and filtration
systems. The spray-painting facilities adopt water curtain
+ activated carbon + filter cotton to filter exhaust gas
in three stages, and the shot-blasting facilities adopt
bag dust removal + cyclone dust removal. Exhaust gas is
discharged after meeting the requisite standards. Exhaust
emissions from operation are tested on a regular basis.

1.2 Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises that the emission of
GHG is one of the main causes of the current global
warming, and energy consumption is key source of GHG.
In order to slow down the progress of global warming,
the Group has adopted various policies and measures
to control the consumption of energy, thereby reducing
GHG emissions, which includes:

Key Control Measures

BRI

2z

RiE - HERERAE®

RERE D
Berh (&)

A

1l

1.1

1.2

D BER B

AEEMITESMERERERRE
RME - WRERATETERES
WA MREBEBETE/AGEH -
EEREDR - BERBENWAKE
BERNEIEHMNRSE : BTHD
RE RIS RIRIE '”E?%?J‘r‘?i%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ
FHRERAKRE KRERBER
o 18 /J\WETK)EH7}<%+/E 14 IR + 38
AR = RBIEER - WL E HA
MERBRE+IERRE - BRAREY
Bﬁl I TE HA ¥ E R T BE U EE R

HETTAROR] o

LB EREE(CHG)HEH

Eﬁiﬁtﬁﬁ-r Z’Sﬁljﬁ/ tﬂ}EﬁﬁFxﬂni
ﬁ‘n“; ERRFEEREEHTHZ

CTAERERNEZIRERE
REVEFE - BT RIER/IEHNER
$E.T%HX%EEWEK%EE?#E@M

EERERAERE BBV ARAER
HEE'\WFEK-

a) Avoiding unnecessary business trips to reduce carbon emission generated by transportation;

BRIMERENR - KR Z KM RER

BT AT & BB ;

b)  Prioritising the engagement of local suppliers to reduce energy consumption resulting from the

transportation of cargoes;

BIRBERRMHER -

AR R S W38 8 T £ A O BETRB#E

c)  Prioritising the use of equipment and products of low energy consumption and high efficiency;

BEBBEERBELSRERBANREREM

d) Considering the use of renewable energy, whenever appropriate;

WIEREE - BRERMABALRR

e) Promoting the importance of reducing carbon emissions along the supply chain.

HEEE D HEER RN ERME -
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Scope 2:

by motor vehicles, propane, acetylene and diesel
consumed in production. Conversion is in accordance
with the CO,e emissions factors in HKEX Reporting
Guidelines.

It represents the electricity purchased from power
suppliers. The emission factors used are the latest
available factors: the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China —
“Baseline Emission Factors of Power Grid in Northern
China Region (¥ RS HELEREREF)"
(2019) 0.9419 tCO/MWh; “Baseline Emission Factors
of Power Grid in Central China Region (¥ [& 1
BHAEEGZHENET)" (2019) 0.8587 tCO/MWh;
“Baseline Emission Factors of Power Grid in Northwest
China Region (Fadb [ 15 & 40 X E P A7)
(2019) 0.8922 tCO/MWHh.

#HE2 :

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) RE - HE8RERRE®
Environmental Protection (Continued) A RERESR)
Emissions (Continued) 1. BB#E)
1.2 Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions 1.2 BB ERE(GHG)HM ()
(Continued)
Through achievement of the aforesaid measures, the FRBBENLERE  TRETAF
following table sets out the emission volume from the EEBERABREMBENTS -
main GHG emission sources of the Group's operating MAARLEMIEAFTZRERE
sites in Qingdao, Zhengzhou and Xi'an covered by the IRERHHERE
Report during the Year:
GHG Emission Volume (equivalent of
GHG Emission Sources Consumption carbon dioxide in tonnes)
BERBENE
BERBNERR }E (B=E{tRES)
In 2022 In 2021 In 2022 In 2021
—E-CF —EC--F —E-CF —E--F
Scope 1 EE1
Diesel consumption (litres)’ LOHIEE (D)
Mobile source B 4,371 5,410 12.12 15.00
Fixed source ElE R 26,814 24,314 70.17 63.62
Gasoline consumption (litres)’ RS (A
Mobile source mENR 49,237 19,306 133.33 52.28
Total propane consumption (kg)'  AiTEFEE(AT)! 29,036 7,286 87.60 2198
Acetylene consumption (kg)' LRFEE(DT)! 4013 2,895 13.58 9.80
Sub-total’ S 316.80 162.68
Scope 2 #E2
Power consumption of HERHHER
manufacturing facilities (kWh)? (FTRE)?
(Northern China Region) (FELRE) 2,066,630 1,235,640 1,946.56 1,163.85
Power consumption of BRI EE
manufacturing facilities (KWh)? (FRE)?
(Central China Region) (FEhR) 1,533,359 1,316.70
Power consumption of HERHHER
manufacturing facilities (kWh)? (FRE)?
(Northwest Region) (Al ) 300,058 267.71
Sub-total hap? 3,530.97 116385
Total GHG emissions BERBHNRAS 3,847.76 1,326.53
Production volume (tonnes) EEE(H) 12,855.98 2,251.70
GHG emission intensity RERBHNEE 030 0.59
(equivalent of carbon  (equivalent of carbon
dioxide in dioxide in
tonnes/tonnes) tonnes/tonnes)
B-alias/ /W) M-a{Rz2/ %)
Scope 1: It represents the gasoline and diesel oil consumed #HET: BABHEAENTRLESE - £ E

HFEHIALE -« L8R - 5h - ik
NAEBBHIMEERESITH=
A/ ERMET -

EEENHERBENE SN - T
REBREFASZHARRAT :
REAREMBARERES -
(iR BRAE LR ERA T
(2019) 0.9419 tCO/MWh : [#h
& BMEERBENE T (2019)
0.8587 tCO/MWh : [FE4b & 15
BRHEEGBEHRAT] (2019)
0.8922 tCO/MWh °

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA
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BR - HEREREKSE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)
1.2 Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

1.

1.4

(Continued)

In financial year 2022, the Group's total GHG emissions
increased by approximately 190% as compared with
the financial year 2021, which was mainly due to the
expansion of the scope of data collection and the
addition of two subsidiaries in Zhengzhou and Xi‘an,
resulting in a significant increase in total production
volume of 471%. Actually, the Group’s annual GHG
emission intensity has significantly decreased by
approximately 49% as compared with 2021.

BRIE -HERERRE®

A

RERE D
1. BER#E)

1.2 BLBEREEGHG)HM ()

AEEBR-_TE-__§F - B=[E
FREERR _S-_—WFE LAY
190% ' FEZRARAKFERAEIE
REHE - EMEBMANALZRRT
DR EEBERNEEA471%E
By ER EASEFERERE
HRBRER T - —F KB TRY
49% -

Target B &

&

For the financial year 2023, the Group’s GHG emission indicators will present a downward trend.
ZE=PF - AEBEAERBYRERETHBEE -

Reduction of Wastewater Discharge

The processes and technology adopted in the Group's
operations do not involve significant water consumption
or discharge of wastewater. Water is reused in the
exhaust gas treatment system in spray-painting process.
Therefore, the Group’s discharge of wastewater mainly
involves daily office operations. In view of this, water
conservation signs are put up in washrooms, pantries,
canteens and dormitories to raise employees’ awareness
of resource conservation for reducing sewage generation.

Reduction of Solid Wastes

The Group has maintained a high degree of management
over reducing leakage of various oil products, thereby
reducing generation of related wastes. Through
lean production, the containers for paints with low
consumption were changed to small containers to
reduce the amount of hazardous wastes such as waste
paint residues and paint containers used. In addition,
the Group also upgraded its processes to reduce the
generation of hazardous wastes, such as the adoption of
centrifugal casting process to fully prevent the release of
asbestos wastes.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2022
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MEZESRAENRAEEE B
WEBAEXEFHE - RKE - REB
FEIBREESAKEDERIELN
AXIZERE  WIREeBIMHNE
BoORDIEKEAE -

L EIRRERY
AEE-BEARREER BRI
T h an B EHR - REmOR 2 EAK AR
BMRBEYEL  WRBRBREE
BRELHBRRBNEE B
BERZRENHAMEREEEDN
BE M KRETEERATE
WD BEREMNESL - WA
ABELBENTE  2EM LA
BEWIHIBEDR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE - HERERERE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) BIE -HERERRE®
A Environmental Protection (Continued) A BRERESR)
1. Emissions (Continued) 1. BB

1.4 Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued)

1.4 B EREEYE)

The operating sites covered in the Report generated a
total of 135.11 tonnes of non-hazardous waste during
the Year, and the types and distributions of these
wastes are set out in the following table. Currently, the
main identified hazardous wastes included: waste paint
residues, scrap paint containers and waste mineral oils.
The cumulative volume of all such wastes reached 30.26
tonnes throughout the year. The Group recovers waste
paint residues through the water curtain system, and
reduced waste paint residues by 5.97 tonnes in 2022.
The Group recovers dust through vacuum cleaner and
cutting purifier, and reduced dust emissions by 0.2 tonne
in 2022. The Group also uses cyclone dust removal
and bag dust removal to reduce exhaust gas and dust
particles. The total amount of waste reduced in 2022
was 7.03 tonnes.

ABEMRENE BN AFE
AHEF135VTENEEZREEY)
HEEESHIMTNRAR : BATH
BRNITEHEEEEZEVEIE Bl
RE BERAMKERYSR  2F
23:130.2608 - £EE B BKERLE
WRERARDE E T ZFHIMF
VA B RE R R EES . 97ME o BB E
Ze IR EE RS AN B R L 22 B WK EE -
E_T__FHERIMEERE
0.2 - £ & [F &5 5| FA BE 2L Bk B2 AN R
RBERVEIMHEEN - £
T FHMEMMRLNEDREE
7.030Mf o

Emission intensity per tonne

Type of Waste

Total volume (tonnes) of production unit

BEYESR EHEHES () BWEEBNHERBE
In 2022 In 2021 In 2022 In 2021
—E-= —E-—F —E-— —E-—F
Hazardous wastes BEEZEY 30.26 11.44 0.0024 0.005

Non-hazardous wastes mEREZEY)

Scrap steel REHM 44.79 67.95 0.0350 0.030
Scrap paper cartons REAR SR B3 5.65 3.33 0.0004 0.001
Scrap wooden boxes BERBEERE 10.42 6.38 0.0008 0.003
Domestic wastes HEERIR 43.99 32.42 0.0034 0.014

MR AEERABIRIRERE - 12

Due to the expansion of the scope of data collection
during the Year and the addition of two subsidiaries in
Zhengzhou and Xi‘an, the Group's total waste discharge
in the financial year 2022 has increased significantly.
However, the Group has effectively reduced waste
emissions through various measures, and the emission
intensity of various wastes has decreased significantly
except for the slight increase in emission intensity for
steel waste as compared with that of last year.

MBHMALZMRF AR ANEE
R-FB-__MFNEEVIRLE
BERRNREEEN BEEERBERA
R B EERYEEN - &HE
EMREBERENMREFRE
BRI HMEHERMHENETE
R IE TR

Target B1Z

&

For the financial year 2023, the Group will continue to strengthen the improvement measures and
management approaches of waste emissions, aiming to present a downward trend from financial year
2022.

“T=WF - ARESEE IR ER DB R SCER N E

# .

Bk B - _—F2 TS

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)

1.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Emissions (Continued)
1.4 Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued)

Handling of Hazardous Wastes

The Group develops a plan for hazardous waste
management on an annual basis, and sets waste quantity
targets for all relevant departments. Regular assessment
is conducted and appropriate control measures are
implemented for waste reduction where necessary. To
cooperate with relevant management efforts, the Group
arranges for the classification of hazardous wastes, puts
up signs of hazardous wastes in the storage area, and
engages qualified subcontractors for proper handling.

Reuse of Wastes

The Group keeps strengthening quality control to reduce
wastes resulting from non-conforming products, and is
striving to extract steel materials from wastes for “non-
production” usage. Through this approach, a total of
31.0 tonnes of steel materials was reused throughout the
Year. In addition, scrap iron chippings generated during
the processing stage was also reused by the Group for
casting production.

Recycle of Wastes

In order to effectively handle recyclable wastes, the Group
requires employees to classify relevant wastes and affix
them with appropriate labels, which facilitates collection
and periodic delivery to the qualified subcontractors
for recycling and disposal. One of the examples is the
handling of scrap product packaging cartons, in respect
of which the Group follows the abovementioned policy
and engages qualified agencies for collecting and
recycling of such paper wastes. The total amount of such
wastes recycled during the Year was 9.39 tonnes.

» Annual Report 2022
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ZRAERNDBEEEAEEE -
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BIE -HERERRE®

A Environmental Protection (Continued) A BRERESR)
2. Effective Use of Resources 2. BERMERER

The Group consumes resources mainly through material
procurement, product manufacturing and office operations,
and has formulated policies in these 3 aspects for managing

AEENEREBIZIRNYHRE  E
mBERRATENE  HEM=TE &
B B EARRABCR - UAREBEIRM B LA

the effective use of resources and reducing wastage: MRDRE

Formulate policies related to the efficient use of resources

FERBEREREBABR

a)

b)

Green Procurement Policy:

BRERBEEK

Environmental safety assessments shall be conducted before procurement of chemicals. Toxic and hazardous
products shall be substituted by products that are non-toxic or of low-toxicity;
RECEnK  BEEETRRZETE  UESHESHERDRESIHEETER

Green Manufacturing Policy: The manufacturing process mainly involves consumption of energy, use of raw

materials and use of water for exhaust gas treatment. In view of this, the Group has formulated policies to address
issues in these three aspects:

BRERERE  ZEEETIZPRERNER  BEMANERREREENAK  SULBRREEE=(E2

m :

iii)

Newly purchased equipment shall meet the national energy consumption level, and purchase of high energy
consumption equipment listed in the national phase-out catalogue is prohibited.
MBI RETREERMERSR  RIERBEZAKE SENRAEFERE °

Technological processes shall be optimised for improving utilisation of steel and reducing the amount of
scrap steel material, and for the use of materials, the Group shall strive to recycle scrap product packaging
cartons. These policies helps with reduction in both waste generation and consumption of paper resources.
BATERE  RESEMERE  BLBEZMAVMOEE  EYHNER L SEBORERNBERNE
mBEAM - IR — T ER DY REY - RS EEREEIR o

In the spray-painting process of the Group’s factories, the exhaust gas treatment system currently in use is
designed to absorb exhaust gas through water recycling, thereby reducing the use of fresh water supply.
This saved 135 cubic metres of fresh water throughout the Year.

EEBTITHMERBESR BRI EEFEANBERERERLS @ FEKERBHAARKESR « 8RB
oK - AREE HEE 1355 TR FTEF K o
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BR - HEREREKSE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) BRE HERERBE®
A Environmental Protection (Continued) A RERE®E)
2. Effective Use of Resources (Continued) 2. BERERERE)

Formulate policies related to the efficient use of resources

FERBEREREABR

c¢) Green Office Policy: Reduction in use of office resources includes:

BRERAERE RSB AETNERER - B4

(i) using double-sided printing of paper instead of single-sided printing, and prioritising a paperless office
operation and application of electronic filing record, to minimise the use of papers;
EAREBITHREREEITE  WBAEZEREMMCPNEE  BEERAEFFRIHE MM RE
A

(i) using water-saving devices as much as possible amongst office facilities, such as high-efficient flushing toilets
and automatic sensor switch faucets, and reminding employees to save water in daily operations;
MARMBRBHRAEKEE - 11 BEHKERNME SR ERBARKER  TEAEEETIREST
BRI FAIK

(iii) improving interior design to make full use of natural lighting, such as the use of transparent tiles, and

maximising the use of energy-saving devices including LED lights, adoption of acoustic automatic control and
solar power supply for public lighting. The current office buildings adopted LED lights during construction.
Solar panels are used for street lighting in new factories, light and acoustic automatic controls are used in
public area lighting, newly purchased equipment must meet the national energy consumption level and
purchase high energy consumption equipment in the national phase-out catalog is prohibited.
HEZENX: G SEFAEAR. - 10 : KABKES  UREHASERES - 1 EFALEDE - A
IRIATRAE X B EEH - RIBREMES - BATNHRAERIFTERRALEDE « MR IR ERBARAX
(BRe TR - AR BARANIENEE  FTRERETHEERNERSR - RIERBEZGAE
B EM=ALRERE

Major resources consumed by the Group during the Year are RAEE - KEMERNEZEZRRETIW
listed as follows. Electricity remained as the main resource T BADNREZHEANEIR - RAF
consumed. The Group did not encounter any problems in B AEBEESKE B SRR EIEE T
sourcing water that is fit for purpose during the Year. R

Intensity of consumption per

Resources Consumption tonne of production unit
BWEEENN
BiR #E ERARE
In 2022 In 2021 In 2022 In 2021
—E- —E-—F —E-— —E-—F
Municipal Electricity (kWh) T8 (F FLBF) 7,647,361 1,941,240 594.85 862.12
Fresh water (cubic metres) — FTEEEIK (5775 K) 32,928 11,558 2.56 5.13
Package material (tonnes) B2} (HR) 53.79 74.37 0.004 0.033
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

A

Environmental Protection (Continued)

2. Effective Use of Resources (Continued)
In 2022, the intensity of consumption of electricity, water and
package material of the Group has decreased significantly as
compared with 2021, representing a decrease of 31%, 50%
and 88%, respectively.

&

Target B

BE - HERERERE

RiE - HERERBE®
A RERE®E)
2. BEREAERE)
REFBZTZZ_FE  KNBREMHH
RAZRER-Z-—F KR IE - THBL
B9 R A&31% * 50%F88% °

For the financial year 2023, the Group will present a downward trend in the intensity of consumption of
electricity, water and package materials as compared to the financial year 2022.

—E-WF - AKEEES

3. Education on Environment

3.1

3.2

Environmental Protfection Training fo Employees
To coordinate with the implementation of the
environmental policies and measures, the Group
has formulated an employee training programme
for continued enhancement of their environmental
awareness and competence in the implementation of
relevant measures. In the Year, the number of employees
that participated in the environmental protection
trainings and trainings on identification, collection,
transfer and storage of hazardous wastes reached 532
persons with a total of 1,174 training hours, which is
approximately 70.39% higher than that achieved in
previous year which was 689 training hours, which will
reduce environmental risks imposed by the relevant
operations in a more effective way.

Promotion of Environmental Protection along the
Supply Chain

Suppliers are important partners with the Group. The
Group intends to enhance the environmental awareness
of its suppliers by taking advantage of its influence in the
supply chain. Consequently, environmental performance
has also become one of the evaluation criteria during
the supplier selection and approval process, thereby
enhancing suppliers’ awareness of environmental
protection and reducing carbon emissions to the
environment.

%

KMBEMBERAEER _T_—

3.

T ZFFHR

MEZTRBE -

RIEHAE
3.1 BEIBRE
ATRASERRRELEEHRNE

B AEESEEIEE - TH R
FEIHIRIRE S RAREEENH
Th  AEEEISEBREIE
EREEYHE KK ER BT
FEIBES32 AR - A 11745531
% ¥t EFEH689EIRREE I/
 HHN#I70.39% @ B E A BB
m%%%%&&mmﬁm@o

3.2 REHRREME
HEBEAEENEEZAERH
AEEFAEREEHERTNRE
N RAVERORRER W%
EEERBHHEBNEREST
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RIE - HERES

CE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

A

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Environmental Protection (Continued)

4,

Minimising of Significant Impacts to Environment and
Natural Resources

In respect of the business nature of the Group, we have not
found any significant impact of our business activities on the
environment or natural resources. Through relevant measures,
the Group is committed to enhancing environmental
sustainability and reducing its impact on the environment.

In addition to the aforesaid policies and measures for reduction
of emissions and effective use of resources, all products from
the Group have been strictly certified by Classification Societies
for fulfilment of the environmental protection requirements
for offshore products. Moreover, TSC Offshore has established
and obtained the 1ISO14001 Environmental Management
System certification, and has formulated effective procedures
to ensure minimising of environmental risks in its operations.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
operating site with any legal violation or complaint relating to
environment.

@

Target B &

B -

HERERAE®

A BRERESE

4.

BOHBRERRAREFREREALE

RASBENEBEEMS - RALEER
EBEDHRERRAEREREMEXN
FE - AEEFBREBER - BIRET
REAFHBERONEHRENTE

PR T o3l P B A ISR B Bt DAURR R PR
RERERER  SEEEFHERDE
BBMAENBRRRE  UWne s LESR
TERR I EMER ; BtHh - TSC Offshore
Y RIERISO14001 R E B IR RAE -
Bl EARMIRT MiERESERIEPROE
IRIFER YRR o

EREHRA - NREEYEZFRETALE
Bhw NOE ORISR B HE DI AR R IR -

For the financial year 2023, no operating site of the Group will be in violation of laws relating to

environment or receive relevant complaints.

“ECCUF  AEEET S E IS RIERIRERBEEG S

Climate Change

The Group is deeply aware of the impact brought by climate
change, actively responds to the government’s “carbon
peak” and “carbon neutrality” goals, continuously explores
new opportunities in the new energy industry, enhances
climate risk resilience, and makes contributions to business of
environmental protection. During the reporting period, to the
best knowledge of the Board, the Group was not materially
affected by any climate-related issues.

&

Target B &

2IAERAER AR

RixZ 1t
AEEBFABBIRIER#CEROTZE
I 7% 1 28 e WO [ Ak 1 | K [k e A0 ) B
1B TERRMEREETHE - IR
RERZIE  SREZFEELER - XK
SHIF  RESEMAKN - AEEYER
FREEEREMXIERZE -

For the financial year 2023, the Group will not be materially affected by any climate-related issues.

“FoSHE  ARERREARRANHENEEE
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

B Social Responsibility
Employment Policies and Practices
1.  Employment

1.1

Employment Policies

The Group regards employees as its most important
assets. We adhere to the concept of common
development of employees and the Group and guarantee
equal rights for every talent by establishing a fair, open,
diverse and inclusive employment system, and we always
pay attention to the growth of our employees and
create a good working environment to enhance their job
satisfaction.

The Group has always strived to maintain equal
employment opportunities. Every vacancy in the Group
is publicly advertised through online, intra-group
competition or other appropriate channels. A fair
selection process is conducted based on each applicant’s
competence, skills, etc. The Group has developed and
followed the equal opportunity policy with regular
reviews on implementation. The Group will not refuse
job applications for attributes such as race, skin colour,
gender, language, religion and/or political views, etc.,
and the treatment of employees in the Group will not be
affected by the above factors.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify
any legal violation or complaint relating to discrimination
or other employment practices. The Group also strictly
complies with legal requirements relating to bilateral
termination of employment contracts in each of its
operating locations.

In the future, we will continue to adhere to our fair,
open, diverse and inclusive employment policies, and
encourage more talents of different backgrounds and
from different regions to join the Group.

BE - HERERERE

RE - HERERAE®
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RiE  HERERKRSE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)
B Social Responsibility (Continued)

Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

1. Employment (Continued)
1.2 Composition of Employees

RIE -HERERRE®

tEEFE)
ERBERERE)
1. EREE)

1.2 EEAK

As of 31 December 2022, the four operation sites
covered by this Report had 309 employees, all of whom
were full-time employees. There were no part-time
employees and 58.39% of them ranged in the age group

HE-_T-_=—F+=ZA=+—H80 "
N R 25 BT 6 0 A Y B 4 5B i Bh{E P
309% BT FIBEEAEZMET - &
FEET > 5839%MB TERNANE

of 31 to 45.

By Gender
RUER & 5

4SRRI R

By Age Group
RERARE 2

o Sl
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® it {26152 ()
Mal
o =i 84.47% “[l

By Geographical Regions
it E 85
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By Employment Type
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

B Social Responsibility (Continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)
1. Employment (Continued)
1.2 Composition of Employees (Continued)

The average monthly employee turnover rate for the Year
is summarized as follows. The employee turnover rate
for the Year in different statistical categories decreased
significantly compared with that of 2021, and the total
average employee turnover rate decreased by 39%
compared with that of last year.

BE - HERERERE

RE - HERERRE®
B #HEEF®E)
BREBRERERGE)
1. EEGE)
12 EEAKE)
AFEEMTATFHEE RAEHl
T BT = —FIELLE - AF
EWMEIRAXETRSFDENYE
ANEETR  BEHEIREAER
EFETFE39% ©

2022 Average

2021 Average

Monthly Monthly
Employee Employee
Turnover Rate Turnover Rate
(%) (%)
—E-= —E-—4F
8ATH BRA¥H
EERAE EERKE
(%) (%)
Gender 4 5l

Male Bk 0.53 0.89
Female g 0.35 0.40

Age group BT F#
18-30 18-30 1.18 4.47
31-45 31-45 0.43 0.93
46-60 46-60 0.33 0.42
> 60 > 60 0 0
Overall average: #Eg 0.50 0.82

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA

{57



118

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HERER

HE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

1.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Employment (Continued)
1.3 Employee Benefits and Public Welfare Activities

In order to attract more talents in various positions, the
Group’s remuneration system is based on job grade
and performance. The wages paid by the Group and
its other subsidiaries have reached the minimum wage
standards of the regions in which the Group is operating.
In addition to ensuring employees’ stable income from
the basic salary, the Group also provides bonuses
in association with the employee’s performance for
recognition and retention of outstanding employees.

The Group purchases additional commercial insurance
(covering critical illness, traffic accident, etc.) for those
employees of certain seniority to offer them additional
coverage. In addition, each mainland Chinese employee
is entitled to sick leave benefit better than the statutory
requirement. While the statutory requirement allows for
a 30% deduction in employees’ wages during a sick leave
period, the Group provides employees with 6 days of
paid sick leave in a year during which no wage deduction
is required. Other employee benefits include free shuttle
bus for pick-up and drop off, transport allowances,
phone allowances, and lunch subsidies etc.

» Annual Report 2022
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

1.

Employment (Continued)
1.3 Employee Benefits and Public Welfare Activities

(Continued)

In addition, we believe that creating an engaging
corporate culture is critical to the development of our
employees. In this regard, the Group arranged a trip to
Laoshan Scenic Area (1% |1/ & = %) and Laoshan Academy
(1851112 B3) for the staff of functional departments in the
PRC region, GHT, and Institute of Science and Technology
Innovation of the Group to carry out a corporate activity
entitled “Hiking Famous Mountains on the Sea and
Visiting the Holy Land of Chinese Ancient Academy to
Celebrate the 20th National Congress (2 =+ X -
g EAIL - BEEEM)” in 2022. On the one hand,
the corporate activity conveyed great concern about
the psychological health development of employees,
added employee benefits, enriched the cultural life of
employees, and sublimated their happiness. On the
other hand, the corporate activity further promoted and
deepened the interaction and communication among
employees, strengthened the teamwork atmosphere,
improved the cohesion and combat effectiveness of the
team, strengthened the construction of corporate culture
and ESG practice effectively, and realised common
enhancement of personal and corporate values.
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

2.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to employees. As an
employer, we are committed to protecting the health and
safety of all employees. In order to continuously mitigate the
impact of operations to occupational health and safety, the
Group is not only committed adhering to the laws, regulations
and industry standards as the baseline, and but also striving to
achieve the safety targets of “Zero Occupational Disease” and
“Zero Major of Casualties”.

All of the Group’s employees at or above managerial level, the
labour union chairperson and OHS employee representatives
are members of the Safety Committee which is responsible for
the relevant occupational health and safety matters within the
Group. The Group adheres to the “Stop Work” policy, which
entitles any employee to stop work any time an employee’s
safety is subject to risk in order to prevent the occurrence of
work-related incidents.

We have comprehensive safety policies and measures to
provide protection for employees. The Group strives to
identify various opportunities for prevention of occupational
disease through enhancement of the work environment. The
Group also actively responds to advice given by employees
in relation to occupational health and safety, recognises
and rewards those employees who have contributed to the
continual improvement in those areas. In addition, the Group
also maintains close communication with all employees and
relevant stakeholders on occupational health and safety, and
has established multiple communication channels and models
to ensure the health and safety of all employees.

The Group provides suitable personal protective equipment
free of charge to its employees including helmets, safety
goggles, protective masks, safety gloves, safety belts and
purifying respirators. For employees exposed to occupational
disease hazards, including those who work in painting and
shot blasting processes, the Group arranges annual, free-of-
charge physical examinations by qualified medical institutions
to ensure the health of employees. During the Year, the Group
has arranged for a total of 62 employees to undertake physical
examination, from which no case of occupational disease was
diagnosed.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2022
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

2.

Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

At the same time, in view of the continuous impact of
COVID-19, the Group has taken various measures to ensure
the health and safety of its employees. The Group, in
accordance with the local pandemic prevention requirements,
promotes its employees to enhance their pandemic prevention
awareness, encourages employees to get vaccinated, and
implements the working-from-home system with flexible
working hours in the light of the severity of the pandemic. The
Group have also provided employees with preventive gears,
such as surgical masks, alcohol and disinfectant. At the same
time, the Group has also issued guidelines to its staff, advising
on measures to cope with COVID-19 outbreaks among its
staff and their family members. In addition, the Group has
established a systematic reporting mechanism to handle
employee applications, coordinate and deal with employee
work arrangements timely and properly, thereby ensuring
normal business operation.

On the other hand, the Group strives to raise the safety
awareness of its employees through promotion on bulletin
boards and posting of safety signs. More importantly, the
Group has also established a safety training and education
system and developed an annual training plan at the beginning
of the Year. Occupational health and safety training courses
are conducted regularly to its employees, and training topics
include general occupational health and safety education,
correct usage of personal protective equipment, and safety
precautions for various hazardous work, such as trainings on
occupational health and safety, safety of dangerous chemicals,
safe use of gas, safety of welding, safety of welding operation,
safety of painting operation, sand blasting operation and
lifting operation, fire safety and safety of operation at heights.
Taking into consideration various health and safety training
programmes, the total number of the Group’s employees
trained in the Year was 1,417, reaching a total of 2,921.5
training hours. Moreover, the Group considers the mental well-
being of employees to be valuable assets, and has alleviated
employees’ working pressure through arrangement of various
activities such as mental well-being courses and group sharing,
with a total of 13 cross-team exchange activities held in the
Year.
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

2.

Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

Some of the subsidiaries within the Group (such as Qingdao
TSC Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd.), have established and
achieved the OHSAS 18001 safety management system. In
accordance with the requirements of the management system
certification, the Group has identified clearly the origins of
dangers in the workplace and conducted risk assessment at
those areas. Relevant companies have evaluated the workplace
on the occupational hazards in plants in 2022 for ensuring
appropriate controls in all positions with hazards. In addition,
the Group has established a 6S inspection system for regular
check of workplaces and inspection of fire and electrical
equipment, and has formulated plans for regular maintenance
of equipment.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group identified neither
any legal violation against the key regulations relating to
occupational health and safety, nor any incident of work-
related fatality or working days lost due to work-related
injury. The Group had no employees involved in work-related
fatalities in the past three years.
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For the financial year 2023, the Group will maintain a workplace fatality rate at zero, and no employees will

involve in work-related fatalities.

“EC=F AKERFIESHATERT EETPRATIRTEY -
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BIE -HERERRE®

B Social Responsibility (Continued) B #HE8EFE®)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued) ERBERERE)
3. Career Development and Training 3. BERREEY

The Group adheres to the principle of meritocracy and REEERIAAESIMRA - FERRMH

regularly provides its employees with promotion opportunities, BIEAKE BIMNABELSEZHIE

which is based on a comprehensive evaluation of both the KB N M EETHBEINTE - [/

employee’s work performance and competence. In addition, - INIERSEREBENNOAT TR H

the Group also emphasises on training of potential talent, and SERMIIEIAETEERAELT -

the Group's internal training team is responsible for developing

talent.

The Group is implementing two major training programs: REBIEEETMAIZIFE -

Q%gb C/edaLr program
oo #HEE

This program is designed to develop talents with high potential and establish teams of high performance.
This program offers systematic training courses, and talent is developed in two aspects (managerial and
technological) and four talent categories (high potential talent, global key talent, local key talent and
technical expert). After accumulation of three to five years of work experience, trainees will become the
backbone of the Group.
RERSEBENAL  BURBHERK - LS ARGCHEIIRE - AL VD BERAMER R (B
AEMD) ROBEAA (RBEAT ~ 2IREARAS - BHEARAST BWER) - 2EBEB=FRFHTIELK
BRRETE HERR/RAKENHENE -
This program is designed to develop the internal training team within the Company and to effectively pass
on technology and promote the corporate culture of the Group. Through systematic training, the Group
firstly trains up a group of influential staff through a 1 to 3 ratio training sharing model and such staff will
then become a high performance training team after accumulation of three to five years of experience.
BB R RN EEIIEE - B EARMAE A REBHNEEE - BBRIENEN - BEBR
—HEXENNET  BEIATIANSIDZRN  TREE=ZFZAFHNLER  KAREXNEIE
B o

In 2022, the total number of employees at the Qingdao, RIE—FEAREMRENTS - B

Zhengzhou and Xi'an operation sites covered by this Report MAMPAZ EE M - #EXIFINETBA

who received training reached 1,116 with a total of 1,672 IREGEN,116 © B 1,672 -

training hours.

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BR - HEREREKSE

ESG GOVERNANCE (Continued) RE - HERERRE®
B Social Responsibility (Continued) B #HgEFE®)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued) ERBERERE)
3. Career Development and Training (Continued) 3. BERRIZY(E)
The following tables set forth the enhancement in HTRABRAFEEEREZIREETD
performance achieved by the Group in terms of proportion of Lt R B B F IR B E R E R A SR
employees trained and the average number of training hours EFRKFERANEERA  EEREES
per employee during the Year as compared with last year, F P9 55 0 B0R 40.22/ N

but the average training hours per employee per month has
decreased by 0.22 hours:

Monthly Average Proportion of Trained Employees (%)
BEZEINEENESATHEE (%)

In 2022 In 2021 Change (%)
—ZT—— T (%)
Gender 4 Bl
Male Bk 32.41 27.61 17.39%
Female poglis 25.44 24.68 3.08%
Employee Rank EE& R
Senior management BRERE 29.10 26.39 10.27%
Middle management RRERE 32.26 21.58 49.49%
Junior employee /BT 35.37 27.52 28.52%
Overall average B 31.31 27.16 15.28%
Monthly Average Training Time of Each Employee
(hour)
BHEENSE B FHEZIEFE (NE)
In 2022 In 2021 Change (%)
e —T— B1E(%)

Gender % Bl
Male s 0.48 0.72 -33.33%
Female I 0.41 0.91 -54.95%
Employee Rank EE& 5
Senior management BREEE 1.05 0.84 25.00%
Middle management PAREEE 0.98 0.94 4.26%
Junior employee MIF/ET 0.57 0.71 -19.72%
Overall average By 0.53 0.75 -29.33%

@ Target B

For the financial year 2023, the average monthly training time of the male and female employees of the
Group will increase to at least 1 to 2 hours, respectively.
—TCE  AEESERLZMEEESNE B FAEIRR S RBE MBI E DN Z2/)NE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

B Social Responsibility (Continued)
Employment Policies and Practices (Continued)

4.

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with the employment laws and
regulations in each of its operating locations pertaining to
child labour and forced labour. As a result, all job applicants
are required to provide personal identification documents for
verification to ensure that they are at least 18 years old. The
Group prohibits any form of forced labor or servitude, and
ensures that all employees work voluntarily.

Prior to confirmation of employment contracts, the Group
allows sufficient time for employees to read and understand
the relevant terms and conditions, and contracts are to be
signed only when employees fully understand the content.

The Group has always promoted the principle of work life
balance and does not encourage overtime work. The Group
strictly controls the number of overtime hours by requiring
a review and approval process when overtime work is
required, under which all overtime work must be approved by
department managers and abide by the local labour laws.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any

complaint or legal violation relating to child labour and forced
labour.

@ Target B &

BE - HERERERE

RE - HERERAE®

eE5FE@E)

EREBRERERGE)

4. [FILEETRZEH%T
NEEBRRBTSLEEREHERETIR
BHA THREMIKAISEEER - At
FT B T E W ERE & 0 BB U

C AEREFREM T\ c ARELE
JHHTH/EW’J%@LEI BT HER - WHERAT
BREONEBBERTSEHTIE -

AEEEBTAVERBANAMLHEHE TR
ﬁB%F'EH ARERTHRANASR EE\I
AOEREBENER  HATREFMA
o

AEE-EREREETEARMNRR 'J
REBNEEERTIE - MAZERER

B HE AR R B R FE Il DO DT R 2 - EH)JDIE
DEZEBHFILENRLL  YRETE
)85 A

EHREMA  AEEYEFREWETR
58 Il 85 T RO IAR SRR E AR B AT

For the financial year 2023, the Group will have no complaints or legal violations relating to child labour and

forced labour.

TR CUF  AREEAHET REHS THRASABNERSEMF -

%

T ZFFHR

cEFHEREFREENRERERAA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HERER

HE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

&,

5.1

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Supplier Selection and Management

The Group adopts the QHSE criteria for supply
management, through which its suppliers are selected
with their performance of corporate social responsibility
as one of the evaluation criteria. Suppliers are required
to sign and comply with the code of supplier’'s conduct
established by the Group, which contains clauses relating
to environmental protection, anti-bribery, etc. The
Group also actively encourages communication with the
suppliers through multiple channels (including telephone,
e-mail, questionnaire, and training, etc.) to elaborate the
Group's requirements of corporate social responsibility
by promoting the mutual benefits from fulfilment of the
responsibility.

The process of manufacturing equipment for onshore
and offshore drilling rig and wind power installation
platform is extremely complex and tedious, involving the
assembly of fine and complex parts, and the threshold
and qualification requirements for suppliers are very high,
which requires standardized work processes and stable
supply chains to ensure consistency. In order to ensure
that the quality of equipment produced is consistent
and maintained at a high level, we must have effective
supply chain management, and establish a sustainable
relationship with suppliers of materials, electronic parts,
equipment, services, etc. Therefore, the Group strictly
follows internal procedures to communicate with
suppliers and ensure that the required goods and services
are purchased in a competitive, fair and transparent
manner. As quality, environmental protection, service and
cost performance are the key indicators for the Group'’s
assessment of suppliers, the Group has developed a
systematic supplier management system to manage its
supply chain to identify, analyze, select and manage
suppliers based on clear criteria.

» Annual Report 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)

&,

5.2

58}

54

Distribution of Suppliers

The Group has qualified supplier quality assurance
personnel (SQA) to evaluate suppliers in various aspects
on a regular basis, and to conduct audits on specified
suppliers for ensuring the compliance of their operations
with the Group’s requirements. As of 31 December
2022, there was a total of 724 qualified suppliers for
provision of materials to the Group, and their number in
terms of geographical regions are: 704 based in China, 2
based in Taiwan, China, 2 based in Switzerland, 1 based
in Ireland, 1 based in Italy, 1 based in France, 6 based in
Germany, 2 based in Japan and 5 based in U.S.A.

Evaluation of Social Responsibility/Environmental
Performance Aspects

Apart from considering the aforesaid scope of evaluation,
the Group gives priority to local suppliers possessing
the same qualities to support the reduction in emission
of greenhouse gases. The proportion of local suppliers
currently accounts for approximately 97.2% of the total
supply base, and overseas procurement will be made
only when suitable local suppliers are not available.
Moreover, some suppliers are subject to the evaluation of
social responsibility/environmental performance aspects,
and approximately 85.2% of the Group’s suppliers have
fulfilled those evaluation requirements in the Year.

Supplier Evaluation Results

During the Year, the Group has engaged 183 new
suppliers. They had passed through the evaluation prior
to procurement, and some of them were additionally
required to go through on-site assessment for ensuring
compliance with the requirements of the Group and
its customers. Moreover, each of the Group’s existing
suppliers is also subject to annual evaluation for
continued monitoring of their performance. Those
existing suppliers which may have significant impact
on the Group’s operations are even subject to on-site
assessment. In 2022, 99 new suppliers and 287 existing
suppliers passed the on-site assessment.

BE - HERERERE

RE - HERERAE®
B EEEM

EEE A ()

5 HEREEE)

52

58

54

TR FFR

HEED M

REBEEENHEREREAE
(SQA)E AL BT % F A M ET
e WTEEBFHETHHENET
Bz UEATMNEEREARE
BRENEX  BHEZT-_—_F+
ZA=+—H HBET724REERH
ifﬁﬁﬁ’il}m WA F il
EMAREEL  PEAKETMLR -

FEAE2R  WmE2X  BEHEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BR - HEREREKSE

E
B

SG GOVERNANCE (continued) IR

Social Responsibility (Continued) B

Operating Practices (Continued)

6.  Product Liability
The Group has established and implemented the 1SO9001
Quality Management System, and has formulated appropriate
monitoring procedures to address corresponding potential
product quality risks. All products are required to pass
through relevant quality inspection, whereby their design,
manufacturing process, installation and testing shall all
conform to relevant standards, specifications and technical
requirements, as well as satisfy relevant design parameters. In
addition, all products are subject to rigorous certification and
safety verification by Classification Societies.

The product quality assurance process of the Group is
controlled through the following four aspects:

5 HgRERRE®
HEEE®E

& EEpI ()

6. EGEML

EBEEYLEMISO0TESEREX -
HESBBIMEREZRK - WHES
BEZEREF MBEMVEBBEER
Al - HERET - BUERRE - ZRANEREL
AREMEBAMNELE  REMZWER - I
WK R 28 - BN TEEMY
BRI RBEMELNEEREREZER

K

=

AEBENEREEREERBENTTRE
TTHEAETTEE

Inspection of Materials )
MEmE

« All raw materials must undergo incoming inspection based on their drawings, standards, specifications and
technical agreements. Only materials which pass the inspection are allowed for storage.

« Raw materials that are going to be used in products requiring classification are subject to certification by
Classification Societies, and are allowed for storage and use only after approval.

< FTE RMELNARKIBEL 15 R RITHESETERRR  AREFAIARE -

« BEARHERNEM B ZLBMALRE - SREF AT AEER °

« Verification and testing are conducted during the manufacturing process. Semi-finished products can only
proceed to the next stage after they have passed relevant verification and testing.
« Manufacturing of products requiring classification must undergo certification by Classification Societies, and

can only proceed to next stage after approval.

- BITRREEHMEAR - LBRRERNFKETBRAZ T —IF -

- BEARERNEEBRETEBMAMRE  GREFRAT—IF -

Inspection of Finished Products )
HmRE

« Finished products are subject to final inspection and comprehensive FAT testing.
« Products requiring classification must be certified by Classification Societies and are only allowed for

delivery after the relevant approval report has been issued.
- SELAEmAE TR A M B ATELER N
BEABRE DT EBMRLRE - MREEERERTAIRE -

Non-conforming Product Control )
TEBmE

« Whenever non-conformities are identified during the quality verification process, the non-conforming product
is analysed and processed, and would be taken out of the manufacturing process.

cERBBRETERTARE S TARMETANMMEE - ZIETARAERELEBETEERS -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

B Social Responsibility (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)

6.

Product Liability (Continued)

Apart from monitoring of product quality, the Group is also
concerned about the protection of customer information
and privacy policy, and has signed confidentiality agreements
with employees which prohibits employees from disclosing
product information to unauthorised personnel. For electronic
information relevant to customers and self-branded products,
such as specifications and drawings, they are encrypted for
protection from leakage. All new employees are introduced to
the Group’s personal data protection act policies during the
new employee orientation which guides them to respect the
confidentiality of our customers’ information. New employees
are also required to acknowledge the confidentiality clauses
in the employment contract and employee handbook. Any
violation of the clause leads to immediate dismissal and/or
legal action taken against the offender. The Group has also
implemented firewall, anti-virus, and anti-spam solutions for
our information systems to safeguard confidential corporate
information. During the reporting period, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance to the personal data protection
act.

The Group is also concerned about the protection of
intellectual property. Where appropriate, the Group will apply
for patents to seek protection from the relevant authorities.
The relevant patents obtained by the Group in the Year are
listed as follows:

Name of product/technology patent
Em/ RS &8

BE - HERERERE

BIE -HERERRE®

B HEHRE®
LEEGI(E)
6. EmEMEHE)
BRTEZERASNEGE  AREMIR
FERFREREBLBER - YEE THRIR
Eihek  ZRULBTHIRRENALERE
mEE - HEFMARKEMMNRERER
SHENETER  HMEETMHEEN
BISMt  FrE TR BN ARIEIIHEGS S
REMAEBOEABRREEBER - A
BEREGETFPELSNREL - MES
MEARERE DL EE FMATEnRE
R - BRESERERER,IELRR
AETE - ARETNEREMNEE RS
LI NG DS B R B B AR R
TR NREARNBEER - RREH
B AN B30 B IR AL AR IR B A B RHE
FERBEDR

REB MBI ABEENEE - HAED
Eom o ANEEE REEEERBENR
# U TRAFEREENNEEEHE
-

Registration authority

A

A type of PMS power station management system and
method, and information data processing terminal
—TEPMSE U E IR R A R % 15 B BRI K0

A type of diesel engine digital electronic governor

— RSB T E T R AR

A type of MCC system monitoring device
—EMCCRHIEREE

A type of method for acquiring and displaying internal
signals of a microcontroller
— B3 A PO ) 23 R BRME SR RO ER SR R BRR 3 0R

State Intellectual Property Office

B M ERE R

State Intellectual Property Office
B B E R

State Intellectual Property Office
BIR MBERE D

State Intellectual Property Office

B HBERE R

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA
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BR - HEREREKSE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)

6.

Product Liability (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance to the relevant laws and regulations relating
to intellectual property rights, marketing and labelling.

Despite the implementation of robust quality management, the
Group still attaches importance to customer feedback and has
established a comprehensive complaint handling system. Sales
and project management team will firstly communicate with
customers to identify the details of nonconforming situation,
then the quality management team will analyse the cause(s)
with the relevant departments propose corrective actions.
Eventually the sales and project management team will reply to
customers with the relevant solution and the implementation
thereof.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify
any legal violation or complaint case relating to product
responsibility. In the same period, no product was recalled
for safety and health reasons. In addition, the Group was
presented with certificates of management system from
relevant institutions in the Year for recognition of the Group’s
product quality and technological achievements:

Name of Product Award

EmBEEN

BRIE -HERERRE®

B HEHE®
LEEGI(E)
6. EmEMEHE)
R|BEHE - AEBE L EEREMAERM
HMERE - EHRFERBARERNE

BEBTTENEERTE  AREDER
BEFPRBEIL HETENRFHES - A
ERHBEEMARERBTIIN « #
BTN ANABER  AREEEHEHE
SHABE LI RE LR B A EFEE ¢ 35
ERAEBEEMHRARTRERITIRAR
BEIRP o

RIBERHE - AEBYEZREMERE
an 2 E AR B HDE I SR B EAT R AR ESR
RS WREERALTEEEFEMAMA
ZEUY o pEoh - RERAFEERSIAR
HERZEERARBES  BAKED
B 7K R R RORCEE

Issuing Authority
KIS

Certification of Intellectual Property Management System
FBERERRARE

Certificate of Quality Management System

=R 27 27 S LK
EEEERAREES

Certificate of Environmental Management System

o Ly pe 27 277 7K S
RIEEBEARERE

Certificate of Occupational Health and Safety Management
System
BERRLZE2EEEBARIIE

Certificate of After-sales Service of Commodity (5A)
ERIRBRERE(5A)

Certificate of Green Enterprise (3A)
HFELEREEEGA

Zhong Gui (Beijing) Certification Co., Ltd.
FRALR)BEER AR

China Quality Certification Centre
REEERFZH L

China Quality Certification Centre
hEE B R

China Quiality Certification Centre
HEESREFZPL

Best International Certification Co., Ltd.
BRI REAR AR

Best International Certification Co., Ltd.
BHTRFEIR R B AR R A A
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

B Social Responsibility (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)

7.

Corporate Governance

The Board of the Group recognise that good corporate
governance is an indicator of company modernisation, as
well as a prerequisite to the sustainability of a business.
Since inception, the Group has invested large amounts
of resources and manpower into developing appropriate
business management practices according to the needs of the
business, enhancing the elements of corporate governance
and incorporating them into its management structures and
internal control procedures. The Group strives to maintain the
highest level of ethics, so as to achieve the highest standards
or best practices in all aspects of business activities, and to
ensure that the Group’s operations are fully compliant with
relevant laws and regulations. Each Director believes that
implementation of comprehensive and high standard corporate
governance allows the Group to achieve greater efficiencies in
all aspects of sustainable development, and to safeguard and
maximise the interests of stakeholders.

In December this Year, the Group, by virtue of its outstanding
internal governance and management, won the “Golden
Phoenix Tree” Award for Listed Company with the Best Internal
Governance at the “Golden Phoenix Tree” Award Ceremony
of the 2022 Chinese Listed Companies Investment Value
Summit jointly organised by the China Industrial Cooperation
Association, Jian Fintech Corporation and TMTpost.

BE - HERERERE

BIE -HERERRE®

B #=g

—4:3C )

LEEGI(E)

o
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RNE - WG E AT BB A T B2
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)

Operating Practices (Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Anti-corruption

Being a responsible enterprise, the Group has always
maintained a “zero tolerance” attitude towards violations
of business ethics such as bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

7.

7.1

The Group strives to provide a business platform with
integrity and has continuously implemented the following
measures, including:

1)

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Since 2012, the Group formulated the “Code of
Business Conduct” to which all board members,
managers, employees, agents and representatives
must adhere; the Group announced and
implemented the “Employee Handbook”, which
contains the requirement for prohibition of bribery,
and has been signed and acknowledged by all
employees;

The Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Compliance Committee and the
Nomination Committee have been established
under the board of directors of the Group to be
responsible for corporate governance;

The Group has set up a whistle-blowing hotline and
a whistle-blowing email through which suspected
cases or incidents of business ethics violations
can be inquired about or reported, and corrective
measures will be formulated to address the root
cause of the established cases;

Employees are required to disclose conflicts of
interest in their employment contracts, and no
relevant reporting case was received throughout the
Year;

» Annual Report 2022
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

B Social Responsibility (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)
7. Corporate Governance (Continued)

7.1
5)

Anti-corruption (Continued)

Open tendering policy has been formulated and
“comparison of quotations amongst at least 3
suppliers” is required, whereby the supplier with
competitive price will be selected;

Since 2013, procurement personnel must comply
with the “Revised Code of Self-Discipline Integrity
Conduct for China (including China MRO)
Procurement Personnel”;

The Group appoints an independent auditing
agency to proceed auditing and reporting of
listed company on an annual basis, and the
content involving the internal control system will
be disclosed separately. Subsidiaries will appoint
the local auditing agencies to proceed individual
auditing and reporting as well as tax calculation
in accordance with the principles of the operating
regions for enhancement of the Group's internal
control; and

The Group provided a training session on anti-
corruption for directors and employees during the
Year.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify
any reported case or legal violation relating to corruption.

&

Target B &

BE - HERERERE

BIE -HERERRE®

HEEEE)

SIEEH ()

7. REERHE)
71 RES#E)

5 #IEARIBEEEK - RBEHE
BEH=R] BEUHELES
MWIEARISEER

6) BE_T—Z=ZF# KEEA
BIFAEE(PERE(EFERE
MRO)EREEA BRRZARITAR
EIEETHR)

7)) BELZIABUNEFTEEMHLE
MABAHBERET I
RIEHIERHEAEBRRE
E-TEFRARAREBHE
B R E BT B ETE
RMEMBTFAEHEE
LA DN o A0 58 & £ B A S 4R
# R

8) AFEHEEMEIMAR X

REFE -

RBEHHE - ARESEEREM
B ABSER R EMNERESHE
REDIRZRIF o

For the financial year 2023, the Group will maintain zero incidents of fraud, bribery or corruption.
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BR - HEREREKSE

ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

Social Responsibility (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)

7.

Corporate Governance (Continued)
7.2 Business Ethics

In pursuit of conducting our business with integrity and
honesty, all employees are expected to adhere to the
Group's disclosures of Interest, conflict of interest policy,
which can be easily accessed by all employees via the
Group’s common shared folder. Clear guidelines are
also provided to directors and employees in the Group's
code of conduct for directors and employees respectively.
The respective code of conduct is introduced to new
employees on their first day of employment, who are
then required to sign an acknowledgement to indicate
that they had received, read and understood the code of
conduct. The code of conduct is also made available to
all employees via the Group’s common shared folder.

The Group's whistleblowing policy encourages and
provides a well-defined and accessible channel to
stakeholders (i.e. both internal and external) of the
Group to raise concerns over any unlawful conduct,
financial malpractice and/or other wrong-doings. During
the reporting period, there was no reported incident
pertaining to whistleblowing. The Group has set up a
complaint and reporting column on the official website.
Employees or any other persons may report suspected
matters of wrongdoing affecting the Group to the
executive Director via the following email: hr@emer.
com.hk. Other reporting channels include handphone
and postal address are also included within the
whistleblowing policy.

@> Target BZ

BRIE -HERERRE®
dresEE®
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7.
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72 MEER

BRUAHETENTARERRS
FAERESHEETAREBNHNZER
BRNSEREEK  MERESA
LA B A R B ey D A O AR
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—REBMBENTTRER KR
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BUE - METIEEZITALER -
TRENTEBAKRENDHAE
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B35 & (BN RER R HNER) 4R 4 — @ 87
HEHSESHERE  URMERIEE
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BIREEK - AREHE - BESR
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HHMRTEEREFYELEEN
A BN E 1T /4  hr@emer.com.hk °
Hah MR EBEFEFH L@t
TR R ER o

For the financial year 2023, the Group will maintain zero undeclared conflicts of interest and zero

whistleblowing incidents.

T =F ARERFBERPBNEERARTEREN -
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

B Social Responsibility (Continued)
Community

8.

Community Conftribution and Engagement

As an outstanding corporate citizen in the community, the
Group connects with the community and send best wishes
and support to the disadvantaged and give back to the
community. On the foundation of this social responsibility,
the Group has reached out to the community over the years,
through volunteer service or participation in regional activities,
and communication with local community organisations in
form of meetings and other means to understand their needs
and satisfy regional demands to the best of the Group’s
capabilities.

Meanwhile, the Group always pays attention to the community
needs, and also encourages employees to participate in charity
activities, pays attention to the details, organizes various
environmental protection activities, and starts from themselves
to contribute to environmental protection. In October 2022,
the Group organized the staff of the functional departments
of the China Region, GHT, and the Group’s Institute of
Science and Technology Innovation to go to the Qingdao
Fushan Ecological Park (5 & /Z1L4E#AE) to carry out the
activity of picking up garbage and advocating environmental
protection with the theme of “Giving care to lucid waters
and lush mountains (B & IU&k/K 2% 17)". During the event,
volunteers held garbage bags and other cleaning tools to clean
up plastic bottles, waste paper, packaging boxes, cigarette
butts and other discarded objects scattered in the bushes
and crevices of rocks. Regardless dirtiness and tiredness,
volunteers take practical actions to influence the citizens
around us. We call on everyone to, starting from ourselves
and from minor things, reduce the waste-occupied area
and environmental pollution in cities, actively participate in
ecological environmental protection, and create a green living
environment.

BE - HERERERE

BIE -HERERRE®
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He
HE
8

BE®
HEERHESH

ERtRAN—EEFEEAR  KEF
PEEHER  /APILBFXLEFEEX
FooSREMBELE c ERENHEEE
EEZFRFEEBEIRB N2 HEML R
ABESTAELEEE  EEeEmE M
TREEMTRERAMETER  TH
MFE  YRERCHEFER -

Rk - NEB-—BRIHEFFR - 75z
BEIZ2NA=E8  {)EER  #
AMBEME  AREERFEEY (KBS
Wi - RERBREERMBECN—DIE -
“TF+A - AREAEMT BRI
#BFY - ERHEEE  KERRAIFHEERE
ITRIESSEMFLLARCBERRIES
BOKREITIRETENBBIRBREE
B AEYP  TREMFHAURERERZ
TR BECRAERE  LARRPHEY
W R BRE - EESEMEWERER
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FENMR  RAARKSEHE - 15
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) RiE - HERERBE®
B Social Responsibility (Continued) B #H®FF®)

Community (Continued) HE#E)

8. Community Contribution and Engagement (Continued) 8 HEERESHEE)

The environmental protection action of “Giving care to lucid waters and lush mountains” organized by the Group

EBEIESLURKRRABITIED
@ Target B &

The Group will continue to practice good corporate social responsibility, participate in and organise certain
corporate social responsibility related events, and encourage our employees, business partners and suppliers
to actively participate in.

FEFEBERRIFCEAREM  2HERAGE TEEMSETHEBED - USBET  5EEHK
Y AEEZ e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE - HERERERE

CONTENT INDEX AEE 4

The ESG report has been prepared in compliance with the Environmental, — ANIR1E - & K EARE JHIL IR LR A 827 F7
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the — #IR3E - £ R EAREHESIRE -
Listing Rules.

Disclosure Issues Description Section/Remarks
HEIEE it 4P
Governance Structure (i)  adisclosure of the Board's oversight of ESG issues; About This Report > Governance
ERRE BEEEZGHRE HgRELRETENEE Structure
(i)  the Board’s ESG management approach and strategy, AR RESE AR #E

including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the
issuer’s businesses);
EEGNRE e NEREIEN I RRR - BT
il BREFIREBREEZNRE HgRELERERE
(BREHETAZTNERR)HBERE

(iii) how the Board reviews progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets with an explanation of how
they relate to the issuer’s businesses.
EFSMARERE e RECHEBRRIEE - I
FRREC I BREEIT AEB B E -

Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the About This Report > Reporting
s R Al following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG Principles

report: AR AR S >3RS R Al

s BRERERE - L8 REGIRER A &R T5IE

HRIRA :

(i)  Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: the process
to identify and the criteria for the selection of material
ESG factors; if a stakeholder engagement is conducted,

a description of significant stakeholders identified,

and the process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder
engagement.

FEMNRE  HEREAREERE  BRAEER
B RELARNBEREEREERZRAED @
BT ABETRMHELRE - BRBINEZERHENHEL
RETAROHEDRNBERER -

(i)  Quantification: Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where
applicable) should be disclosed.
21t - ERERBERE RLRFER (WER) TR NE
% BREESEFEIANER - URATERK
B R H) R E THRE -

(iii)  Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report
any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other
relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.
—EUE - BITARERE  HgREARERERELSG
AR ERERIERNEE (WA R EMEMTERE
HHRHBEBAREE -

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA
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CONTENT INDEX (continued) AR RS @)

138

Disclosure Issues Description Section/Remarks
WEIEE it -0 i

Scope of the Report
& =

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEAT - B

KPI A1.1
RS IRIRAT

KPI A1.2
FABEAE BURIZAT.2

KPI A1.3
FABHAIEIRAT3

KPI A1.4
FAREMIEIRA 4

KPI A1.5
FABHARIEIRALS

o A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the
ESG report and describing the process used to identify
which entities or operations are included in the ESG
report.

FRRIRIR e REAMENERGE - REMDEN
LR EBMARE EFREQMEHBIE ©

o If there is a change in the scope, the issuer should explain
the difference and reason for the change.
HERBERMNE  BITARREBETIRCERESR
®

e General Disclosure
—MRIRER

o Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRBERIAZERETR - KR TaHES - FER
EEEZRYNEESH
@QEXE : RO)ETFHEITABERZENERERER
ROIRERL -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

eI RARB PR IR -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (EE) R REE (BE2))REREBHERE CABETE
RnEm)BE(MASES SN - BERMEAE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEEREEEDHEE CAEETE) R(ER) & E (WAGE
BB - SHERIGHH) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
PREAEEEEYES AN E) R (WER) & E (AT E
EH( - FERIEHE) -

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.
HMFTRI LM E N E B ER REDE L B IRAERN TR
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About This Report > Scope of the

Report
BN AR S > 0 E

Environmental Protection >
Emissions
IRIBIRESTEIN

Environmental Protection >
Emissions

IRIFIRESHEN
Environmental Protection >

Emissions
IRIBIRESTEIN

Environmental Protection >
Emissions
IRIBIRESHEIN

Environmental Protection >
Emissions
IRIBIRESTEIN

Environmental Protection >
Emissions
IRIBIRESHEIN
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CONTENT INDEX (continued) AR RS

Disclosure Issues Description Section/Remarks
WEIEE i EE B
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Environmental Protection >

PR EMIEIRAT.6

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBmEA2 : BRFER

KPI A2.1
RS IRIRAZ.1

KPI A2.2
RABEAEUIRIZA2.2

KPI A2.3
RASAE N IRIRA2.3

KPI A2.4
PR MIEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
FABHARIEIRA2.5

handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
HEEEEREEEEYN L - RIBFTEI 8RB
BRAETE LB FAERIA R -
e General Disclosure
—MRARER
e Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRUEABIR(BIERER - K REM R KD BBUEE -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
REARE S ERE R SEEERNE - melon) BFEE (A
FRFERFTE) REE(ABES B - BIEREAE) °
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
RFEKEREE(WMABESEN - BIERME)
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
Fe i BT RT 32 RO B IR 1 AR A s B AR I A& B5E L B AR PTERER Y
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
F USREGE KR E R B EA R - LA R PRI S8 K e
BRENAEREL B EFERIE LR -
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
Bk MATABEMBNAE UUETE) RER) B4 ES

58 -

/I

TR FFR c EREREFREENRERERAA

Emissions
IRIBIRESHEIN

Environmental Protection >
Effective Use of Resources

RBRESAUERER

Environmental Protection >
Effective Use of Resources
RIBRESERXEAER

Environmental Protection >
Effective Use of Resources
RIRRES>EREAEIR
Environmental Protection >
Effective Use of Resources

RIBERESAYERER

Environmental Protection >
Effective Use of Resources

RERESAUERER

Environmental Protection >
Effective Use of Resources

RIBEFRESAYERER
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Disclosure Issues Description Section/Remarks
wEIEE it -0 T

Aspect A3: The Environment
and Natural Resources

. General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Environmental Protection >

Minimising of Significant Impacts

[BEA3 : IRIERAARER o  Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on  to Environment and Natural
the environment and natural resources. Resources
MIEBEITAERERAABEREKBRZEBHIBOR ° RIBERESH D ERERRAAE
REKNEEZZE
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Environmental Protection >

RASRAE BB IRAS.1

Aspect A4: Climate Change

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

W EREHHRBEMRABERNERFZENERDNERES
AR ENITE -

General Disclosure

Minimising of Significant Impacts

to Environment and Natural
Resources

RIERESR D HRBERRRE

TRIERE

Environmental Protection >

B 48
7

EEA4 - RIKE(L — R Climate Change
e Policies on identification and mitigation of significant RIERESRIEE
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
BRI RREE LRI HETAEEZENERNREK
HEEEHIBUR °
KPI'A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have  Environmental Protection >

RASRAE BB IZEAL

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

Climate Change
RERESRIKE L

BB RAESHETAELEZENERRBGEFREER
NERREBREHEEENITE -
Aspect B1: Employment o General Disclosure Social Responsibility
[EHB1 - EE — MR 25T

o Information on:

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

Bl RRE  BERSHA - TERE - RE - £E
e it RIEBAREME i@&iaﬂé’] :
@QBEK : RbO)EFHETABERZENERERR
RO ERL -

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, Social Responsibility >

RS 4E IR 1ZR1 .1 full- or part-time), age group and geographical region. Employment
ZMR - EERE (2R - FRAER RMRE S EE>ERE
EE#BE -

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Social Responsibility >
RASR 1A IR 158 1.2 geographical region. Employment
RIER - SRR RMEEI D HIEBRKLLE B> E
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Disclosure Issues

®EEE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HERER

AR RS

Description
i

Section/Remarks

B EE

&

Aspect B2: Health and Safety e

[EHB2 : fZRER

KPI B2.1
RABRAA IE1RB2.1

KPI B2.2
RS A IR 1EB2.2

KPI B2.3
RASE4E 5 1ER2.3

Aspect B3: Development and

Training

JETEB3 :

KPI'B3.1

RAS 48 IR 1R B3.1

KPI B3.2
R IR RIETRB3.2

TR I

Bl

General Disclosure

— MR

o Information on:
(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BEHEARBELZE2THERBLRERSBEBEIEREN
(@QEXK : RO)EFHETABEAZENHERER R
ROIEH -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of

the past three years including the reporting year.

BE=F(BREHFR)EFRAITHAABREE -

Lost days due to work injury.

ATEELATIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
AL PP B R R B 216 - A RABRARIT R ER T
% o
o General Disclosure
— M
o Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work.
EHERTEERITLIEBENAHBREREHIBUR
° Description of training activities.
IS -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
RURIREEFEFI(NRRERERE - PREERE)E DN
EEBSLL °
The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.
MR N EEARE S

 SREAZHEIOTHHEY -

TR FFR

- EFHEREF

Social Responsibility >
Occupational Health and Safety
tEEESBERENLZSE

Social Responsibility >
Occupational Health and Safety
2B ESBERENZ R

Social Responsibility >
Occupational Health and Safety
teEESBERENLZSE

Social Responsibility >
Occupational Health and Safety
BEE-BERENL R

Social Responsibility > Career
Development and Training

2 EESBERER RS

Social Responsibility > Career
Development and Training
HEEESREE RS

Social Responsibility > Career
Development and Training

2 B >R R AT

RERNMEZERERD A
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Disclosure Issues

®REEE

W&

AR RS @)

Description
it

Section/Remarks

B EE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EMB4 : & T %8|

KPI B4.1
RABR AR WIE1RBA N

KPI B4.2
RS I IR 1EB4.2

Aspect B5: Supply Chain
Management

EMBS : HEHEE IR

KPI B5.1
BB AR IE1RB5.1

KPI B5.2
RABE AR IEIRBS5.2

KPI B5.3
FABEAR RIETRBS5.3

KPI B5.4
BSR4 K 1R 1RB5 .4

142 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

o General Disclosure
— MR

o Information on:
(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BHPIEE T Roah 4 TH) -
(@QEXK : RO)EFHETABEAZENERER R
ROIEH -

Description of measures to review employment practices to

avoid child and forced labour.

i R IBE DIV AR R E T KORGS5 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

3R E R BN HR B B IB R ATIRE R 22 5] o

o General Disclosure
— MR R

o Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
EIRMHEHEOIRIR Mt g RBRBUER -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR S HERHEE o

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number

of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and

how they are implemented and monitored.

T“‘ A RS R R B G - I E 1T A RS e (i 2k
AR MEBEITRERE A -

Description of practices used to identify environmental

and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

B R E R HERRE R g AR E
RERTE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally

preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and

how they are implemented and monitored.

M ERE R RN (R RS ARRERMREHIED - AR

MHEARITRERIEA -

AR AEREEATT
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Social Responsibility > Prohibition
of Child Labour and Forced
Labour

& TSP IEE T KkoE fil 4

Social Responsibility > Prohibition
of Child Labour and Forced
Labour

e EMASHIEET RaH% T
Social Responsibility > Prohibition
of Child Labour and Forced

Labour
dteEMSHIEET MEHIS T

Social Responsibility > Supply
Chain Management
taEE-HEEER

Social Responsibility > Supply
Chain Management
teEE-HEEER

Social Responsibility > Supply
Chain Management
tEEE-HEEER

Social Responsibility > Supply
Chain Management

2 B E>HEEERE

Social Responsibility > Supply
Chain Management
tEEE-HEEER
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Disclosure Issues

®EEE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HERER

AR RS

Description
i

Section/Remarks

B EE

HE

Aspect B6: Product Liability
[EHB6 - EmBE

KPI B6.1
RABR AR WIE1RB6.1

KPI B6.2
A4 1 IR 12B6.2

KPI B6.3
RASE4E M I51%B6.3

KPI B6.4
RS AE K IE1RB6.4

KPI B6.5
RABRARIEIRB6.5

o General Disclosure
— MR
o Information on:
(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
B APTIR A E A AR IS H R B %
REEURERTTED
(@QBXK : RbO)EFHETABEAZENERERR
ROIEH -
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
EEREEXERBLET R BREEHMALRKNE S
5, =
Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.
BREENE DR RBSAIRFE B AR EE X
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting

intellectual property rights.
Tt B A R T (R R AN EERE S BB 1B

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
i it 24 E AR R BUAE T -

CEE BEREA

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

RO BEEERMRERMEBR - ARBREHT REEET
7 o

TR FFR

Social Responsibility > Product
Liability
teEISEMEML

Social Responsibility > Product
Liability
BiE>EmBE

Social Responsibility > Product
Liability

teEI-EMEML
Social Responsibility > Product
Liability
HEEf-ERET
Social Responsibility > Product
Liability

teEISEMEML
Social Responsibility > Product
Liability
HEeEf-ERET

cEFHEREFREENRERERAA
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CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

Disclosure Issues

®REEE

W&

AR RS @&

Description
it

Section/Remarks

B EE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EmEB7 : RE)S

KPI B7.1
RABR AR IEIRBT 1

KPI B7.2
RS A IR 1ZERT .2

KPI B7.3
RASE4E M5 1ERT7 .3

Aspect B8: Community
Investment

[EHEBS : LEIEE

KPI B8.1
RABR AR AIE1RB8.1

KPI B8.2
FABEIRRIETRB8.2

o General Disclosure
— MR

o Information on:
(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRAD PR - B1R - BGFROTRER ¢
@K : RO)ETHETATEAZENERERR

ROIEH -
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERAANL T ASEEERENEFELENESHFARMG
KB B RaFAER o
Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing

procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
fa by g R B WIZT - ARBERITRERFE °

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors

and staff.

frES R E TIRHENRETHE -

o General Disclosure
— M

o Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BENAHRSERTRBETASEMELREE
HEEBEHEZE BLENmAEER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental

concerns, labor needs, health, culture, sport).

EXERERWHE BREE - HTHXK

£ 88%8) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIREBMBAER(MESELFHE)

AR

R - X

Social Responsibility > Anti-
corruption
El ,E\ 'EE>&,E\/-5

Social Responsibility > Anti-
corruption
HeEt-RES

Social Responsibility > Anti-
corruption
HEEE-RES

Social Responsibility > Anti-
corruption
HEEAS-RES

Social Responsibility >
Community Contribution and

Engagement
BE>ttR FRiR2H

Social Responsibility >
Community Contribution and
Engagement

B>t E R

Social Responsibility >
Community Contribution and
Engagement

= H >t R B R E 2

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

» Annual Report 2022



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CMIC Ocean
En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 155 to 258, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

B ZBAHRE
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(REASFHEZMHALZBERAA])
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FABRRR SARakEME2EKER  HKEE
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i BRIZETHRME -
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T BEEER T _HF+_HA=+—HBHEREH
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

M - BERREBHMGE

HBRETEE®

Refer to notes 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(h), 1()(i) and 1(k)(ii).

BRHGEE I FEIREZ MG 100 KM 1(h) - 1)) 1(k)i)8) 251 -

The Key Audit Matter
HREEEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHWETNAREZER

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2022 were allocated to the cash-generating units
("CGUs") to which they belong.

ME BERRER-_ZE-_—_F+-A=+—ANKEAER
DECFTBHER S EAEAL -

When it is determined that indicators of impairment of a CGU
exist, management assesses the value in use of the CGU by
preparing a discounted cash flow forecast and that value in use
is compared with the carrying value of the CGU to determine if
any impairment is required.

EETRA - BeELABNFEREDRR  EREESERITER
WeRBA - EMAEZREEEBUNEREE  ARHE
ZHReELBEUNRAEETHL  UEFTEETEELE
fAAE ©

Assessing the value in use of a CGU is complex and requires
management to make a number of judgemental assumptions,
particularly relating to the revenue growth rates (which drives
future production levels) and future gross margins.
AEE-—ReELEMNEREEREER BEFTE2EEE
TLERH WA R F CEF B AR A EKF) RARKRER =
YEH ZIEFI BT RER

These estimates are inherently uncertain due to oil price
volatility and uncertain economic outlook.

AP ERE R BN RTHAR - ZEGHNE L FETRE
ENE
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of property, plant
and equipment included the following:

BPFTEYE  BEAXBENGHENSARTFE2ETIE
17 :

e obtaining an understanding of the Group'’s policies and
procedures to identify impairment indicators of property,
plant and equipment;

e B BESEEFIFIME - BERREREDROBER K
B

. evaluating management’s identification of impairment
indicators, if any, with reference to the internal sources
and external sources of information, and the identification
of CGUs and the allocation of assets to each CGU in the
preparation of its discounted cash flow forecasts;

o ZRAMBRIMNIEEIRTHERELRETR(WE)
BRI A KRBT IR @ MIB R IR & B A B ALV
ARIEEEDREESHeEELSN

° engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the methodology adopted by management,
and whether this was prepared in a manner consistent
with the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e ZEANHEEERER  UBHBEMIAHEREHANA
% W EABEARTEIRBEBITE N ER — B
R

° assessing and challenging management’s impairment
assessment model. This included evaluating the discounted
cash flow forecasts for each CGU where an indicator of
impairment was identified and comparing the resultant
value in use with the carrying values of the relevant assets
and considering whether impairment or a reversal of past
impairment was required;

o FEREREEEQREFEED  E0EFEHNE
ARG EREEEBROFRB LRI - LA
SEREEEEAEEETHERRERT DT E5T M
BB OBERE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of property, plant and equipment (Continued)

M - BERRBHMHEGE)
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BB RS

HBRETEE®

Refer to notes 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(h), 1()(i) and 1(k)(ii).

BRRREE R AN 10U KRBT 1) -
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

100K 1(k)i)ay &

BB -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWET N AEEZEE

We identified the valuation of property, plant and equipment as
a key audit matter because determining the level of impairment,
if any, involves a significant degree of management judgement
in forecasting future cash flows and estimating the value in use
of these assets both of which are inherently uncertain and may
be subject to management bias.

BMEYE  BEARBINRERETFE  ARETHE
KFE(B) S REBEBHFARKIBEERNERETZEEE
WERBEELEARHE  MARRERNE FHFETNEE
M AgXRERENRAMAMTE -

° comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including the revenue
growth rates and future gross margins, with the historical
performance of each CGU and management’s budgets
and forecasts;

o BIRRERBAFZERNBAZE(BERAERER
RREME)RERECELEUNBEARAEREREEE
MFDAGETTELE

° evaluating the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar companies
in the same industry;

e HRAFHMMBURT
FREVITIR %

ETHEL - BUFERSRBERR

. performing sensitivity analyses of the discount rates,
revenue growth rates, future gross margins and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment
assessment for the year and whether there were any
indicators of management bias; and

o HIHEX  WARRRRAREMNETETHREDN -
WERHFAREFENZERTEFEERERRD
EATR : &

o considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the impairment assessment with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

o REBRTEFERNRTE  ZERESUBHREANBER
R -

RO FFR c EREREBFREENRERERAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance for trade and lease receivables

B RHERVRENEREE

HBRETEE®

Refer to notes 17, 18 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(j)(ii), 1(k)(i) and 1(n).

BRRREE A7 - 18 R28LA KM 1)) ~ 100)(1) K 1(n)ay & aT B
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREEHR BEMHETFNAEEZEE

The carrying value of the Group’s trade and lease receivables as
at 31 December 2022 totalled US$95.8 million after deduction
of loss allowance of US$57.5 million.
KHNREBEBES7SEEXTE  BEEER-_ZT-__F+
ZA=T—HMESRHEERUGRIEREMBES #9588 8%
I o

The Group's loss allowance is always measured at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit loss, which is estimated
by taking into account the historical credit loss experience,
ageing of the receivables and shared credit risk characteristics
based on geographical location or business segment, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecasted economic conditions at the
reporting date. Such assessment involves a significant degree of
judgement.
SENERBE ERAENEHEREEEENSET
RERBTEEBIELAR  BRFIERER - ERMIEN
Ei%%“ﬂm LB 2z EERRSRIm A - SlE B HE
AR TE B 2= DA K B AT K TROBI A B AR5 B9 T 1T 5
B o B REREEHIE
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Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for trade and
lease receivables included the following:

BRI E S MEEREGRIENEERENE
& IA

AREFERET

e  obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection, and
estimation of the expected credit loss allowance;

o BEENMIHEHGEEES  WERMGFHRAGEESHER
B EEREERINRE  EHERAITRR

° obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model adopted
by management, including the basis of the segmentation
of the trade and lease receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics, the historical default data, and the
assumptions involved in management’s estimated loss
rates;

s BWE
x BEEEEENAEGZEERR
FEWCRIEET AR ELE BEEBAEURE
BRI RARE

EERMNEREEBREEDNEREELRR
BB EE S RIEE
B RE b



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance for trade and lease receivables (Continued)

ESRHEERKRFENBEREE)
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BB RS

HBRETEE®

Refer to notes 17, 18 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(j)(ii), 1(k)(i) and 1(n).

BRI E AN A7 - 18 R28A K 10)(i) ~ 1)) K 1(n)ay & 5T EE

The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWET N AEEZEE

We identified the loss allowance for trade and lease receivables
as a key audit matter because the assessment of loss allowances
is inherently subjective and requires significant management
judgement, which increases the risk of error or potential
management bias.

HRMAEEREEAE FABTEY  UEEEREFED
BAHE  AMEMEEREEEEEREORR - M
8 5 MRS RYGRIABBEESN SEREETFIE -

° assessing the classification of individual balances in the
trade receivables ageing report and lease receivables
ageing report by comparing the details in such reports
with underlying invoices, on a sample basis; and

o BEHRUFIEREK®E RIESRKKRERRE NN
TR TR S - AR E RSN ER
HHENDE R

e assessing the reasonableness of management'’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including testing
the accuracy of the historical default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information.

o FERAEEERUBKERAABNER (BFARBEEE
W AR - FHEBEBRXREEIRE AR
RATREUEERMEL R AR KA HEREERRERE
HEEM -

e  for certain receivables, our procedures also included
evaluating the probability of default by comparing with
available market information.

e HETRERUFEMS  BMHNEFTEEEBEASET
5B R LA AR HE B TR AT BRI o

RO FFR c EREREBFREENRERERAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

FHEFEERN TR FE

HBRETEE®

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

BRRREE AN 16 RATE 1) &5 BUR -
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWETT N AEEZEE

The carrying value for inventories as at 31 December 2022 was
US$36.2 million, which represented 13.0% of the Group's total
assets. The inventories held at the year-end covered a wide
range of capital equipment and spare parts and the demand for
these in the future may be adversely affected by many factors
including market demand, competitor activities, pricing and the
introduction of substituting products and technologies.
RZTZZF+_A=+—8  FENKEER32EEXE
T AER BEEEAEEMNI3.0% FABANTFERE
BRERNRBEREN  ARRZERELEHOTKATEXE
FZRARN TP E  BRETSHER  HFHFNED B
R REMHEBRHEL -

The Group's inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Determination of net realisable value
involves key judgements and estimates made by management,
in particular with regards to the estimation of selling prices and
provisions for slow-moving and obsolete inventories.
EEENFERAAETZEFEPOREE AR - BEEA
SERFESREREEDOBREAE KA - BFRIREFH
FREFEEERBEBIELMME -
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Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included the following:

B EFENT 2B ENETEFEETIIRE

e  obtaining an understanding of Group’s policy in assessing
net realisable value of inventories;
o B BEEFNGFEVEREZBENEREK:

e assessing whether the inventory provision at the end of
the reporting period was determined on a basis consistent
with the Group's inventory provisioning policy including
evaluating the accuracy of management’s prior year
estimation;

e FHMERBERARNTERBRORE ESETER®G
BR-HHNEEETE (BN LEEEREFENMGZ
BAERE)

. assessing, on a sample basis, the classification of individual
items in the inventory ageing report by comparing the
details in the inventory ageing report with underlying
documentation, including purchase invoices and goods
receipt notes;

s MEMEEFEERERBRETENEENSE  FRARKE
BERRMETNFAEH AR (B EREEERE
o WUR) B8



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories (Continued)

AEFEN TR FEGE
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Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

BRI E AT 16 R 1()8 & 5T BOE °
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWET N AEEZEE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories as a key audit matter because of the significance
of inventories to the consolidated financial statements and
because of the significant judgements made by management in
assessing net realisable value, which increases the risk of error
or potential management bias.

BB EFENE2RFENGERTERAREFFE  REAR
FEHGRAVMBBRENEZHREE BTG ERFEED
BB R HIET - WG INEERSEE B IR E R AH R o

assessing the appropriateness of the selling prices
estimated by management, on a sample basis, by
comparing the estimated selling prices to the recent
transaction prices and our knowledge of the Group’s
business; and

HMEFTHEREMANEERSRE FARBHEE
BHRZNXSGEBEETHBUARER BEEEES: &

N
A

evaluating the reasonableness of the Group’s inventory
provision balance by comparing, on a sample basis, the
carrying value of inventories with net realisable value.
ik ERETERBESKEDRSE  FAR/MERILER
FEARE AR #IRF3E -

RO FFR c EREREBFREENRERERAA
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
IIV_\’%Eé%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 =F = —F+=HA=+—HIFFE(UZETZ3)

2022 2021
g .
Note US$'000 US$'000
M5 FErx FErx

Revenue A 